
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 17, 2016 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Sister Ann Kendrick of Hope CommUnity Center 
PLEDGE 
 

Please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak card” to the City Clerk.  Action may not be taken by the Council at this meeting but questions 

may be answered by staff or issues may be referred for appropriate staff action.  If further action is necessary, the item may be placed 

on the agenda for further review and consideration.  NOTE:  Zoning or code enforcement matters which may be coming before the 

Board at a later date should not be discussed until such time as they come before the Board in a public hearing.  

Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on propositions before the City 
Council.  Accordingly, comments, questions, and concerns regarding items listed on this agenda shall be received at the time the City 
Council addresses such items during this meeting.  Public comments are generally limited to four minutes. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council meeting February 3, 2016. 
 
PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Proclamations: 

1.   FFA Proclamation  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 
 
Presentations: 

1. Presentation from Farmworker Association of Florida on House Bill 675. Tirso Moreno  
2. Presentation on Canterwoods Assisted Living Facility (ALF) (a.k.a. Dunn ALF/Dixie Manor). David Moon 
3. Announcement of Community Consensus Meeting scheduled February 23, 2016. Suzanne Kidd 

 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the annual fuel contract renewal with Petroleum Traders Corporation. 
2. Authorize the purchase of two vehicles for the Recreation Department. 
3. Authorize the Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement for Marden Ridge. 
4. Authorize the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe Reserve, Phase 2. 
5. Authorize the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe Reserve, Phase 3. 
6. Authorize a donation to the Kid's House Children’s Advocacy Center.     
7. Approval of Dr. Charles E. Dorfman’s Lease Renewal.  
8. Authorize direction for land purchase on Park Ave.  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2474 – Second Reading – Amending the Apopka Municipal Code, Chapter 26.  Glenn A. Irby 
2. Ordinance No. 2475 – Second Reading – Amending the Apopka Municipal Code, Chapter 82.  Glenn A. Irby 
3. Ordinance No. 2488 – Second Reading – Annexation David Moon 
4. Ordinance No. 2473 – First Reading – Corrective Ordinance David Moon 
5. Resolution 2016-03 – Second Reading - Economic Enhancement District Designating Brownfield Districts. David Moon 
6. Resolution 2016-06 – The State Revolving Fund Loan Program for the water reclamation facility.  Jay Davoll 

 
DISCUSSION (Action Item) 

1. Consultant Selection for Retail Development Strategy and Marketing Services. David Moon 

  
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1.  Council 
2.  Public 

 
NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1. Thank you email to the City of Apopka Public Services Department from resident.  
 

Page 1



  
 

MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

February 19, 2016 1:30pm – Kelly Park Historical Marker Unveiling 

February 23, 2016 6:00pm – 9:00pm Apopka Visioning – Community Consensus Meeting 

March 02, 2016 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting 

March 07, 2016  6:00pm – 8:00pm Apopka Visioning – Steering Committee Meeting 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

Page 2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council meeting February 3, 2016. 
  

Page 3



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016, at 1:30 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Sam Ruth 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:    Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

    Dale Fenwick, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION:  Commissioner Dean introduced Reverend Dr. Gloria Stephens of Pleasant View 

Missionary Baptist Church, who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on February 10, 1964, after ten days of 

debate and voting on 125 amendments, the US House of Representatives passed the Civil Rights 

Act of 1964 by a vote of 290 to 130.  The Bill prohibited racial and ethnic discrimination by any 

local or state government or public facility and also allowed the U.S. Attorney General to bring 

school desegregation law suits. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 was later passed by the Senate in 

June 1964, and signed into law on July 2, 1964.  He asked everyone to reflect upon the brave 

actions and eloquent words of social activists and political leaders who fought for racial equality as 

he led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council Visioning Retreat meeting December 9, 2015. 

2. City Council Workshop meeting December 15, 2015. 

3. City Council regular meeting January 20, 2016. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

approve the December 9, 2015, December 15, 2015, and January 20, 2016 City Council 

minutes. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Proclamations: 

1. Black History Month Proclamation – Mayor Kilsheimer read a proclamation acknowledging 

February as Black History Month. He presented the proclamation to Ms. Francina Boykin.  

 

Employee Recognition: 

1. Christopher “Chris” Rodriguez – Fire Department/EMS – Five Year Service Award – 

Chris began working for the City on January 2, 2011, as a Fire Fighter First Class, which is his 

current position. Chris was not present and his award will be presented to him at another time. 

 

Page 4



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

2. Robert Walsh – Police Department/Field Services – Five Year Service Award - Robert 

started working for the City on January 18, 2011, as a Police Officer, which is his current 

position.  Robert was not present and his award will be presented to him at another time. 

 

3. Amanda Merrill – Police Department/Chief’s Office – Ten Year Service Award - 

Amanda began working for the City on January 31, 2006, as a Police Officer.  She was 

reclassified to Crime Analyst on January 22, 2012.  Amanda was promoted to Administrative 

Assistant to Police Chief on March 2, 2015, which is her current position. The Commissioners 

joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Amanda on her years of service to the City. 

 

4. Lorena Potter – Recreation Department/Activities & Civic Events – Fifteen Year Service 

Award - Lorena started working for the City on January 3, 2001, as a Recreation Leader.  On 

April 8, 2002, she was promoted to Recreation Specialist and on February 20, 2005, Lorena 

was promoted to Recreation Manager, which is her current position. The Commissioners 

joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Lorena on her years of service to the City. 

 

5. Cynthia “Robin” Dix – Police Department/Communications – Twenty Year Service 

Award - Robin began working for the City on January 10, 1996, as a Communication 

Specialist I.  On February 5, 1997, she was reclassified to Communication Specialist II, and 

on January 6, 1999, her title changed to Communication Technician, which is her current 

position. Robin was not present and her award will be presented to her at another time. 

 

Presentations: 

1. Marden Interchange project update from MMI 

 

Mike Wright presented a project update on the Marden Interchange. The Expressway Authority 

Board approved permission to build the interchange at a public hearing and an agreement with 

the Expressway Authority was completed toward the end of October. He advised they have 

settled with a firm for the design work. A copy of his presentation is on file in the City Clerk’s 

office. 

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of December, 2015. 

2. Authorization to retire a Police Department Canine. 

3. Authorize CUES, Inc., to inspect/rebuild/upgrade the camera inspection equipment on the 

wastewater service van. 

4. Authorize the purchase of two mowers for the Northwest Recreation Complex. 

5. Authorize the purchase of four vehicles for the Community Development Department, 

Building Division. 

6. Authorize the purchase of nineteen vehicles for the Police Department. 

7. Authorize the City Administrator to engage in negotiations for the purchase of the downtown 

parking lot. 

8. Authorize the City Administrator to sign the contract for engineering with Tetra Tech, Inc., for 

the water reclamation facility expansion. 

 

Item 8 was pulled for discussion. Mr. Irby explained this was the design engineer for the 

wastewater plant and by Florida Statute we are  required to go through a Contractor’s 

Competitive Negotiation Act (CCNA) process to select an engineer. City Council approved 
Page 5



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

negotiations with Tetra Tech, Inc., who was the first ranked firm.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to approve 

the eight items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2469 – Third Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment. The City 

Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2469 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE 

APOPKA COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; 

CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM 

PARKS/RECREATION TO INDUSTRIAL (0.6 FAR), FOR CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF EAST 

CLEVELAND STREET, WEST OF SHEELER AVENUE, 

COMPRISING 9.95 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 

CITY OF APOPKA.; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

David Moon, Planning Manager, advised due to the public interest in this, additional 

advertising was provided to alert the public.  
 

City Attorney Shepard conducted swearing in of witnesses.  
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  
 

Francina Boykin said she had researched the property and the Walter Davis family is a family 

she will feature during Black History Month. Mr. Davis had owned this property at one point 

and requested a marker be placed there in honor of the Davis family. She stated she was very 

proud there was going to be light industrial business at this location. 
 

Vernell Jordan said she recently moved back to the area, being retired from the U.S. Army. 

She inquired what type of upper level jobs would be given to the people that reside in the area, 

to which Mayor Kilsheimer advised the jobs were undetermined at this point. He explained 

the HUB Zone and advised the interested company’s business is to obtain contracts to serve 

the Defense Department. They obtain those contracts through the Small Business 

Administration HUB Zone program, and 35% of all of the jobs must go to residents that live 

within the HUB Zone. 
 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 
 

Commissioner Dean stated he wanted on record that only clean manufacturing be allowed in 

this area. 

Page 6



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2469. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2470 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial. The City Clerk 

read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2470 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
CHANGING THE ZONING FROM PR (PARKS/RECREATION) TO 
I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) (0.6 FAR) FOR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF EAST 
CLEVELAND STREET, WEST OF SHEELER AVENUE, 
COMPRISING 9.95 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 
CITY OF APOPKA; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2470. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2483 – Second Reading – Vacate.  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO.  2483 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO 
VACATE A PORTION OF A UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED AT 
2780 PONKAN MEADOW DRIVE; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO 
THE CITY CLERK, FOR SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2483. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2484 – Second Reading – Vacate. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2484  
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO 
VACATE A PORTION OF A UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED AT 

Page 7



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 5 

 
1142 GLENMORE DRIVE; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, FOR SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2484. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2486 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment. The City 

Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2486 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE 
APOPKA COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; 
CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM 
“COUNTY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) TO “CITY” 
RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC), FOR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF SCHOPKE 
LESTER ROAD, NORTH OF W HIGHLAND AVENUE, 
COMPRISING 4.42 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY HUY 
TRAN & HAI ANH NGUYEN; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2486. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2487 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial. The City Clerk 

read the title as follows 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2487 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

CHANGING THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” 

AG-E (AGRICULTURE ESTATES) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF SCHOPKE 

LESTER ROAD, NORTH OF WEST HIGH AVENUE, COMPRISING 

4.42 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY HUY TRAN & HAI 

ANH NGUYEN; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Page 8



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing and witnesses were sworn in. 

 

Huy Tran Nguyen, applicant, gave a presentation on Aquaponics, explaining it is the 

combination of growing fish and plants together, using the nutrients and discharging almost 

nothing. He affirmed the quality of the plants are much healthier and they are not sprayed. A 

copy of his presentation is on file in the City Clerk’s office. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2487. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2474– First Reading – First Reading – Amending the Apopka Municipal Code, 

Chapter 26. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2474 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 26, 

“CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES,” ARTICLE IV, “WATER, SEWER 

AND REUSE CAPITAL FACILITY FEES AND FUND,” SECTIONS 26-

112, “DEFINITIONS,” 26-117, “WATER CAPITAL FACILITY FEE,” 

26-118, “SEWER CAPITAL FACILITY FEE,” AND 26-119, “REUSE 

CAPITAL FACILITY FEE;” AMENDING FEE CALCULATIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, said Ordinance 2474 is regarding proposed impact fees. He 

stated the City was not required to do a study, however, if challenged, especially regarding 

impact fees and how they were based, it is advised to hire experts to develop standards and 

what the impact fees should be. The next ordinance deals with utility rates.  

 

Kevin Burgess said the driving force for a lot of this is the wastewater plant expansion. He 

gave a brief history stating our wastewater treatment plan currently serves more than 16,000 

commercial, industrial, and residential customers across 39 square miles of the utility service 

area. We are currently permitted by DEP for 4.5 million gallons per day. The need for this 

expansion was evaluated last year and it is projected in 2035 we will be treating 8 million 

gallons per day.  He reviewed a Power Point presentation pointing out the current systems and 

plant will need modifications, as well as reviewing the reclaimed water. He advised there are 

11 utilities within the Wekiva Basin area and all are under a consent agreement with DEP with 

a timeline to meet nitrogen level requirements.  The presentation is on file in the City Clerk’s 

office.  

 

Murray Hamilton, with Public Resources Management Group (PRMG) said they are a utility 

Page 9



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

rate and financial planning consulting firm based in Maitland, Florida.  He reviewed the 

presentation that was given in December at a workshop meeting. The last utility rate study 

conducted by their firm was in 2007/2008.  The last impact fee study was conducted by 

another firm in 2001, which recommended a phasing of the current impact fees with indexing. 

The impact fees were last adjusted in 2009. A copy of the presentation is on file in the City 

Clerk’s office.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Vernell Jordan expressed concerns regarding the increased deposits and the hardship this 

creates for people coming to Apopka.  

 

Tenita Reid spoke saying she was against Ordinance No. 2475, but she was in support of 

Ordinance No. 2474.  She said she was against the 3% monthly increase each year and said 

this was caused by the new developments requiring the additional infrastructure.  

 

Ray Shackelford inquired if the impact fees were restricted to new developments, to which 

Mr. Irby advised it was for new development.  Mr. Shackelford spoke regarding Ordinance 

2475 and the 3% increase, and given the fact property taxes have increased and the garbage 

collection fees increased, stating there has been enough increases, especially for senior 

citizens and veterans on fixed incomes. He said he was opposed to 2475.  

 

No one wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2474 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2475 – First Reading – Amending the Apopka Municipal Code, Chapter 82. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2475 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 82, 

“UTILITIES,” ARTICLE II, “WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS,” 

DIVISION II, “FEES AND CHARGES,” SECTIONS 82-61, “WATER 

CONNECTION FEES,” 82-62, “SEWER TAP FEES,”82-64, 

“INITIATION OF WATER SERVICE,” 82-65, “WATER USE 

CHARGES AND DEPOSIT,” 82-66, “WASTEWATER USE CHARGES 

AND DEPOSIT,” 82-67,  “DEFECTIVE WATER METERS,” 82-69, 

“WATER AND RECLAIMED WATER METER READING RE-

CHECK,” AND DIVISION III, “RECLAIMED WATER SYSTEM,” 

SECTIONS 82-92, “CONNECTION CHARGES,” 82-94, “RECLAIMED 

WATER USE CHARGES, AND 82-98, “AUTHORITY TO PRESCRIBE 

ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS;” ARTICLE IV, “BILLING AND 
Page 10



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 8 

 

COLLECTION PROCEDURES,” SECTIONS 82-179, “TERMINATION 

OF SERVICE GENERALLY; LATE PAYMENT CHARGE, ILLEGAL 

USE OF WATER, TAMPERING, MAINTENANCE OF CUSTOMERS 

FACILITIES, 82-182, “AFTER-HOURS SERVICE CHARGE;” 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the turn on and off fees, as well as hardship. Pam Barclay, 

Finance Director, affirmed that Utility Billing will work with people and set up payment plans 

as a relief for hardship. 

 

Henry Thomas advised that if the City decides to set up a hardship fund, a number of utilities 

throughout the State of Florida has a program they call “Operation Roundup” and a customer 

can elect on their bill to pay the next dollar rounded up and that amount goes into the hardship 

fund to help those in need.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said his recommendation would be to adopt the package before them and 

deal with the hardship separately at budget time.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Tenita Reid said she disagreed with the shut off/on fee, stating employees are all over town 

and there should not be a fee for this. She would agree suspending this in order to set up a 

hardship fund.  

 

Ray Shackelford inquired if there was interest on a payment plan. 

 

Ms. Barclay advised there was no interest charged.  

 

Isadora Dean spoke in agreement with Commissioner Velazquez to suspend fees until budget 

time. She stated citizens are on fixed incomes and families can barely make ends meet  

 

Alice Nolan said she volunteers at the schools and there are a lot of children on free lunches. 

She stated people who could not afford lunch fees would not be able to afford this increase. 

She suggested holding off on the shut off fees.  

 

Dennis New said he was retired and on a fixed income.  He said Utility Billing works with 

people who ask for help. People who get their water cut off will continue to do so, stating the 

Water Department is not the problem.  

 

No one wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2475 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

The Council recessed at 3:49 p.m. and reconvened at 3:57.p.m. 
Page 11



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

 

9. Ordinance No. 2488 – First Reading – Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as follows 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2488 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY APOPKA HOLDING, LLC 

LOCATED AT 1120 CLARCONA ROAD AND 1124 SOUTH PARK 

AVENUE; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2488 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

10. Resolution No. 2016-03 – Economic Enhancement District Designating Brownfield Districts. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-03 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

DESIGNATING THE APOPKA COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AREA AS AN ECONOMIC ENHANCEMENT DISTRICT (FOR 

BROWNFIELD DESIGNATION); ESTABLISHING THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION AS THE ECONOMIC ENHANCEMENT ADVISORY 

BOARD; AUTHORIZING THE PLANNING MANAGER TO NOTIFY 

THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROTECTION OF SAID DESIGNATION; PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

David Moon gave a brief lead in stating this Resolution is to create an economic enhancement 

district that qualifies as a brownfield designated area.  The Grant Specialist has identified a 

program to assist businesses and property owners within the designated area to help clean up 

sites that may have been identified with site contamination. He advised this was a step to 

enable these property owners to apply for these grant programs and it is a benefit to the City to 

help redevelop those sites, create jobs, and tax revenue to the City. At this time they are 

concentrating on the Community Redevelopment Area.  

 

In response to Commissioner Ruth inquiring if he should abstain since he lives within this 

area, City Attorney Shepard advised he did not need to abstain. 

 

Page 12



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 10 

 

In response to Commissioner Arrowsmith inquiring if a Phase I would automatically require a 

Phase II from a lender’s standpoint, City Attorney Shepard advised that Phase I would have to 

be specific to reveal the need for a Phase II. He advised in most cases lenders will underwrite.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public input. 

 

Fraser Gunter inquired if this whole area was like that, or only parcels within the area that 

need to be addressed. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer explained the boundary encompasses the CRA area and they would 

conduct a Phase I to determine site contamination sites.  He advised this is done on a broad 

basis.  

 

Ray Shackelford applauded the city for moving in this direction stating it was great 

opportunity for growth development. 

 

Alice Nolan said she went to the brownfield seminar and inquired if the Phase I would be 

funded by the grant to which Mayor Kilsheimer advised it would be grant funded. She 

inquired if the City would also look into the federal grant funding.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said once we go through the Phase I process, the City can look into 

additional state or federal grants.  

 

No others wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public input. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-03 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

11. Resolution No. 2016-04 – The State Revolving Fund Loan Program for the water reclamation 

facility. The City Clerk read the title as follows 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-04 

 

A RESOLUTION OF CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, RELATING TO 

THE STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN PROGRAM; MAKING 

FINDINGS; AUTHORIZING THE LOAN APPLICATION; 

AUTHORIZING THE LOAN AGREEMENT; ESTABLISHING 

PLEDGED REVENUES; DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVES; PROVIDING ASSURANCES; PROVIDING 

FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Jay Davoll, Public Services Director, said this was the Resolution that allows the city to apply 

for the State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan. He affirmed the contract was approved earlier and 

the rate study, plus hearing the history of the plant.  By approving this resolution and allowing 

the use of the SRF will save the City a minimum of $20 million and up to $27 million over 

other processes.  He requested approval of Resolution No. 2016-04. 
Page 13



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 11 

 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-04. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

12. Resolution No. 2016-05 – Amending the budget for FY October 1, 2015 – September 30, 2016. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2015 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 

30, 2016, PROVIDING FOR A BUDGET AMENDMENT. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-05. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

 

BUSINESS  
 

1. Preliminary Development Plan extension request – Copart, Inc. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, said Council tabled the Preliminary Development Plan 

application to the end of February at the December 2, 2015 meeting. Council received on the 

dais a request by Copart, Inc. requesting to extend their application review period to the 

second meeting in May.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth to extend 

the Preliminary Development Plan request by Copart, Inc. to the May 18, 2016 Council 

meeting Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

2. Council 

Commissioner Velazquez said Jan Chamberlain was at the last meeting and made a statement 

the City had over 133,000 square feet of vacant commercial business space. After the meeting 

she asked Ms. Chamberlain if that included the old Albertson’s and she affirmed it did. 

Commissioner Velazquez stated 54,000 of the 133,000 is commercial space that is being leased 

and paid for by Albertson’s.  

 

Commissioner Dean asked City Administrator Irby to locate the people that own the house 

beside Schofield Funeral Home. If they have no intentions or use, request they allow the City 

to burn it.  

 

Captain Fernandez advised there is a Code Enforcement case on that house, stating the owner 

is deceased and the family is negotiating over the property.  

 
Page 14



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 12 

 

Commissioner Ruth said he has been approached by some people wanting to hold a tree 

planting ceremony at Alonzo Williams Park in honor of Ms. Mary Bridges. He stated they 

also request the Council to be present.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer requested he contact David Burgoon to make sure the tree is placed in an 

area so not to interfere with the improvements to the park.  

 

3. Public 

Dennis New spoke regarding the traffic on the residential streets in his area of Magnolia Street 

and Lake Avenue. He expressed concern about the number of vehicles that travel through the 

area and said the County has placed stop signs at Lake and Myrtle making it a four-way stop. 

He said cars are speeding through that area and he has had a commercial vehicle overturn in 

his neighbor’s yard.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer asked Jay Davoll to look into four-way stops in the area. 

 

Ray Shackelford spoke regarding the Old Florida Outdoor Festival Committee stating they 

had been told this committee would reflect the population of Apopka and declared this was 

not true.  He stated he was allowed to attend one of the meetings and was allowed to make 

comments.  At the second Council meeting in December he stated he wanted to be a volunteer 

and looked forward to the meeting on December 29th. He spoke regarding the committee 

meetings being closed to the public. He said the Old Florida Outdoor Festival was a great 

family event, but he was for fairness of including all people in the planning and participation 

of the event. He said with a diverse committee there would be greater participation in the 

event.  

 

Fraser Gunter spoke about the morning news reporting on guns and violence. Now in 

Tallahassee they want to allow the “cash and carry” of guns. He stated he did not want to see 

guns around all places such as schools and churches. He stated 32,000 people a year are killed 

with guns and it was time to address this matter.  

 

Tenita Reid inquired about a report she saw on the evening news stating Apopka may be 

getting a new second town center and said she had not heard anything about this.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised there was no specific plan, but a group of people think doing 

something on Station Street and that area is a good idea. He reiterated there was nothing 

specific, but interest expressed.  

 

Commissioner Dean said he would like to have some diversity when setting up the Old 

Florida Outdoor Festival Committee for next year. 

 

Vernell Jordan said she also was from Apopka and grew up here. When she came back home 

to Apopka she was very disappointed to see Apopka was split with signs up for South 

Apopka. She said when she left it was Apopka, and where she lives now, she has lived there 

for 50 years and she would like to see it go back to Apopka.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the signs are Orange County signs that say South Apopka and he 

would like to see an effort made to have these taken down. He advised Mayor Land had told 
Page 15



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 13 

 

him there was a vote taken by the residents to annex this area and they voted not to annex into 

the city limits.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT – Mayor Kilsheimer reported Birdapalooza is this weekend at Magnolia 

Park. The following weekend is the Old Florida Outdoor Festival.  

 

Isadora Dean said her ex-student Vernell Jordan did not bring up the issue of annexation and the 

issue was not annexation.  She stated with regards to the Old Florida Outdoor Festival, she would 

love to see some diversity to this event and committee.  She said she was happy Mr. Wright was 

reaching out to the schools in the area, but the elementary school in that area is not in the city. She 

would hope he would reach out to all elementary schools in the area regardless to whether they 

are in the city or county. She said most municipalities have more diversity than we have in 

Apopka and she would like to see more diversity in upper administrative positions.  

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 5:06 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

Page 16



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Presentation from Farmworker Association of Florida on House Bill 675.   Tirso Moreno  
  

Page 17



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  February 17, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       House Bill 675 

  X  OTHER:  Presentation 

  
 

SUBJECT: FARMWORKER ASSOCIATION OF FLORIDA PRESENTATION ON HOUSE 

BILL 675.   

 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Request from the Farmworker Association of Florida to make a presentation regarding House Bill 675, 

which follows for your review.   

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 18



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 1 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

A bill to be entitled 1 

An act relating to federal immigration enforcement; 2 

providing a short title; creating chapter 908, F.S., 3 

relating to federal immigration enforcement; providing 4 

legislative findings and intent; providing 5 

definitions; prohibiting sanctuary policies; requiring 6 

state entities, local governmental entities, and law 7 

enforcement agencies to comply with and support the 8 

enforcement of federal immigration law; prohibiting 9 

restrictions by such entities and agencies on taking 10 

certain actions with respect to information regarding 11 

a person's immigration status; authorizing a law 12 

enforcement agency to transport an unauthorized alien 13 

under certain circumstances; providing an exception to 14 

reporting requirements for crime victims or witnesses; 15 

requiring recordkeeping relating to crime victim and 16 

witness cooperation in certain investigations; 17 

authorizing a board of county commissioners to adopt 18 

an ordinance to recover costs for complying with an 19 

immigration detainer; authorizing local governmental 20 

entities and law enforcement agencies to petition the 21 

Federal Government for reimbursement of certain costs; 22 

requiring reporting of violations; providing penalties 23 

for failing to report a violation; providing whistle-24 

blower protections for persons who report violations; 25 

providing for investigation of possible violations; 26 

Page 19



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 2 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

providing for injunctive relief and civil penalties; 27 

requiring written findings; prohibiting the 28 

expenditure of public funds for specified purposes; 29 

requiring the Attorney General to prescribe the format 30 

for submitting complaints; providing a cause of action 31 

for personal injury or wrongful death attributed to a 32 

sanctuary policy; providing that a trial by jury is a 33 

matter of right; requiring written findings; providing 34 

for implementation; requiring repeal of existing 35 

sanctuary policies within a specified period; 36 

providing effective dates. 37 

 38 

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 39 

 40 

 Section 1.  Short title.—This act may be cited as the "Rule 41 

of Law Adherence Act." 42 

 Section 2.  Chapter 908, Florida Statutes, consisting of 43 

sections 908.001-908.0010, is created to read:  44 

CHAPTER 908 45 

FEDERAL IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT 46 

 908.001  Legislative findings and intent.—The Legislature 47 

finds it is an important state interest that state agencies, 48 

local governments, and their officials owe an affirmative duty 49 

to all citizens and other persons lawfully within the United 50 

States to assist the Federal Government with enforcement of 51 

federal immigration laws within this state, including complying 52 

Page 20



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 3 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

with federal immigration detainers. The Legislature further 53 

finds it is an important state interest that, in the interest of 54 

public safety and adherence to federal law, this state support 55 

federal immigration enforcement efforts and ensure that such 56 

efforts are not impeded or thwarted by state or local laws, 57 

policies, practices, procedures, or customs. State agencies, 58 

local governments, and their officials who encourage persons 59 

unlawfully present in the United States to locate within this 60 

state or who shield such persons from personal responsibility 61 

for their unlawful actions breach this duty and should be held 62 

accountable. 63 

 908.002  Definitions.—As used in this chapter, the term: 64 

 (1)  "Federal immigration agency" means the United States 65 

Department of Homeland Security, or its successor agency, and 66 

any of its divisions, including United States Immigration and 67 

Customs Enforcement, United States Customs and Border 68 

Protection, or any other federal agency charged with the 69 

enforcement of immigration law. The term includes an official or 70 

employee of such agency. 71 

 (2)  "Immigration detainer" means a facially sufficient 72 

written or electronic request issued by a federal immigration 73 

agency using that agency's official form to request that another 74 

law enforcement agency detain a person based on an inquiry into 75 

the person's immigration status or an alleged violation of a 76 

civil immigration law, including detainers issued pursuant to 8 77 

U.S.C. ss. 1226 and 1357. For purposes of this subsection, an 78 

Page 21



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 4 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

immigration detainer is deemed facially sufficient if: 79 

 (a)  The federal immigration agency's official form is 80 

complete and indicates on its face that the federal immigration 81 

official has reason to believe that the person to be detained 82 

may not have been lawfully admitted to the United States or 83 

otherwise is not lawfully present in the United States; or 84 

 (b)  The federal immigration agency's official form is 85 

incomplete and fails to indicate on its face that the federal 86 

immigration official has reason to believe that the person to be 87 

detained may not have been lawfully admitted to the United 88 

States or otherwise is not lawfully present in the United 89 

States, but is supported by an accompanying affidavit or order 90 

that indicates the federal immigration official has reason to 91 

believe that the person to be detained may not have been 92 

lawfully admitted to the United States or otherwise is not 93 

lawfully present in the United States. 94 

 (3)  "Inmate" means a person in the custody of a law 95 

enforcement agency. 96 

 (4)  "Law enforcement agency" means an agency in this state 97 

charged with enforcement of state, county, municipal, or federal 98 

laws or with managing custody of detained persons in the state 99 

and includes municipal police departments, sheriff's offices, 100 

state police departments, campus police departments, and the 101 

Department of Corrections. The term includes an official or 102 

employee of such agency. 103 

 (5)  "Local governmental entity" means any county, 104 

Page 22



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 5 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

municipality, or other political subdivision of this state. The 105 

term includes a person holding public office or having official 106 

duties as a representative, agent, or employee of such entity. 107 

 (6)  "Sanctuary policy" means a law, policy, practice, 108 

procedure, or custom adopted or permitted by a state entity, law 109 

enforcement agency, or local governmental entity which 110 

contravenes 8 U.S.C. s. 1373(a) or (b), or which knowingly 111 

prohibits or impedes a law enforcement agency from communicating 112 

or cooperating with a federal immigration agency with respect to 113 

federal immigration enforcement, including, but not limited to, 114 

limiting or preventing a state entity, local governmental 115 

entity, or law enforcement agency from: 116 

 (a)  Complying with an immigration detainer; 117 

 (b)  Complying with a request from a federal immigration 118 

agency to notify the agency before the release of an inmate or 119 

detainee in the custody of the state entity, local governmental 120 

entity, or law enforcement agency. 121 

 (c)  Providing a federal immigration agency access to an 122 

inmate for interview; 123 

 (d)  Initiating an immigration status investigation; or 124 

 (e)  Providing a federal immigration agency with an 125 

inmate's incarceration status or release date. 126 

 (7)  "Sanctuary policymaker" means a state or local elected 127 

official, or an appointed official of a local governmental 128 

entity governing body, who has voted for, allowed to be 129 

implemented, or voted against repeal or prohibition of a 130 

Page 23



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 6 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

sanctuary policy. 131 

 (8)  "State entity" means the state or any office, board, 132 

bureau, commission, department, branch, division, or institution 133 

thereof. The term includes a person holding public office or 134 

having official duties as a representative, agent, or employee 135 

of such entity. 136 

 908.003  Sanctuary policies prohibited.—A state entity, law 137 

enforcement agency, or local governmental entity may not adopt 138 

or have in effect a sanctuary policy. 139 

 908.004  Cooperation with federal immigration authorities.— 140 

 (1)  Except as otherwise expressly prohibited by federal 141 

law, a state entity, local governmental entity, or law 142 

enforcement agency may not prohibit or in any way restrict 143 

another state entity, local governmental entity, or law 144 

enforcement agency from taking any of the following actions with 145 

respect to information regarding a person's immigration status: 146 

 (a)  Sending such information to or requesting or receiving 147 

such information from a federal immigration agency for purposes 148 

of this chapter. 149 

 (b)  Maintaining such information for purposes of this 150 

chapter. 151 

 (c)  Exchanging such information with a federal immigration 152 

agency or another state entity, local governmental entity, or 153 

law enforcement agency for purposes of this chapter. 154 

 (d)  Using such information to determine eligibility for a 155 

public benefit, service, or license pursuant to federal or state 156 

Page 24



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 7 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

law or an ordinance or regulation of a local governmental 157 

entity. 158 

 (e)  Using such information to verify a claim of residence 159 

or domicile if a determination of residence or domicile is 160 

required under federal or state law, an ordinance or regulation 161 

of any local governmental entity, or a judicial order issued 162 

pursuant to a civil or criminal proceeding in this state. 163 

 (f)  Using such information to confirm the identity of a 164 

person who is detained by a law enforcement agency. 165 

 (2)  A state entity, local governmental entity, or law 166 

enforcement agency shall fully comply with and, to the full 167 

extent permitted by law, support the enforcement of federal 168 

immigration law. This subsection is only applicable to an 169 

official, representative, agent, or employee of such entity or 170 

agency when he or she is acting within the scope of his or her 171 

official duties or within the scope of his or her employment.  172 

 (3)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, if a law 173 

enforcement agency has received verification from a federal 174 

immigration agency that an alien in the law enforcement agency's 175 

custody is unlawfully present in the United States, the law 176 

enforcement agency may securely transport such alien to a 177 

federal facility in this state or to another point of transfer 178 

to federal custody outside the jurisdiction of the law 179 

enforcement agency. A law enforcement agency shall obtain 180 

judicial authorization before securely transporting such alien 181 

to a point of transfer outside of this state. 182 

Page 25



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 8 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

 (4)  This section does not require a state entity, local 183 

governmental entity, or law enforcement agency to provide a 184 

federal immigration agency with information related to a victim 185 

of or a witness to a criminal offense if such victim or witness 186 

timely and in good faith responds to the entity's or agency's 187 

request for information and cooperation in the investigation or 188 

prosecution of such offense. 189 

 (5)  A state entity, local governmental entity, or law 190 

enforcement agency that, pursuant to subsection (4), withholds 191 

information regarding the immigration information of a victim of 192 

or witness to a criminal offense shall document such victim's or 193 

witness's cooperation in the entity's or agency's investigative 194 

records related to the offense and shall retain such records for 195 

at least 10 years for the purpose of audit, verification, or 196 

inspection by the Auditor General. 197 

 908.005   Reimbursement of costs.— 198 

 (1)  A board of county commissioners may adopt an ordinance 199 

requiring a person detained pursuant to a lawful and valid 200 

immigration detainer to reimburse the county for any expenses 201 

incurred in detaining the person pursuant to the immigration 202 

detainer. A person detained pursuant to an immigration detainer 203 

is not liable under this section if a federal immigration agency 204 

determines that the immigration detainer was improperly issued. 205 

 (2)  The state hereby authorizes a local governmental 206 

entity or law enforcement agency to petition the Federal 207 

Government for reimbursement of the entity's or agency's 208 

Page 26



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 9 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

detention costs and the costs of compliance with federal 209 

requests when such costs are incurred in support of the 210 

enforcement of federal immigration law. 211 

 908.006  Duty to report.— 212 

 (1)  An official, representative, agent, or employee of a 213 

state entity, local governmental entity, or law enforcement 214 

agency shall promptly report a known or probable violation of 215 

this chapter to the Attorney General or the state attorney 216 

having jurisdiction over the entity or agency. 217 

 (2)  An official, representative, agent, or employee of a 218 

state entity, local governmental entity, or law enforcement 219 

agency who willfully and knowingly fails to report a known or 220 

probable violation of this chapter may be suspended or removed 221 

from office pursuant to general law and s. 7, Art. IV of the 222 

State Constitution. 223 

 (3)  A state entity, local governmental entity, or law 224 

enforcement agency may not dismiss, discipline, take any adverse 225 

personnel action as defined in s. 112.3187(3) against, or take 226 

any adverse action described in s. 112.3187(4)(b) against, an 227 

official, representative, agent, or employee for complying with 228 

subsection (1). 229 

 (4)  Section 112.3187 of the Whistle-blower's Act applies 230 

to an official, representative, agent, or employee of a state 231 

entity, local governmental entity, or law enforcement agency who 232 

is dismissed, disciplined, subject to any adverse personnel 233 

action as defined in s. 112.3187(3) or any adverse action 234 

Page 27



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 10 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

described in s. 112.3187(4)(b), or denied employment because he 235 

or she complied with subsection (1). 236 

 908.007  Enforcement; penalties.— 237 

 (1)  The state attorney for the county in which a state 238 

entity is headquartered or in which a local governmental entity 239 

or law enforcement agency is located has primary responsibility 240 

and authority for investigating credible reports of a violation 241 

of this chapter. The results of an investigation by a state 242 

attorney shall be provided to the Attorney General in a timely 243 

manner. 244 

 (2)  The Attorney General, the state attorney who conducted 245 

the investigation, or a state attorney ordered by the Governor 246 

pursuant to s. 27.14 may institute proceedings in circuit court 247 

to enjoin a state entity, local governmental entity, or law 248 

enforcement agency found to be in violation of this chapter. The 249 

court shall expedite an action under this section, including 250 

setting a hearing at the earliest practicable date. 251 

 (3)  Upon adjudication by the court or as provided in a 252 

consent decree declaring that a state entity, local governmental 253 

entity, or law enforcement agency has violated this chapter, the 254 

court shall enjoin the unlawful sanctuary policy and order that 255 

such entity or agency pay a civil penalty to the state of at 256 

least $1,000 but not more than $5,000 for each day that the 257 

sanctuary policy was in effect before the injunction was 258 

granted. The court shall have continuing jurisdiction over the 259 

parties and subject matter and may enforce its orders with 260 

Page 28



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 11 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

imposition of additional civil penalties as provided for in this 261 

section and contempt proceedings as provided by law. 262 

 (4)  An order approving a consent decree or granting an 263 

injunction or civil penalties pursuant to subsection (3) must 264 

include written findings of fact that describe with specificity 265 

the existence and nature of the sanctuary policy and that 266 

identify each sanctuary policymaker who voted for, allowed to be 267 

implemented, or voted against repeal or prohibition of the 268 

sanctuary policy. The court shall provide a copy of the consent 269 

decree or order granting an injunction or civil penalties that 270 

contains the written findings required by this subsection to the 271 

Governor within 30 days after the date of rendition. A sanctuary 272 

policymaker identified in an order approving a consent decree or 273 

granting an injunction or civil penalties may be suspended or 274 

removed from office pursuant to general law and s. 7, Art. IV of 275 

the State Constitution. 276 

 (5)  A state entity, local governmental entity, or law 277 

enforcement agency ordered to pay a civil penalty pursuant to 278 

subsection (3) shall remit payment to the Chief Financial 279 

Officer, who shall deposit such payment into the General Revenue 280 

Fund. 281 

 (6)  Except as required by applicable law, public funds may 282 

not be used to defend or reimburse a sanctuary policymaker or an 283 

official, representative, agent, or employee of a state entity, 284 

local governmental entity, or law enforcement agency who 285 

knowingly and willfully violates this chapter. 286 

Page 29



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 12 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

 908.008  Resident complaint; penalties.—The Attorney 287 

General shall prescribe and provide through the Department of 288 

Legal Affairs' website the format for a person to submit a 289 

complaint alleging a violation of this chapter. This section 290 

does not prohibit the filing of an anonymous complaint or a 291 

complaint not submitted in the prescribed format. 292 

 908.009  Civil cause of action for personal injury or 293 

wrongful death attributed to a sanctuary policy; trial by jury; 294 

required written findings.— 295 

 (1)  A person injured by the tortious acts or omissions of 296 

an alien unlawfully present in the United States, or the 297 

personal representative of a person killed by the tortious acts 298 

or omissions of an alien unlawfully present in the United 299 

States, has a cause of action for damages against a state 300 

entity, local governmental entity, or law enforcement agency in 301 

violation of ss. 908.003 and 908.004 upon proof by the greater 302 

weight of the evidence of: 303 

 (a)  The existence of a sanctuary policy in violation of s. 304 

908.003; and 305 

 (b)  A failure to comply with any provision of s. 908.004 306 

resulting in such alien's having access to the person injured or 307 

killed when the tortious acts or omissions occurred. 308 

 (2)  A cause of action brought pursuant to subsection (1) 309 

may not be brought against any person who holds public office, 310 

or has official duties as a representative, agent, or employee 311 

of a state entity, local governmental entity, or law enforcement 312 

Page 30



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 13 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

agency, including a sanctuary policymaker. 313 

 (3)  Trial by jury is a matter of right in an action 314 

brought under this section. 315 

 (4)  A final judgment entered in favor of a plaintiff in a 316 

cause of action brought pursuant to this section must include 317 

written findings of fact that describe with specificity the 318 

existence and nature of the sanctuary policy in violation of s. 319 

908.003 and that identify each sanctuary policymaker who voted 320 

for, allowed to be implemented, or voted against repeal or 321 

prohibition of the sanctuary policy. The court shall provide a 322 

copy of the final judgment containing the written findings 323 

required by this subsection to the Governor within 30 days after 324 

the date of rendition. A sanctuary policymaker identified in a 325 

final judgment may be suspended or removed from office pursuant 326 

to general law and s. 7, Art. IV of the State Constitution. 327 

 (5)  This chapter does not create a private cause of action 328 

against a state entity, local governmental entity, or law 329 

enforcement agency that complies with this chapter. 330 

 908.0010  Implementation.—This chapter shall be implemented 331 

to the fullest extent permitted by federal law regulating 332 

immigration and the legislative findings and intent declared in 333 

s. 908.001. 334 

 Section 3.  A sanctuary policy, as defined in s. 908.002, 335 

Florida Statutes, as created by this act, that is in effect on 336 

the effective date of this act must be repealed within 90 days 337 

after that date. 338 

Page 31



        
 

CS/CS/HB 675, Engrossed 1  2016 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0675-03-e1 

Page 14 of 14 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

 Section 4.  Sections 908.007 and 908.009, Florida Statutes, 339 

as created by this act, shall take effect October 1, 2016, and, 340 

except as otherwise expressly provided in this act, this act 341 

shall take effect July 1, 2016. 342 

 343 

Page 32



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Presentation on Canterwoods Assisted Living Facility (ALF)  (a.k.a. Dunn ALF/Dixie Manor)  David Moon 
  

Page 33



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

        PUBLIC HEARING     DATE:  February 17, 2016 
          ANNEXATION     FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL     EXHIBITS: Supporting Information  
   X    OTHER: Presentation                  Architectural Renderings 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
SUBJECT: PRESENTATION ON CANTERWOODS ASSISTED LIVING 

FACILITY (AKA DUNN ALF\DIXIE MANOR) 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
Future owner and developer of the Canterwoods Assisted Living Facility (125-bed facility) will present 
proposed architectural design of ALF building and the proposed ALF services it plans to provide at its 
proposed Apopka site.   The proposed building remains at no higher than two stories and complies with 
setback and development standards previously approved by City Council.  The proposed building is 
6,000 sq. ft. larger than the previous approved in the Dunn\Dixie Manor ALF Master Plan. 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: MJM Associates 
 
PROJECT LOCATION: North Of Old Dixie Highway and east of Richard L. Mark Drive 
 
HISTORY: City Council approved PUD zoning and Master Plan\Preliminary 

Development Plan for a 125-bed (max.) assisted living facility on April 2, 
2014   

 
FUTURE LAND USE 
DESIGNATION:  Residential-Medium Density 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Planned Unit Development 
 
 
TRACT SIZE:   6.98 +\- acres 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Not Applicable 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director   City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director   Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief  

Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the annual fuel contract renewal with Petroleum Traders Corporation. 
  

Page 41



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER: 
 

 

 

SUBJECT: GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL PURCHASE AND DELIVERY CONTRACT 
  

Request:     APPROVE THE ANNUAL FUEL CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH PETROLEUM 

TRADERS CORPORATION. 
 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

On March 18, 2015, the City Council approved a contract for the purchase and delivery of gasoline and diesel 

fuel.  The contract term was for one year with the possibility of three (3) additional one-year extensions.  The 

first year will expire April 1, 2016. 
 

Staff recommends a one-year extension of the existing contract.  Below is the pricing information. 
 

Gallon Quantities Price +/- the OPIS Average Price per Gallon 

Small Gas or Diesel Tanker: 100-4,000 gal quantities +$0.1080 

Full Load 87 Gas Tanker: 8,000 - 8,500 gal quantities -$0.0098 

Full Load Diesel Tanker: 7,500 - 8,500 gal quantities +$0.0005 

Split Load (Gas and Diesel): 7,500 - 8,500 gal quantities Gas -$0.0098/ Diesel +$0.0005 
 

The price per gallon indicated above, and is then added to the Oil Price Information Service (OPIS) average 

price per gallon, which is posted weekly for the Orlando Terminal (#4), and includes all grades of unleaded 

gasoline, and diesel fuel #2, for the inclusive price. There is no change in the above pricing. 
 

 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Divisions budget annually for fuel usage. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the annual fuel contract renewal with Petroleum Traders Corporation. 
 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 
Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 

Public Services Director  

Recreation Director 

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 

Page 42



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Authorize the purchase of two vehicles for the Recreation Department. 
  

Page 43



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER: 
 

 

 

SUBJECT: TWO NEW VEHICLES FOR THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
  

Request:     AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF TWO VEHICLES FOR THE RECREATION 

DEPARTMENT, ONE FROM DON REID FORD FOR $15,724.00 AND ONE 

FROM MULLINAX FORD FOR $27,488.18, AND SURPLUS THE RETIRED 

UNIT. 
 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The purchase of the following vehicles for the Recreation Department. The pricing comes from the 

Florida Sheriffs Association Contract Bid Number 15-23-0904 and the local dealership.  The price 

quotes are as follows: 
 

Description Division Qty Mullinax Don Reid Duvall Ford 

Ford Focus Rec 1 $16,600.74 $15,724.00* N/A 

Ford Explorer Rec 1 $27,488.18 N/A $26,760.00* 

   * Per Sheriffs Contract * Per Sheriffs Contract 

 

The Explorer is for the Recreation Director and the Focus is to replace Unit 10-0425, which is a 1995 

Crown Victoria.  Mullinax is higher than the lowest bidder on the Explorer, but is a local business in the 

City limits and is within the limit of the three percent for Local Preference.  
 

 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the General Fund FY16 Budget (001-3612-572.6400) and additional funds from 

the 001-3613-572.6400 as a result of savings experienced from the prior bus purchase. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize Fleet Maintenance to proceed with the purchase of one vehicle from Don Reid Ford in the 

amount of $15,724.00 and one from Mullinax Ford in the amount $27,488.18, and surplus the retired 

unit. 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 

Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 

Public Services Director  

Recreation Director 

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 Page 44



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Authorize the Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement for Marden Ridge. 
  

Page 45



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 

       PUBLIC HEARING     FROM: Community Development 

      SPECIAL REPORTS                                                       EXHIBITS:  Agreement   

      OTHER:                                              Vicinity Map 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: MARDEN RIDGE - CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

 

Request: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE 

CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT FOR MARDEN 

RIDGE 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

  

The City’s standard Capacity Facility Fees Payment Agreement has been prepared for Marden 

Ridge, located between S.R. 451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of 

S.R. 414. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
      

Not applicable  
 

________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement for 

Marden Ridge. 
________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer   Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)   HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director  Police Chief 

 

Page 46



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

MARDEN RIDGE - CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

PAGE 2 

 

Marden Ridge Plat 
Emerson Point Associates, LLLP 

MMI Development, Inc. c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq. 
42.17 +/- Acres 

Parcel ID #:  17-21-28-0000-00-029 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 

Subject 
Property 

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Authorize the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe Reserve, Phase 2. 
  

Page 54



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 

       PUBLIC HEARING     FROM: Community Development 

      SPECIAL REPORTS                                                       EXHIBITS:  Vicinity Map 

      OTHER:                                                Agreement 

          
________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: POE RESERVE, PHASE 2 (42 LOTS)  

 

Request: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE 

SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

  

The City’s standard Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement has been prepared for Poe Reserve, 

Phase 2, located south of North Orange Blossom Trail, west of State Road 451. 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
      

Not applicable  
 

________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe 

Reserve, Phase 2. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer   Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)   HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director  Police Chief 

  

Page 55



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

POE RESERVE, PHASE 2 - SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT 

PAGE 2 

 

 

 

Poe Reserve, Phase 2 

Owner: Poe Reserve, LLC 

13.52 +/- Acres 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

  

 

Subject Property 

Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Authorize the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe Reserve, Phase 3 
  

Page 86



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 

       PUBLIC HEARING     FROM: Community Development 

      SPECIAL REPORTS                                                       EXHIBITS:  Vicinity Map 

      OTHER:                                                Agreement 

          
________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: POE RESERVE, PHASE 3 (17 LOTS)  

 

Request: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE 

SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

  

The City’s standard Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement has been prepared for Poe Reserve, 

Phase 3, located south of North Orange Blossom Trail, west of State Road 451. 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
      

Not applicable  
 

________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe 

Reserve, Phase 3. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer   Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)   HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director  Police Chief 

  

Page 87



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

POE RESERVE, PHASE 3 - SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT 

PAGE 2 

 

 

 

Poe Reserve, Phase 3 

Owner: Poe Reserve, LLC 

4.96 +/- Acres 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

  

 

Subject Property 

Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Authorize a donation to the Kid's House Children’s Advocacy Center.     
 

  

Page 118



CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL  

X _ CONSENT AGENDA            MEETING OF: February 17, 2016  

___ PUBLIC HEARING            FROM:  Police Department  
 _   SPECIAL REPORTS            EXHIBITS:  Request Memo  

     OTHER:  _______________  

 

 

SUBJECT:  $500.00 EXPENDITURE FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS   
  

Request:  AUTHORIZE A $500.00 DONATION FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST 

FUNDS TO KID’S HOUSE CHILDRENS ADVOCACY CENTER.  

   

 

SUMMARY:  

  

The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 
Fund in the amount of $500.00 to be donated to Kid’s House of Seminole County. Kid’s House is a nonprofit 

organization that collaborates with all agencies of law enforcement, the state attorney's office, medical 
personnel, child protection professionals, social workers, and licensed mental health counselors to respond 

to incidents of child abuse and neglect. The team provides assistance with cases, shares information and 

ideas, assists with prosecution, and ultimately determines the best course to provide emotional and 
psychological well-being for the child and family.  

  

Law Enforcement Trust Funds may be used to support community-based programs. In accordance with trust 
fund rules, a local law enforcement agency may use a percentage of the total of shared monies received for 

the costs associated with drug abuse treatment, drug and crime prevention education, or other nonprofit 
community-based programs or activities that are formally approved by the chief law enforcement officer. 

The Apopka Police Department supports initiatives that protect and defend vulnerable youth within Central 
Florida. These expenditures are supportive of and consistent with the Department’s support of local 

activities.  

   

 

FUNDING SOURCE:  
  

Law Enforcement Trust Fund.  

     

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
  

Authorize the Finance Department to disburse $500.00 from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund.  

   

DISTRIBUTION  
Mayor Kilsheimer        Finance Director    Public Services Director  
Commissioners         HR Director      Recreation Director  
City Administrator        IT Director      City Clerk   
Community Development Director    Police Chief      Fire Chief  

Page 119



City of Apopka 
Police Department 

112 E. 6
th

 Street Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

Date:  February 17, 2016 

 

To:  Honorable Joseph E. Kilsheimer and Commissioners 

 

RE:  LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 

 

 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law 

Enforcement Trust Fund in the amount of $500.00 to be donated to Kid’s House of 

Seminole County. Kid’s House is a nonprofit organization that collaborates with all 

agencies of law enforcement, the state attorney's office, medical personnel, child 

protection professionals, social workers, and licensed mental health counselors to 

respond to incidents of child abuse and neglect. The team provides assistance with 

cases, shares information and ideas, assists with prosecution, and ultimately determines 

the best course to provide emotional and psychological well-being for the child and 

family. 

 

Law Enforcement Trust Funds may be used to support community-based programs. In 

accordance with trust fund rules, a local law enforcement agency may use a percentage 

of the total of shared monies received for the costs associated with drug abuse 

treatment, drug and crime prevention education, or other nonprofit community-based 

programs or activities that are formally approved by the chief law enforcement officer. 

The Apopka Police Department supports initiatives that protect and defend vulnerable 

youth within Central Florida. These expenditures are supportive of and consistent with 

the Department’s support of local activities. 

 

Respectfully, 

 
Michael McKinley 

Chief of Police         

 

Page 120



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Approval of Dr. Charles E. Dorfman’s  Lease Renewal.  
  

Page 121



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
  

 

  x   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  February 17, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:               City Clerk 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:     Lease Agreement 

       OTHER:   
  

 

SUBJECT: LEASE RENEWAL FOR DR. CHARLES E. DORFMAN, OFFICE BUILDING 

LOCATED AT 405 S PARK AVENUE. 
 

Request: APPROVE THE LEASE AGREEMENT RENEWAL WITH CHARLES E. DORFMAN, 

M.D., DIVISION OF ORLANDO PHYSICIAN SPECIALISTS, LLC, OFFICE 

BUILDING LOCATED AT 405 S PARK AVENUE, FOR AN ADDITIONAL ONE (1) 

YEAR, AND EXECUTION OF ALL ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

The one year Lease Agreement with Dr. Charles E. Dorfman, for the office building at 405 South Park 

Avenue, expires on February 29, 2016. Dr. Dorfman has requested the City Council grant a renewal of 

said lease at the same fee of $1,250.00, plus sales tax, as paid in 2015. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 

N/A   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the renewal of the Lease Agreement with Charles E. Dorfman, Division of Orlando Physician 

Specialists, LLC, for the office building located at 405 S Park Avenue, for an additional one (1) year, and 

authorize the Mayor, or his designee, to execute all documents in accordance with the lease. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

Page 122



1 

 

LEASE 1 

 2 
THIS LEASE, made and executed this ____ day of __________________, 20_____, by 3 

and between the CITY OF APOPKA, the Lessor, hereinafter called the “CITY,” of the County of 4 
Orange and State of Florida, and Charles E. Dorfman, M.D., Division of Orlando Physician 5 
Specialists, LLC with its principal address located at 1561 West Fairbanks Avenue, Suite 100, 6 

Winter Park, Florida 32789, the Lessee, hereinafter called the “TENANT,” which term shall 7 
include their heirs and assigns, executors, and administrators, wherever the context so requires or 8 
admits.  9 
 10 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained, it is agreed by 11 

and between CITY and TENANT as follows: 12 
 13 

1. Premises: 14 
 15 

Subject to the terms and provisions of this Lease, CITY hereby leases to TENANT and 16 
TENANT hereby lease from CITY all that real estate lying and being in Orange County, State of 17 

Florida, described as follows (hereinafter, the “Leased Premises”):  18 
 19 
THE FIRST FLOOR OF THAT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 20 

THE SOUTH 29 FEET OF THE SOUTH 24 FEET OF THE NORTH 57 FEET OF 21 
LOTS 35 & 36, BLOCK F, TOWN OF APOPKA AS RECORDED IN PLAT 22 

BOOK A, PAGE 87, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 23 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS 405 SOUTH PARK AVENUE, APOPKA, 24 
FLORIDA  32703 25 

 26 

2. Term: 27 
 28 

Commencement and ending date of term: March 1, 2016 – February 28, 2017.  This Lease 29 

may be renewed for successive one-year terms pursuant to mutual agreement between CITY and 30 
TENANT.  Lease renewals are subject to modification of any of the terms of this Lease including 31 

required rental payments.   32 
 33 

3.  Rent: 34 
 35 

TENANT shall pay to CITY for the term of this Lease monthly rent in the sum of ONE 36 
THOUSAND TWO-HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($1250.00) per month, plus applicable sales 37 
tax.  Rent shall be paid on the first day of each month that this Lease is in effect.  No security 38 

deposit is required.  39 
 40 

4. Notice, Address: 41 
 42 

All rent payable and notice given under this Lease to the CITY shall be paid and given at 43 
120 E Main St., Apopka, 32703 or such other place as the CITY shall specify in writing. All notices 44 
given under this Lease to the TENANT or any assignee or sublease shall be given at the Leased 45 

Page 123



2 

 

Premises. Any notice properly mailed by registered mail, postage, and fee prepaid, shall be deemed 1 

delivered 48 hours after mailed.  2 
 3 

5. Use of Premises:  4 
 5 

a. TENANT shall use and occupy the Leased Premises solely for operation of a 6 
medical office and associated commercial applications and for no other use unless 7 
agreed to in advance by CITY in writing.  Any other use shall constitute a default 8 
under the terms of this Lease. 9 

 10 
b. The TENANT will not use or permit the “Leased Premises” to be used for any 11 

illegal or improper purposes, nor permit any disturbance, noise, or annoyance 12 
whatsoever, detrimental to the premises or to the comfort of its neighbors. 13 

 14 

6. Insurance: 15 
 16 

a. Tenant is self-insured and shall provide insurance coverage satisfactory to the CITY 17 

pursuant to TENANT’s self-insurance program. 18 
 19 
b. Each policy shall contain a provision requiring at least thirty (30) days notice to 20 

CITY before cancellation thereof for any reason.  The original policy of insurance shall be 21 
delivered to and held by CITY.   22 

 23 

c. Lessee further agrees to obtain and maintain in force a standard fire and extended 24 
coverage insurance policy on the contents of the Leased Premises for his benefit and a fire legal 25 

liability insurance policy in the amount of $100,000.00.  26 

 27 

 28 
d. The parties shall be liable for the performance of their respective obligations or 29 

responsibilities under this Lease.  The liability of the CITY shall be limited, in any action whether 30 

in contract or in tort, in accordance with Section 728.28, Florida Statutes.  31 

 32 

e. CITY shall maintain property insurance on the Lease Premises and any structure or 33 
improvements made to or installed on the property by Lessor throughout the term of this Lease.  34 

 35 

7. Indemnification:  36 

TENANT agree to the fullest extent permitted by law and shall at all times indemnify, 37 

defend and hold the CITY harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, claim, suit, damage, 38 

charge or expense which the CITY may suffer, sustain, incur or in any way be subjected to, on 39 

account of death of or injury to any person whomsoever and damage to or loss of or destruction of 40 

any property whatsoever, arising from, or in any way connected upon or at the Leased Premises, 41 

or the occupancy or use by TENANT of the Leased Premises or any part thereof, or occasioned 42 

wholly or in part by any act or commission of the TENANT, TENANT’s employees, customers, 43 

Page 124



3 

 

or other parties not under the direct supervision of the CITY.  In case CITY shall be made a party 1 

to any claim or litigation for the death or injury to person or damage to or loss of property 2 

commenced by TENANT or anyone else against CITY arising out of the TENANT’s use or 3 

occupancy of the Leased Premises, then the TENANT shall defend, indemnify and hold CITY 4 

harmless and shall pay all costs, expenses and reasonable attorney’s fees of the CITY’s attorney 5 

incurred or paid by the CITY in connection with such claim or litigation within thirty (30) days of 6 

receipt of any invoice pertaining thereto. 7 

8. Taxes and Assessments: 8 
 9 
CITY shall be responsible to pay real estate taxes and assessments from time to time levied 10 

or charged against the Leased Premises.  All sales, use or rental tax on rents due hereunder and on 11 
personal property taxes charged or levied against TENANT’s furniture, fixtures and equipment in 12 

the Leased Premises shall be timely paid by TENANT. 13 

 14 

9. Repair and Care of Premises: 15 

 16 
Maintenance by TENANT.  TENANT shall, at TENANT’s own expense, keep and 17 

maintain Leased Premises in good order and repair throughout the Lease Term and any extensions 18 

thereof.  CITY will maintain the exterior of the building.  TENANT’s responsibilities and expense 19 
incurred under this subparagraph for periodic maintenance and/or replacement shall include all of 20 
the following: 21 

 22 
i. TENANT will keep the Leased Premises in good and substantial repair and 23 

clean condition. 24 

 25 

ii. TENANT will store all refuse or trash in or on the Leased Premises in refuse 26 
containers provided by the CITY.  Hazardous materials are not permitted 27 

anywhere on the Premises.   28 

 29 

iii. TENANT shall pay for all utilities used on the Leased Premises. 30 

 31 

iv. TENANT will permit the CITY, or its agents and/or employees, at all 32 

reasonable times, to enter the Leased Premises and view the condition thereof. 33 

 34 

v. TENANT shall be responsible for all plumbing repairs costing less than or equal 35 
to TWO-HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($250.00). 36 

 37 

Maintenance by CITY.   38 

 39 
i. CITY will maintain the yard of the Leased Premises.  40 
 41 
ii. CITY shall be responsible for all structural, heating, cooling, and roof repairs.  42 

Page 125



4 

 

 1 

10. Alterations to Leased Premises 2 
 3 

TENANT shall not alter the Leased Premises without permission in writing from the City.  4 

Altering, damaging, or destroying the building situated on the above-described property shall be a 5 
trespass both civil and criminal, and may be restrained by injunction, and shall also subject the 6 
TENANT to an action for damages, and at the option of the CITY, shall immediately terminate 7 
this lease.  8 
 9 

11. Compliance with Laws and Regulations: 10 
 11 
TENANT shall comply with all Federal, State, County and City laws, ordinances, rules and 12 

regulations affecting or respecting the use or occupancy of the Leased Premises by the TENANT.  13 

TENANT shall comply with all rules which have been or may be adopted hereafter by CITY for 14 
the health, safety, protections, welfare and orderly management of the building, its TENANT, and 15 

the surrounding neighborhood.   16 
 17 

12. Assignment and Subletting: 18 
 19 
a. Assignment. 20 

 21 
TENANT shall not assign this Lease without first securing CITY’s written consent.  22 

Consent shall be in the sole discretion of CITY.  The consent of CITY to any assignment 23 
shall not constitute a waiver of the necessity for such consent to any subsequent 24 
assignment.   25 

 26 

b. Subletting.  27 

 28 
TENANT shall not sublet all or any part of the Leased Premises without first securing 29 
CITY’s written consent.  Consent shall be in the sole discretion of CITY.   30 

 31 

13. Redelivery of Premises: 32 
 33 
TENANT shall, on the expiration of this Lease, deliver up the Leased Premises in as good 34 

order and condition as it is at the signing of this Lease Agreement, reasonable use and ordinary 35 

wear and tear thereof and damage by fire or other unavoidable casualty, condemnation or 36 
appropriation excepted, and TENANT shall promptly surrender all keys to the Leased Premises to 37 
CITY.   38 

 39 

Upon the expiration of this Lease, any fixtures and permanent improvements placed upon 40 
the above-described property shall become the property of the CITY, and thereupon CITY shall 41 
be entitled to the immediate possession of same.  42 

 43 
 44 

 45 

Page 126



5 

 

14. Remedies for Failure to Pay: 1 

 2 
If any rent, utilities, shared expenses, taxes, insurance, or other sums payable by TENANT 3 

as required by this Lease shall not be paid when due, CITY shall have the option after ten (10) 4 

days written notice to: 5 
 6 
a. Terminate this lease, resume possession of the property for its own account and 7 

recover immediately from the TENANT the difference between the total rent 8 
specified for the full term of this Lease and the total amount of rent already paid by 9 

TENANT; or 10 
 11 

b. Resume possession and re-lease or rent the property for the remainder of the term 12 
for the account of the TENANT, and recover from the TENANT at the end of the 13 

term or at the time each payment of rent comes due under this lease, as the CITY 14 
may choose, the difference between the rent specified in the lease and the rent 15 

received on the re-leasing or renting; or 16 
 17 

c. Pursue any other remedy allowed by law. 18 

 19 

15.  Cancellation of Lease by CITY: 20 

  If the Leased Premises is needed for expansion or improvements to the adjacent streets or 21 
roads, this lease shall become null and void upon six (6) months written notice from the CITY to 22 
the Tenant.  Tenant shall vacate the premises at the end of the six (6) months. 23 
 24 

16. Remedies for Breach of Agreement: 25 

 26 
If either the CITY or the TENANT shall fail to perform, or shall breach any agreement of 27 

this Lease, and such failure or breach continues for ten (10) days after written notice to the party 28 

giving notice, said party may institute action in a court of competent jurisdiction to terminate this 29 
Lease or to complete performance of this agreement.  30 

 31 

17. Entire Agreement: 32 
 33 
This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 34 

oral or written agreements.  No waiver, modifications, additions or addendum to this Lease 35 
Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by both the CITY and TENANT.  36 

 37 

18. Attorney’s Fees; Costs; Venue: 38 
 39 

In the event that either party hereto shall bring an action or proceeding for an alleged breach 40 
of any provision of this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, as part of such 41 

action or proceeding, reasonable attorney’s fees, paralegal fees, and court costs at both trial and 42 
appellate levels.  For the purpose of any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this 43 

Page 127



6 

 

Lease, the parties hereby irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction and venue of any of the courts of 1 

record of the State of Florida, Orange County. 2 
 3 
 4 

IN WITNESS WEREOF, CITY and TENANT have executed this Lease as of the day and 5 
year and first above written. 6 
 7 
Signed, sealed and delivered    CITY: 8 
In the presence of:    CITY OF APOPKA 9 

 10 
 11 
 12 
Attest:      _________________________________ 13 

      Joe Kilsheimer, Mayor 14 
 15 

________________________ 16 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk     17 

      APPROVED BY APOPKA CITY COUNCIL  18 
      ON _____________________________,20__ 19 
 20 

STATE OF FLORIDA 21 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 22 
 23 
 BEFORE me personally appeared Joe Kilsheimer, to me well known and known to me to 24 
be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to and 25 

before me that they executed said instrument for the purposes therein expressed. 26 

 27 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal, this ___ day of ______________________, 20___. 28 
 29 

  ____________________________ 30 
  Notary Public Signature 31 

   32 
  ____________________________ 33 

  Print name 34 
 35 
  ____________________________ 36 
  Commission Number 37 
 38 

 39 
 40 

 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 

Page 128



7 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered TENANT: Charles E. Dorfman, M.D.,  1 

In the presence of:     Division of Orlando Physician Specialists,  2 
       LLC 3 
 4 

 5 
       __________________________________ 6 
________________________   By:_______________________________ 7 
        8 
________________________   Its: _______________________________ 9 

        10 
 11 
 12 
 13 

 14 

STATE OF FLORIDA 15 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 16 
 17 

 BEFORE me personally appeared _______________________________ to me well 18 
known and known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, 19 
and acknowledged to and before me that they executed said instrument for the purposes therein 20 

expressed. 21 
 22 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal, this ___ day of  ______________________, 20___. 23 
 24 
  ____________________________ 25 

  Notary Public Signature 26 

 27 
   28 
  ____________________________ 29 

  Print name 30 
 31 

  ____________________________ 32 
  Commission Number 33 

 34 

Page 129



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Authorize direction for land purchase on Park Ave.      
  

Page 130



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:          February 17, 2016  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:                            Administration  

         SPECIAL REPORTS            EXHIBITS:  Property Appraiser Location Map 

       OTHER:                         Property Appraiser Information Sheet 
  

 

SUBJECT: PROPERTY LOCATED AT 602 SOUTH PARK AVE. [SITE OF PREVIOUS PARK 

AVENUE COIN LAUNDRY – NOW VACANT]. 
 

Request: DIRECTION FROM THE CITY COUNCIL TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO BEGIN 

DUE DILIGENCE TOWARD THE PURCHASE OF THIS LAND. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

Certain vacant property located at 602 South Park Avenue, in the name of Apopka Property, LLC, belongs to a Linda 
Burns.  Currently the property has a rather large slab of concrete on it but is otherwise vacant and considered blighted 
and within the Community Redevelopment Area [CRA].  Staff spoke with the owner and asked if she would be 
interested in selling; her response was that she is interested. 
 
In past times this property was used as a coin laundry and is somewhat suspect for chemical contamination.  For this 
reason, part of the due diligence staff recommends is the completion of a Phase I environmental assessment. If 
contamination is found, the city would be in a good position to receive Brownfields monetary assistance from the 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection [FDEP] to remediate contamination once ownership is transferred. 
Furthermore, the city has code enforcement liens against the property and believes other encumbrances may exist.  
Therefore, staff believes it prudent to have a title search completed.  Last, an appraisal should be ordered by the city 
to determine market value.  
 
The following is a list of steps in the due diligence assessment of this property and associated approximate costs: 

1. Environmental I Assessment   $8,000.00 
2. Title Search          500.00 
3. Certified Appraisal       2,000.00    

 
       Total Estimated Cost of Due Diligence             $10,500.00 
 
If the property is acquired by the city, the first order of business would be to remove the concrete from the site.  This 
would do quite a bit toward improving the aesthetics.  The site is likely too oddly shaped and small to interest a 
developer; therefore, it could possibly be converted to a public purpose at some date in the future. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

The property is located within the CRA and acquisition may be possible using these funds.  However, the CRA Plan 

document may need to be adjusted to allow acquisition of real property.  If this is the case, the General Fund, more 

specifically reserves, would be the appropriate source. At such time as the Plan document is adjusted, the CRA could 

and should acquire it from the General Fund.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Direct the City Administrator to begin the process of due diligence for purchase of property as explained above. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

Page 131



Property Record - 09-21-28-0196-51-
191

Orange County Property Appraiser   •  
http://www.ocpafl.org

Property Summary

Property Name
Park Avenue Coin Laundry(Vacant)

Names
Apopka Property LLC

Municipality
APK - Apopka

Property Use
1000 - Vacant Commercial

Mailing Address
3001 Ardsley Dr
Orlando, FL 32804-3503

Physical Address
602 S Park Ave
Apopka, FL 32703

QR Code For Mobile Phone

Print Time: 2/11/2016 4:08 PM
Report URL:
http://www.ocpafl.org/Searches/ParcelInfoPrinterFriendly.aspx/PFSettings/AA1AB1AD1AE1BA1BB1BC1BD1BE1CA1CD1CB1CC1CE1DA1DB1EA1EB1EC1ED1EE1EG1EH1EI1MA1ZA1/PDF/False/PID/282109019651191/

Property Record Card for 282109019651191

Page 132



Value and Taxes

Historical Value and Tax Benefits

Tax Year Values Land Building(s) Feature(s) Market Value Assessed Value
2015
2014
2013
2012

 $48,534

 $48,534

 $48,535

 $53,928

+ $0

+ $18,654

+ $15,670

+ $17,044

+ $1,125

+ $2,538

+ $2,538

+ $7,837

= $49,659 (-29%)

= $69,726 (4.5%)

= $66,743 (-15%)

= $78,809

 $49,659 (-29%)

 $69,726 (4.5%)

 $66,743 (-15%)

 $78,809

2015 Taxable Value and Certified Taxes

Taxing Authority Assd Value Exemption Tax Value Millage Rate Taxes %
Public Schools: By State Law (Rle) $49,659 $0 $49,659 4.9700 (-4.90%) $246.81 30 %
Public Schools: By Local Board $49,659 $0 $49,659 3.2480 (0.00%) $161.29 20 %
Orange County (General) $49,659 $0 $49,659 4.4347 (0.00%) $220.22 27 %
City Of Apopka $49,659 $0 $49,659 3.2876 (0.00%) $163.26 20 %
Library - Operating Budget $49,659 $0 $49,659 0.3748 (0.00%) $18.61 2 %
St Johns Water Management District $49,659 $0 $49,659 0.3023 (-4.46%) $15.01 2 %
    16.6174 $825.20  

2015 Non-Ad Valorem Assessments

Levying Authority Assessment Description Units Rate Assessment
CITY OF APOPKA APOPKA STORM - DRAINAGE - (407)703-1731 45.00 $1.00 $45.00
    $45.00

Tax Savings

2016 Estimated Gross Tax Total: $885.10
Your property taxes without exemptions would be $840.10
Your ad-valorem property tax with exemptions is ‒ $840.10
Providing You A Savings Of = $0.00

Property Features

Property Description

TOWN OF APOPKA A/109 LOTS 119 THROUGH 124 (LESS BEG SE COR OF LOT 124 N 50 DEG W 60 FT N 40.88 FT E 46.12 FT S 79.12
FT TO POB & LESS BEG NW COR OF LOT 119 RUN E 70 FT S 59 FT NWLY 91.5 FT TO POB) BLK E

Total Land Area

Print Time: 2/11/2016 4:08 PM
Report URL:
http://www.ocpafl.org/Searches/ParcelInfoPrinterFriendly.aspx/PFSettings/AA1AB1AD1AE1BA1BB1BC1BD1BE1CA1CD1CB1CC1CE1DA1DB1EA1EB1EC1ED1EE1EG1EH1EI1MA1ZA1/PDF/False/PID/282109019651191/

Property Record Card for 282109019651191

Page 133



21,570 sqft (+/-) | 0.50 acres (+/-) GIS Calculated

Land (includes working values)

Land Use Code Zoning Land Units Unit Price Land Value Class Unit Price Class Value
1000 - Vacant Commercial C-1 21570.7 SQUARE FEET $2.25 $48,534 $0.00 $48,534

Buildings (includes working values)

Extra Features (includes working values)

Description Date Built Units Unit Price XFOB Value
PKSP - Parking Space 01/01/1980 9 Unit(s) $500.00 $1,125

Sales

Sales History

Sale Date Sale Amount Instrument # Book/Page Deed Code Seller(s) Buyer(s) Vac/Imp
09/08/2011 $100 20110518716 10275 / 1645 Warranty Deed Prevatt John W Etal Apopka Property LLC Improved

Similar Sales

Address Sale Date Sale Amount $/SQFT Deed Code Beds/Baths Instrument # Book/Page
Kirby Smith Rd 01/27/2016 $2,300,000  Special Warranty 0/0 20160051243 /
14405 Hartzog Rd 01/26/2016 $1,690,000  Special Warranty 0/0 20160047336 /
14405 Hartzog Rd 01/26/2016 $1,110,000  Special Warranty 0/0 20160047333 /
206 E Castle St 01/25/2016 $57,000  Warranty Multiple 0/0 20160055895 /
207 E Lancaster Rd 01/25/2016 $57,000  Warranty Multiple 0/0 20160055895 /
Marden Rd 01/25/2016 $4,824,000  Special Warranty 0/0 20160050316 /
11914 International Dr S 01/20/2016 $85,000  Special Warranty 0/0 20160044028 /
14508 E Colonial Dr 01/14/2016 $800,000  Special Warranty 0/0 20160030879 /
Universal Blvd 01/14/2016 $10,144,300  Special Warranty Multiple 0/0 20160039920 /
Universal Blvd 01/14/2016 $10,144,300  Special Warranty Multiple 0/0 20160039920 /

Services for Location

TPP Accounts At Location

Account Market Value Taxable Value Business Name(s) Business Address
There are no TPP Accounts associated with this parcel.

Schools

Apopka (Middle School)
Principal Kelly Pelletier
Office Phone 407-884-2208
Grades 2014: B  |  2013: C  |  2012: B

Lovell (Elementary)
Principal Mr. Oscar Aguirre
Office Phone 407-884-2235
Grades 2014: C  |  2013: C  |  2012: B

Apopka (High School)
Principal Mr. Douglas J Guthrie
Office Phone 407-905-5500

Print Time: 2/11/2016 4:08 PM
Report URL:
http://www.ocpafl.org/Searches/ParcelInfoPrinterFriendly.aspx/PFSettings/AA1AB1AD1AE1BA1BB1BC1BD1BE1CA1CD1CB1CC1CE1DA1DB1EA1EB1EC1ED1EE1EG1EH1EI1MA1ZA1/PDF/False/PID/282109019651191/

Property Record Card for 282109019651191

Page 134



Grades 2014: A  |  2013: B  |  2012: C

Utilities/Services

Electric Duke Energy
Water Apopka
Recycling Apopka
Trash (Thursday, Monday) Apopka
Yard Waste (Thursday) Apopka

Elected Officials

County Commissioner Bryan Nelson
State Senate Geraldine F. Thompson
US Representative Corrine Brown
State Representative Randolph Bracy
School Board Representative Christine Moore
Orange County Property
Appraiser Rick Singh

Traffic Information

CR 435 Park Av 9,035 Vehicles / Day

Print Time: 2/11/2016 4:08 PM
Report URL:
http://www.ocpafl.org/Searches/ParcelInfoPrinterFriendly.aspx/PFSettings/AA1AB1AD1AE1BA1BB1BC1BD1BE1CA1CD1CB1CC1CE1DA1DB1EA1EB1EC1ED1EE1EG1EH1EI1MA1ZA1/PDF/False/PID/282109019651191/

Property Record Card for 282109019651191

Page 135



Page 136



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2474 – Second Reading – Amending the Apopka Municipal Code, Chapter 26. Glenn A. Irby 
  

Page 137



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER: Ordinance No. 2474 
 

(see attached) 

 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2474 – AMENDING THE APOPKA MUNICIPAL CODE, 

CHAPTER 26, “CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES”  

WATER, SEWER, AND REUSE CAPITAL FACILITY FEES 
  

Request:     ACCEPT SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2474.  

 
 

 

SUMMARY: 

On April 1, 2015, the City Council authorized Reiss Engineering, Inc. to perform a study of the City’s 

water, sewer, and reuse capital facility fees.  A water, sewer and reuse capital facility fees study has not 

been conducted since 2001. 

 

The results of the study show that the City is not collecting sufficient revenues to pay for the expansion 

to the infrastructure required for development and growth planned for in the City’s capital improvement 

plan (CIP). 

 

Council should note that the proposed capital facility fees will begin on June 1, 2016.  There is also 

provision for existing property owners to avoid the proposed increase for a period of 3 years. 

 

Staff recommends passage of Ordinance No. 2474 on Second Reading and Adoption. 
 

 

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Accept second reading and adoption of Ordinance No. 2474. 
 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 
Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 

Public Services Director  

Recreation Director 

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 

Page 138



 

 

  Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2474 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 26, 

“CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES,” ARTICLE IV, 

“WATER, SEWER AND REUSE CAPITAL FACILITY 

FEES AND FUND,” SECTIONS 26-112, 

“DEFINITIONS,” 26-117, “WATER CAPITAL 

FACILITY FEE,” 26-118, “SEWER CAPITAL 

FACILITY FEE,” AND 26-119, “REUSE CAPITAL 

FACILITY FEE;” AMENDING FEE CALCULATIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City hired Reiss Engineering, Inc., with sub-consultant Public 

Resources Management Group (PRMG), to perform a study of the City’s Water, Sewer, 

and Reuse capital facility fees, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City believes that growth should pay its own way, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the result of the study showed that the City was not collecting 

sufficient funds to cover the cost of growth related expenses in the City’s Capital 

Improvement Plan, and 

 

 WHEREAS, there has not been a capital facility fees study completed since 2001. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA; that: 

 

SECTION I:  Chapter 26, “Capital Facility Fees,” Article IV, “Water, Sewer and Reuse 

Capital Facility Fees and Fund,” Sections 26-112, “Definitions,” 26-117, “Water Capital 

Facility Fee,” 26-118, “Sewer Capital Facility Fee,” and 26-119, “Reuse Capital Facility 

Fee,” shall read as follows: 

  

Page 139



 

 

  Page 2 

ARTICLE IV. - WATER, SEWER AND REUSE CAPITAL FACILITY FEES AND FUND 

Sec. 26-112. - Definitions.  

The following definitions shall apply to this article:  

Applicant means a person who is obligated to remit or who has remitted all or any portion of 
the capital facility fees described in this article.  

Capital facility fee means the fee required to be paid in accordance with this article.  

Capital improvement includes land acquisition, right-of-way acquisition, site improvements, 
engineering fees, permitting fees, buildings and equipment, or debt service for such expansion or 
capital improvement, but excludes maintenance and operation.  

City permit means a permit from the city allowing an applicant to hook up to the city water, 
sewer, and/or reuse systems or to receive additional capacity from the water, sewer, and/or reuse 
systems.  

Comprehensive plan means that plan, which may consist of several maps, data and other 
descriptive matter, for the physical development of the city or any portion thereof, including any 
amendments, extension or additions thereto, indicating the general location for major streets, 
parks, open space or other public utilities, zoning districts or other similar information. The 
comprehensive plan shall be based upon and include appropriate studies of the location and 
extent of present and anticipated population, social and economic resources and problems, and 
other useful data regarding the future development of the city.  

DEP means the Florida Department of Environmental Protection.  

ERU (sewer) means equivalent residential unit, defined as having the average demand of 
350 300 gallons per day.  

ERU (water) means equivalent residential unit, defined as having the average demand of 400 
gallons per day, without reclaimed water available, and having the average demand of 300 gallons 
per day with reclaimed water available. 

ERU (reuse) means equivalent residential unit, defined as having the average demand of 
600 gallons per day.  

Impact fee means capital facility fee.  

Land development activity means an activity in which the construction of a facility requires 
water, sewer, and/or reuse capital facility fees as defined in this article.  

Living unit means any temporary or permanent unit utilized for human habitation.  

Sec. 26-117. - Water capital facility fee.  

(a) A capital facility fee, which represents the capital cost of the primary system capacity 
expansion, as described in exhibit "A", which is on file in the city clerks's office, will be charged 
and paid in the manner described in this section. The city reserves the right to also require 
additional contributions or in-kind contributions, including but not limited to constructed 
donated facilities, as may be necessary to extend services or to further expand the primary 
system to facilitate the providing of services to the applicant's property, and if any oversizing 
is required the applicant shall be reimbursed in accordance with this article. The city 
additionally reserves the right to amend this article so as to prospectively adjust the fees and 
charges assessed in this section. The applicant will be required to build or to provide the cost 
of construction of the secondary or local distribution system and all water facilities on the site, 
regardless of size, necessary to provide service to the land development activity.  

Page 140



 

 

  Page 3 

(b) The water capital facility fee charged shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) Residential capital facility fee, without reclaimed water available. If DEP permit or city 
permit is issued in calendar year, the fee Inside the City is $1,276.00 and the fee Outside 
the City is $1,595.00. 

 

 
Inside 

The City 

Outside 

The City 

2001 $1,502.00 $1,877.00 

2002 1,700.00 2,125.00 

2003 1,900.00 2,375.00 

2004 2,100.00 2,625.00 

2005 2,298.00 2,872.00 

  

(2) Alternative single-family water capital facility fee. In the event that a connection commits 
to reuse and/or pays the applicable reuse capital facility fee at the time the water capital 
facility fee is paid the applicable water capital facility fee shall be:  

Residential capital facility fee, with reclaimed water available.  If DEP permit or city permit 
is issued in calendar year, the fee Inside the City is $957.00 and the fee Outside the City 
is $1,196.00. 

 
Inside 

The City 

Outside 

The City 

2001 $1,502.00 $1,877.00 * 

2002 1,276.00 1,595.00 

2003 1,420.00 1,775.00 

2004 1,576.00 1,970.00 

2005 1,724.00 2,155.00 

  

Page 141



 

 

  Page 4 

* Reuse fee goes into effect January 1, 2002.  

(3) Adjustments to commercial capital facility fee. As to commercial users or residential units 
having commercial uses or which have been converted to legal commercial uses, the 
city, in its discretion, may assess an adjusted or additional water capital facility fee if at 
any time the usage of the connected unit changes or if it is determined by the city that 
the projected annual usage was less than the actual annual usage.  

(4) Every year after 2005 or whenever the fee reaches $2,298.00 the fee will be adjusted by 
the Engineering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index. This inflationary increase 
would be calculated in September of each year and made effective January 1 of the new 
year.  

Sec. 26-118. - Sewer capital facility fee.  

(a) A capital facility fee shall be assessed by the city which represents the capital cost of the 
primary system capacity expansion as described in exhibit "A", which is on file in the city 
clerk's office.  

(b) The city reserves the right to also require additional contributions or in-kind contributions, 
including but not limited to constructed donated facilities, as may be necessary to extend 
services or to further expand the primary system to facilitate the providing of services to the 
applicant's property, and if any oversizing is required the applicant shall be reimbursed in 
accordance with this article. The city additionally reserves the right to amend this article so 
as to prospectively adjust the fees and charges assessed in this section. The applicant will 
be required to build or to provide the cost of construction of the secondary or local collection 
system and all wastewater facilities on the site, regardless of size, necessary to provide 
service to the land development activity.  

(c) The sewer capital facility fee charged shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) Residential capital facility fee. If DEP permit or city permit is issued in calendar year, the 
fee Inside the City is $4,775.00 and the fee Outside the City is $5,969.00. 

  

 
Inside 

The City 

Outside 

The City 

2001 $2,458.00 $3,072.00 

2002 2,748.00 3,435.00 

2003 3,036.00 3,795.00 

2004 3,324.00 4,155.00 

2005 3,612.00 4,515.00 

  

Page 142



 

 

  Page 5 

(2) Adjustments to commercial capital facility fee. As to commercial users or residential units 
having commercial uses or which have been converted to legal commercial uses, the 
city, in its discretion, may assess an adjusted or additional sewer capital facility fee if at 
any time the usage of the connected unit changes or if it is determined by the city that 
the projected annual usage was less than the actual annual usage.  

(3) Every year after 2005 or whenever the fee reaches $3,612.00 the fee will be adjusted by 
the Engineering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index. This inflationary increase 
would be calculated in September of each year and made effective January 1 of the new 
year.  

(d) Any existing single-family home within the city limits with a fully functional septic system at 
the time the city installs sewer lines, or at the time the property annexes into the city will not 
be required to connect to the city's sewer system. However, if the septic system should fail 
and require replacement, the owner, tenant, or occupant of the lot or parcel of land would 
lose this exemption and then be required to connect to the city system.  

Sec. 26-119. - Reuse capital facility fee.  

(a) A capital facility fee shall be assessed by the city which represents the capital cost of the 
primary system capacity expansion as described in exhibit "A", which is on file in the city 
clerk's office.  

(b) The reuse capital facility fee charged per ERU shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) Residential capital facility fee. If DEP permit or city permit is issued in calendar year the 
fee Inside the City is $2,958.00 and the fee Outside the City is $3,698.00.  

 
Inside 

The City 

Outside 

The City 

2001 $-0- $-0- 

2002 $516.00 $645.00 

2003 1,028.00 1,285.00 

2004 1,544.00 1,930.00 

2005 2,059.00 2,573.00 

  

(2) Single-family residential ERU shall be as follows:  

a. Parcel size equal to or less than one-quarter acre equals 1 ERU 

b. Parcel size more than one-quarter up to one-half acre equals 1.25 ERU 

c. Parcel size greater than one-half acre equals 1.5 ERU 

(3) Commercial reuse capital facility shall be equal to one ERU or greater based on the 
following:  

Page 143



 

 

  Page 6 

Amount of area to be irrigated in sq. ft. divided by 10,000 sq. ft.  

(4) Adjustments to commercial facility fee. As to commercial users or residential units having 
commercial uses or residential units which have been converted to legal commercial 
uses, the city, in its discretion, may assess an adjusted or additional reuse capital facility 
fee if at any time the usage of the connected unit changes or if it is determined by the 
city that the projected annual usage was less than the actual annual usage.  

(5) Every year after 2005 or whenever the fee reaches $2,059.00 the fee will be adjusted by 
the Engineering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index. This inflationary increase 
would be calculated in September of each year and made effective January 1 of the new 
year.  

 

SECTION II.  Severability.  If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 

 

SECTION III.  Conflict.  All ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

 

SECTION IV.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

       First Reading:      

       Second Reading:     
       and Adoption 
 
 
          
              
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:        
 

Page 144



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2475 – Second Reading – Amending the Apopka Municipal Code, Chapter 82. Glenn A. Irby 
  

Page 145



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
  

 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:     Ordinance No. 2475 

   x  OTHER:   
  

 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2475 – AMENDING THE APOPKA MUNICIPAL CODE, 

CHAPTER 82, “UTILITIES,” ARTICLE II, “WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS,” 
DIVISION II, “FEES AND CHARGES,” AND DIVISION III, “RECLAIMED 
WATER SYSTEM” 

 

Request: ACCEPT SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2475. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

On April 1, 2015, the City Council authorized Reiss Engineering, Inc. to perform a study of the City’s 

water, sewer, and reuse rates and fees. A water, sewer, and reuse rates and fees study has not been 

conducted since 2008. 
 

The results of the study show that the City is not collecting sufficient revenues to pay for the operations 

and maintenance of the existing utilities infrastructure and the expansion to the infrastructure required for 

development and growth planned for in the City’s capital improvement plan (CIP). 
 

Council should note that the proposed water, sewer, and reuse rates and fees changes will start on March 

1, 2016. The study also proposes an annual incremental increase of 3% to the rates through Fiscal Year 

2020. 
 

Staff recommends passage of Ordinance No. 2475 on Second Reading and Adoption. 
 

Per Commissioner Arrowsmith’s request, the following chart has been provided to display how many 

“cut-offs” are produced weekly: 
 

Type of Service  Number per Week 

Scheduled Turn-Ons (Customer requested) 76 

Scheduled Turn-Off (Customer requested) 73 

Turn-Off for Non-Payment 50 

Turn-Off for Broken Payment Agreement 18 

Re-Connections 55 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 

N/A   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Accept second reading and adoption of Ordinance No. 2475. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

Page 146



 

 

  Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2475 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 82, 

“UTILITIES,” ARTICLE II, “WATER AND SEWER 

SYSTEMS,” DIVISION II, “FEES AND CHARGES,” 

SECTIONS 82-61, “WATER CONNECTION FEES,” 

82-62, “SEWER TAP FEES,”82-64, “INITIATION OF 

WATER SERVICE,” 82-65, “WATER USE CHARGES 

AND DEPOSIT,” 82-66, “WASTEWATER USE 

CHARGES AND DEPOSIT,” 82-67,  “DEFECTIVE 

WATER METERS,” 82-69, “WATER AND 

RECLAIMED WATER METER READING RE-

CHECK,” AND DIVISION III, “RECLAIMED WATER 

SYSTEM,” SECTIONS 82-92, “CONNECTION 

CHARGES,” 82-94, “RECLAIMED WATER USE 

CHARGES, AND 82-98, “AUTHORITY TO 

PRESCRIBE ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS;” 

ARTICLE IV, “BILLING AND COLLECTION 

PROCEDURES,” SECTIONS 82-179, 

“TERMINATION OF SERVICE GENERALLY; LATE 

PAYMENT CHARGE, ILLEGAL USE OF WATER, 

TAMPERING, MAINTENANCE OF CUSTOMERS 

FACILITIES, 82-182, “AFTER-HOURS SERVICE 

CHARGE;” PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 166 of the Florida Statutes, grants municipalities the 

proprietary powers to undertake all municipal functions; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City owns and operates its Water, Sewer, and Reclaimed Water 

System; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka desires to amend rates and deposits for the 

consumptive use of water, sewer, and reclaimed water; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka desires to amend rates for water meters; water, 

sewer, and reclaimed water tap fees; and miscellaneous fees associated with operating 

the water, sewer and reclaimed water systems to reflect the actual costs incurred by the 

City. 

Page 147



 

 

  Page 2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA; that: 

 

SECTION I:  Chapter 82, “Utilities,” Article II, “Water and Sewer Systems,” Division II, 

“Fees and Charges,” Sections 82-61, “Water Connection Fees,” 82-62, “Sewer Tap 

Fees,” 82-64, “Initiation of Water Service,” 82-65, “Water Use Charges and Deposit,” 82-

66, “Wastewater Use Charges,” 82-67, “Defective Water Meters,” 82-69, “Water and 

Reclaimed Water Meter Reading Re-Check,” Division III, “Reclaimed Water System,” 

Sections 82-92, “Connection Charges,” 82-94, “Reclaimed Water Use Charges,” and 82-

98, “Authority to Prescribe Additional Regulations,” and Article IV, “Billing and Collection 

Procedures,” Sections 82-179, “Termination of Service Generally; Late Payment Charge, 

Illegal Use of Water, Tampering, Maintenance of Customers Facilities,” and 82-182, 

“After-Hours Service Charge;” shall read as follows: 

 

  

Page 148



 

 

  Page 3 

DIVISION 2. - FEES AND CHARGES[3]  

Sec. 82-61. - Water connection fees.  

(a) Meter set fee. The water meter set fee shall be as follows:  

Size of 

Meter 

 (inches) 

Dual Service Single Service 

  ¾ $186.00  $274.00 $238.00  $350.00 

 1 - - 280.00  $412.00 

 1½ - - 429.00  $631.00 

 2 - - 515.00  $757.00 

Meter Size Over 2” Actual Cost plus 10% 

  

(b) Tap fee. A water tap fee shall be charged at the time of approval by the city of a service 
connection. Such fee will include labor cost and the cost of connection piping from the main 
to the meter not to exceed 50 feet in length, and shall be charged as follows:  

Size of Tap 

 (inches) 
Short Service Long Service 

  ¾ $245.00  $275.00 $745.00  $836.00 

 1 245.00  $275.00 745.00  $836.00 

 1½ 318.00  $357.00 818.00  $918.00 

 2 318.00  $357.00 818.00  $918.00 

Service Size Over 2” Actual Cost plus 10% 

  

Short service is defined as service located on the same side of a road or driveway of an 
existing water line where the connection is to be made. Long service is defined as service located 
on the opposite side of a road or driveway of an existing water line where the connection is to be 

Page 149



 

 

  Page 4 

made. There will be an additional charge of $10.00 for every linear foot for service over 50 linear 
feet.  

An additional charge will be added equal to the county right-of-way permit fee whenever it is 
required.  

(c) Meters and taps over two inches in size. For a meter or tap over two inches in size, the work 
will be performed by the contractor; however, in circumstances where the city elects to 
perform the work, the fee charged shall be the actual cost plus ten percent (10%). 

(d) Wireless service meters shall be installed in all development. 

Sec. 82-62. - Sewer tap fees.  

A sewer tap fee shall be charged at the time of approval by the city of a service connection. 
The costs of extending or installing six inch sewer lateral shall be $700.00 $745.00 up to 25 feet 
and including clean out. For additional footage beyond 25 feet, the charge shall be $12.00 per 
linear foot. The costs of any applicable county or state permits will also be an additional charge. 
Any sewer lateral within the public right-of-way or easement will remain the property of the city.  

State Law reference— Limitations on rates, fees, etc., charged consumers outside city limits, 
F.S. § 180.191.  

Sec. 82-64. - Initiation of water service.  

A service charge of $10.00 $35.00 shall be imposed for each initiation of water service.  

Sec. 82-65. - Water use charges and deposit.  

(a) Service charges. The following shall be the schedule of monthly rates and charges for water 
service provided by the city:  

(1) Residential service. The charges for residential service shall be based upon the monthly 
amount of water used per dwelling unit as follows:  

a. A minimum monthly charge service fee of $5.36 $7.36 per dwelling unit, plus:  

i. A charge of $1.00 $1.37 per thousand gallons for the first 6,000 gallons used 
per dwelling unit per month.  

ii. A charge of $1.22 $1.67 per thousand gallons for each thousand gallons of 
water used greater than 6,000 gallons per dwelling unit per month, up to and 
including 15,000 gallons.  

iii. A charge of $1.82 $2.49 per thousand gallons for each thousand gallons of 
water used greater than 15,000 gallons per dwelling unit per month, up to and 
including 30,000 gallons.  

iv. A charge of $3.66 $5.03 per thousand gallons for any water used over and 
above 30.000 gallons per dwelling unit per month.  

(2) Commercial water service. The monthly charge for commercial service shall be 
determined per each separate commercial or business unit, for office buildings (per 
commercial or business unit), service stations, department stores, service businesses, 
churches, clubs, hospitals, professional office units, etc. A separate business would 
usually, but not always, be identified as any operation requiring an occupational license 
from the city, where applicable. Irrigation of common areas in both residential and 
nonresidential developments shall fall within the commercial rate structure. The usage 

Page 150



 

 

  Page 5 

shall be as measured by the water consumption at the water meter, and the monthly 
charges shall be as follows:  

a. A minimum monthly charge service fee of $6.41 $8.81 per unit, plus: 

i. A charge of $1.18 $1.63 per thousand gallons for the first 6,000 gallons used 
per unit per month.  

ii. A charge of $1.48 $2.03 per thousand gallons for each thousand gallons of 
water used greater than 6,000 gallons per unit per month, up to and including 
15,000 gallons.  

iii. A charge of $2.18 $3.00 per thousand gallons for each thousand gallons of 
water used over and above 15,000 gallons per unit month.  

(3) City recreation and parks service. City-maintained grounds, rights-of-way, parks, and 
recreational facilities shall be charged for service at $0.88 $1.12 per thousand gallons.  

(4) Wholesale service. Rates for wholesale users shall be negotiated on a case-by-case 
basis with final approval of the rate by the city council.  

(b) Rate adjustments. All water charges and consumptive use charges established in 
subsections (a)(1), (2), and (3) may shall be adjusted on October 1 of each year through the 
adoption of the city's annual budget through Fiscal Year 2020, in accordance with either the 
Florida Public Service Commission Price Index, or Appendix "A" of the 2008 2015 Water, 
Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Rate Study, incorporated herein by reference. The city 
council shall have the discretion to determine which rate escalator is the most appropriate in 
each respective budgeting cycle. Additionally, the city council shall have the authority to make 
rate adjustments at a lesser level than those that would be dictated by either the Florida 
Public Service Commission Price Index or Appendix "A" of the 2008 2015 Water, 
Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Rate Study. The new rates will be rounded up to the next 
whole penny.  

(c) Proration of charges. There shall be no proration of fees.  

(d) Deposit. For each residential customer requesting water service, a utility deposit of $20.00 
$50.00 per dwelling unit shall be paid by each customer, unless otherwise provided in this 
chapter. For each commercial customer requesting water service, a utility deposit of $40.00 
$100.00 per unit shall be paid by each customer, unless otherwise provided in this chapter. 
A utility deposit of $2,000.00 per meter for a temporary construction site hydrant meter shall 
be paid by each customer, unless otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(e) Deposit for newly annexed property. The city will waive the deposit requirement for any 
county customer who connects to the city water system within 12 months of annexing into 
the city, provided the customer maintains a good payment history.  

State Law reference— Limitations on rates, fees, etc., charged consumer outside city limits, 
F.S. § 180.191.  

Sec. 82-66. - Wastewater use charges and deposit.  

(a) Service charges. The following shall be the schedule of monthly rates and charges for 
wastewater treatment provided by the city:  

(1) Residential service. The charges for residential service shall be based upon the monthly 
amount of water used per dwelling unit as follows:  

a. A minimum monthly charge service fee of $12.02 $13.93 per dwelling unit, plus: 

Page 151



 

 

  Page 6 

i. A charge of $2.00 $2.32 for each 1,000 gallons of water used per dwelling unit 
per month, up to and including 12,000 gallons, excluding separately metered 
irrigation usage.  

b. The maximum charge service fee for residential service shall be $36.02 $41.77 per 
dwelling unit per month. 

(2) Commercial wastewater service. The monthly charge for city commercial service shall 
be determined per each separate commercial or business unit, for office buildings (per 
commercial or business unit), service stations, department stores, service businesses, 
churches, clubs, hospitals, professional office units, etc. A separate business would 
usually, but not always, be identified as any operation requiring an occupational license 
from the city, where applicable. The usage shall be as measured by the water 
consumption at the water meter, and the monthly charges shall be as follows:  

a. A minimum monthly charge service fee of $14.43 $16.73 per unit, plus: 

i. A charge of $2.39 $2.77 for each 1,000 gallons of potable water used per unit 
per month, excluding separately metered irrigation usage.  

(3) Wholesale service. Rates for wholesale users shall be negotiated on a case-by-case 
basis with final approval of the rate by the city council.  

(b) Rate adjustments. All wastewater charges and consumptive use charges established in 
subsections (a) (1) and (2) may be adjusted on October 1 of each year through the adoption 
of the city's annual budget through Fiscal Year 2020, in accordance with either the Florida 
Public Service Commission Price Index, or Appendix "A" of the 2008 2015 Water, 
Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Rate Study, incorporated herein by reference. The city 
council shall have the discretion to determine which rate escalator is the most appropriate in 
each respective budgeting cycle. Additionally, the city council shall have the authority to make 
rate adjustments at a lesser level than those that would be dictated by either the Florida 
Public Service Commission Price Index or Appendix "A" of the 2008 2015 Water, 
Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Rate Study. The new rates will be rounded up to the next 
whole penny.  

(c) Proration of charges. There shall be no proration of fees.  

(d) Deposit. For each residential customer requesting wastewater service, a utility deposit of 
$50.00 $90.00 per unit shall be paid by each customer, unless otherwise provided in this 
chapter.  For each commercial customer requesting wastewater service, a utility deposit of 
$180.00 per unit shall be paid by each customer, unless otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(e) Deposit for newly annexed property. The city will waive the deposit requirement for any 
county customer who connects to the city water system within 12 months of annexing into 
the city, provided the customer maintains a good payment history.  

State Law reference— Limitations on rates, fees, etc., charged consumers outside city limits, 
F.S. § 180.191.  

Sec. 82-67. - Defective water meters.  

(a) In the event of defective water meters, the city has the authority to average the past monthly 
water consumption to arrive at a fair consumption level for billing purposes. If the meter is 
defective due to tampering by the customer, such customer shall be liable for all reasonable 
expenses incurred by the city to repair any damage that results from the tampering.  

Page 152



 

 

  Page 7 

(b) Upon a written request by a customer, the utility billing division will remove the meter and 
forward it to a certified meter laboratory to be tested for over-registering.  

If the laboratory verifies the water meter is over-registering, the customer's water bill will be 
adjusted to an amount equal to an average monthly bill.  

If the laboratory finds the water meter is not over-registering, the customer shall pay the water 
bill in full, along with a service fee equal to the cost of having the meter tested plus ten-percent.  

Sec. 82-69. - Water and reclaimed water meter reading re-check.  

Potable and reclaimed water customers may request a re-check of their last meter reading. 
There is no charge for re-checks conducted through the automated system. Each customer shall 
be granted one manual re-check free of charge each calendar year. Each manual re-check in 
excess of one per calendar year shall incur a fee of $30.00 $35.00. This fee will be included on 
the customer's next potable/reclaimed water bill. If the re-check indicates that the city meter 
registered incorrectly, the re-check fee will not be assessed, and the customer's bill will be 
corrected.  

Secs. 82-70—82-90. - Reserved.  

  

Page 153



 

 

  Page 8 

DIVISION 3. - RECLAIMED WATER SYSTEM[4]  

Footnotes:  

--- (4) ---  

Cross reference— Streets, sidewalks and other public places, ch. 70; public service tax on 
utilities, § 74-61 et seq.; stormwater management utility, § 82-136 et seq.; development design 
and improvement standards for reclaimed water systems, land development code, pt. III, § 
6.04.06; development design and improvement standards for stormwater management systems, 
land development code, pt. III, § 6.05.00. 

State Law reference— Grey water use, F.S. § 403.064. 

 

Sec. 82-92. - Connection charges.  

The connection charge for reclaimed water service will consist of the tap fee and the fee for 
installing a backflow prevention device on each potable water service. A meter set fee shall be 
required for metered connections.  

(1) Tap fee. The reclaimed water tap fee does not include the cost of the meter and shall be 
as follows:  

Reclaimed Water Service Size 

(inches) 

Short 

Service 

Long 

Service 

¾ $245.00  $275.00 $745.00  $836.00 

1 $245.00  $275.00 $745.00  $836.00 

1½ $318.00  $357.00 $818.00  $918.00 

2 $318.00  357.00 $818.00  $918.00 

Service Size Over 2” Actual Cost plus 10% 

  Short service is defined as service located on the same side of a road or driveway of an 
existing reclaimed water line where the connections is to be made. Long service is defined as 
service located on the opposite side of a road or driveway of an existing reclaimed water line 
where the connection is to be made. There will be an additional charge of $10.00 for every 
linear foot for service over 50 linear feet.  

An additional charge will be added equal to the county right-of-way permit fee whenever it is 
required.  

(2) Backflow prevention fee*. The backflow prevention fee shall be as follows:  

 

Page 154



 

 

  Page 9 

Water 

Service Size 

(inches) 

Backflow Prevention Fee 

In City Out of City 

¾ $110.00  $220.00 $165.00 

1 $130.00  $260.00 $195.00 

1½ $200.00  $400.00 $300.00 

2 $230.00  $460.00 $345.00 

Meter Size Over 2” Actual Cost plus 10% 

 [*] Fee applies to dual service accounts with a potable water meter. 

(3) Meter set fee. The meter set fee shall be as follows:  

Size of 

Meter 

(inches) 

Dual 

Service 

Single 

Service 

¾ $186.00  $274.00 $238.00  $350.00 

1 — $280.00  $412.00 

1½ — $606.00  $891.00 

2 — $947.00  $1,393.00 

Meter Size Over 2” Actual Cost Plus 10% 

  

All reclaimed water connections larger than two inches or involving potable water service 
larger than two inches will be performed by the contractor; however, in circumstances where the 
city elects to perform the work, the fee charged shall be the actual cost. The connection charge 
shall be waived for development activities that will furnish and install taps and backflow prevention 
devices in accordance with this chapter.  

Wireless service meters shall be installed for all development.  

 

 

Page 155



 

 

  Page 10 

Sec. 82-94. - Reclaimed water use charges.  

(a) Service charges. The following shall be the schedule of monthly rates and charges for 
reclaimed water provided by the city:  

(1) Residential service. The charges for residential service shall be based upon the monthly 
amount of reclaimed water consumed per dwelling unit as follows:  

a. A minimum monthly charge service fee of $5.37 $7.37, which will include 6,000 
gallons of reclaimed water per dwelling unit, plus:  

i. A charge of $0.92 $1.27 for each 1,000 gallons over 6,000 gallons per dwelling 
unit per month, up to and including 15,000 gallons of reclaimed water.  

ii. A charge of $1.38 $1.90 for each 1,000 gallons over 15,000 gallons per dwelling 
unit per month of reclaimed water.  

iii. A charge of $2.76 $3.79 for each 1,000 gallons over 30,000 gallons per dwelling 
unit per month of reclaimed water.  

(2) Commercial reclaimed water service. The monthly charge for commercial service shall 
be determined per each separate commercial or business unit, for office buildings (per 
commercial or business unit), service stations, department stores, service businesses, 
churches, clubs, hospitals, professional office units, etc. A separate business would 
usually, but not always, be identified as any operation requiring an occupational license 
from the city, where applicable. Irrigation of common areas in both residential and 
nonresidential developments shall fall within the commercial rate structure. The usage 
shall be as measured by the reclaimed water consumption at the meter, and the monthly 
charges shall be as follows:  

a. A minimum monthly charge service fee of $6.44 $8.85, which will include 6,000 
gallons of reclaimed water per unit, plus:  

i. A charge of $1.11 $1.51 for each 1,000 gallons over 6,000 gallons per unit per 
month, up to and including 15,000 gallons of reclaimed water.  

ii. A charge of $1 64 $2.26 for each 1,000 gallons over 15,000 gallons per unit per 
month of reclaimed water.  

(3) Consumptive use rate for contract and bulk users will be $0.46 $0.61 per 1,000 gallons 
with on-site storage and $0.70 $0.93 per 1,000 gallons without on-site storage. Required 
storage shall accommodate a minimum 14-day demand. At no time should a bulk user 
be charged less than $500.00 per month.  

(4) Contracts for bulk users who use less than 100,000 gallons per day may be negotiated 
with the approval of council.  

(5) Wholesale service. Rates for wholesale users shall be negotiated on a case-by-case 
basis with final approval of the rate by the city council.  

(b) Waiver of fees. The mayor or his designee may adjust or waive reclaimed charges to bulk 
users willing to take reclaimed for storage at the request of the city.  

(c) Rate adjustments. All reclaimed minimum monthly charges and consumptive use charges 
established in subsections (a)(1), (2) and (3) may be adjusted on October 1 of each year 
through the adoption of the city's annual budget through Fiscal Year 2020, in accordance 
with either the Florida Public Service Commission Price Index, or Appendix "A" of the 2008 
2015 Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Rate Study, incorporated herein by 
reference. The city council shall have the discretion to determine which rate escalator is the 

Page 156



 

 

  Page 11 

most appropriate in each respective budgeting cycle. Additionally, the city council shall have 
the authority to make rate adjustments at a lesser level than those that would be dictated by 
either the Florida Public Service Commission Price Index or Appendix "A" of the 2008 2015 
Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Rate Study. The new rates will be rounded up to 
the next whole penny.  

(d) Proration of charges. There shall be no proration of fees.  

(e) Deposit. For each residential customer requesting reclaimed water service, a utility deposit 
of $20.00 $50.00 per dwelling unit shall be paid by each customer, unless otherwise provided 
in this chanter chapter. For each commercial customer requesting reclaimed water service, 
a utility deposit of $40.00 $100.00 per unit shall be paid by each customer, unless otherwise 
provided in this chapter.  

(f) Deposit for newly annexed property. The city will waive the deposit requirement for any 
county customer who connects to the city water system within 12 months of annexing into 
the city, provided the customer maintains a good payment history.  

 

Sec. 82-98. - Authority to prescribe additional regulations.  

(a) The utilities Public Services Ddirector shall have the power to promulgate procedures and 
regulations for reclaimed water service with respect to the following matters, and such 
procedures and regulations shall become effective upon a resolution approving such 
procedures and regulations being adopted by the city council:  

(1) Application procedures and requirements. 

(2) Installation requirements, including specifications for acceptable materials and devices 
to help prevent backflow or cross connections between the reclaimed water system and 
any other utility system.  

(3) Procedures for enforcement of the ordinances and regulations pertaining to reclaimed 
water, including procedures for inspection of the customer's system.  

(4) Procedures for the orderly expansion of the reclaimed water system. 

(5) Procedures for plugging wells located on the property which will be receiving reclaimed 
water.  

(6) Procedures for use of hose connections to the reclaimed water system. 

(7) Other matters relating to the construction, operation and use of the reclaimed water 
system.  

(b) The utilities Public Services Ddirector may, when necessary for the efficient operation of the 
reclaimed water system or for the health or safety of the general public or the customer, 
establish regulations regarding the following matters, and such regulations shall become 
effective at the time of promulgation without the need for city council approval:  

(1) The times of day or night during which the reclaimed water may be used by customers. 

(2) The maximum rate of use of the reclaimed water. 

 

 

 

Page 157



 

 

  Page 12 

ARTICLE IV. - BILLING AND COLLECTION PROCEDURES  

 

Sec. 82-179. - Termination of service generally; late payment charge; illegal use of water; 

tampering; maintenance of customers facilities.  

(a) Authority to terminate service. If a utility bill remains unpaid for ten days after service of 

the past due notice and an appeal has not been filed pursuant to section 82-178, the city may 

terminate all utility service to such premises.  

(b) Reconnection fee. Utility service which has been terminated pursuant to the provisions 

of this section shall not be reconnected until all past due utility bills and penalties have been 

paid, together with a reconnection charge of $30.00 $70.00. For potable and reclaimed water 

service that has been discontinued due to nonpayment, if payment, along with the reconnection 

fee, is made before 3:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding weekends and city holidays, 

service will be restored the same day. If the required payments are received after 3:00 p.m., 

service will be restored the next business day. If the required payments are received or an 

arrangement for payment has been made, after 3:00 p.m., but no later than 8:00 p.m., and the 

customer may request the service be restored the same day, however, an additional service 

charge fee of $50.00 will be assessed. If any owner or tenant reconnects or turns on the water 

service after it has become discontinued because of a delinquent bill, the meter will be locked or 

removed and an additional reconnection fee of $30.00 $70.00 will be required over and above 

the above-referenced fees upon receipt of payment of the delinquent bill.  

(c) Late payment charge. If the bill is unpaid by the delinquent/due date, a ten percent late 

charge based upon the amount of the bill that is delinquent shall be added to the amount owed 

the city on the following month's billing.  

(d) Locking or removal of water meter; illegal use of water. The city reserves the right to lock 

or remove the water meter at first cutoff for any customer who has a past record of reconnecting 

or tampering with a meter illegally.  

(e) Tampering. No person, unless expressly authorized by the public services director or his 

designee, shall tamper with, work on, or in any way alter or damage any city potable or 

reclaimed water facility, including meters. No unauthorized person shall open or close valves, 

cut into, or make any connection to the system. The offending person(s) shall be liable for the 

actual cost plus ten-percent of all charges attributable to the correction of such tampering, as 

outlined in F.S. § 180.13, including legal expenses'. The offender may also be subject to code 

enforcement proceedings consistent with this Code and with F.S. ch. 162. Payment for, or the 

correcting of, damages shall in no way relieve the offending person from civil or criminal 

penalties a court or other judicial or quasi-judicial body may impose for damage to public 

property or violation of a city ordinance.  

(f) Maintenance. It is the responsibility of all potable and reclaimed water customers to 

properly protect and maintain access to the meter box(s) that service their property or 

residence. Property owner(s) must maintain a clear area of three feet around the potable water 

and/or reclaimed water meter box(s) located on their property. The meter box may not be buried 

Page 158



 

 

  Page 13 

or obstructed from view, and must remain clearly visible and readily accessible at all times to 

allow access by city employees for reading, maintenance, emergency disconnection from 

service, and disconnection from service for nonpayment. Property owners shall be assessed, on 

their associated utility bills for any costs incurred by the city for actions necessary to gain 

access to an obstructed meter(s), and the city shall not be financially liable for any damages 

that actions that an inaccessibility necessary to access an obstructed meter. 

(g) A service fee of $35.00 will be charged for customer requested connections and 

disconnections of service. 

(h) A service fee of $35.00 will be charged for miscellaneous customer requested site visits 

not previously described in this ordinance. 

(Code 1983, § 23-131; Ord. No. 1453, § I, 6-19-02; Ord. No. 1909, § IV, 4-18-07; Ord. No. 2092, 

§ II, 1-7-09)  

Sec. 82-182. - After-hours service charge.  

Any utility customer may request service after regularly scheduled working hours, Monday 

through Friday, except city holidays, between the hours of 3:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m., and 

between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. weekends and city holidays. Any utility customer 

requesting such service must sign an after-hours service request form. A service charge fee of 

$50.00 will be assessed, unless waived by the finance director, and such fee must be paid by 

noon of the next working day at the utility billing office will be billed to the customer.  

(Code 1983, § 23-134; Ord. No. 981, § 1, 12-4-96; Ord. No. 1909, § IV, 4-18-07; Ord. No. 2092, 

§ II, 1-7-09)  

 

  

Page 159



 

 

  Page 14 

SECTION II.  Severability.  If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 

 

SECTION III.  Conflict.  All ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

 

SECTION IV.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

       First Reading:      

       Second Reading:     
       and Adoption 
 
 
 
          
              
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:        
 

Page 160



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2488 – Second Reading – Annexation      David Moon 
  

Page 161



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                          ________                                     __ 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 1 

X OTHER: Annexation   Ordinance No. 2488 
    Vicinity Map 

                                          ________                                     __ 
SUBJECT:   2016 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 1 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2488 – 

APOPKA HOLDING, LLC. 
                                          ________                                     __ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   APOPKA HOLDING, LLC 
 
LOCATIONS:   1120 Clarcona Road and 1124 South Park Avenue 
     
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.52 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future 
Land Use and Zoning designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will 
occur at a later date, and through additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 
first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on January 15, 2016. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
January 22, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
January 29, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
February 5, 2016 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 3, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
February 17, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 

                                          ________                                     __ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2016 Annexation Cycle #1. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on February 3, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2488 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on February 17, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2488. 
                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   Page 162



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2016 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 1 

TOTAL ACRES:  0.52 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2488 

Adopted this 17th day of February, 2016 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2488 

 
 

1 APOPKA HOLDING, LLC 
1120 Clarcona Road 
1124 S. Park Avenue 

09-21-28-0197-10-213 
09-21-28-0197-10-211 

0.14 
0.38 
0.52 

SFR (1) 
Rooming 

House 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2016 Cycle 1 Spreadsheet.wpd 

Page 163



ORDINANCE NO. 2488 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 
TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 
STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND 
BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY APOPKA HOLDING, LLC 
LOCATED AT 1120 CLARCONA ROAD AND 1124 SOUTH PARK AVENUE; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Apopka Holding, LLC, owners thereof, have petitioned the 

City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties 

located at 1120 Clarcona Road and 1124 South Park Avenue; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing and 

adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous 

of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include 

the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated 

in Orange County, Florida, totaling 0.52 +/- acres, and graphically 

depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed into the City of 

Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

TOWN OF APOPKA A/109 PART OF LOT 21 BLK J DESC AS BEG SE COR OF 

LOT 21 BLK J RUN WLY ALONG S LINE OF LOT 21 85.73 FT N 70 FT E 

85.73 FT S 70 FT TO POB Containing 0.14+/- acre and; 

 

TOWN OF APOPKA A/109 LOT 21 (LESS N 116 FT & LESS BEG SE COR OF 

LOT 21 RUN W 85.73 FT N 70 FT E 85.73 FT S 70 FT TO POB) & N1/4 

LOT 27 ALL IN BLK J SEE 4322/730 Containing 0.38+/- acre 

 

Combined Acreage: 0.52 +/- 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed.

 

 

 
Page 164



 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2488 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in accordance 

with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants 

of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts and 

obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances 

and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section 

or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this 

ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, 

Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of 

State of the State of Florida.  
 
 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  

January 22, 2016; January 29, 2016 & February 5, 2016  

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: February 3, 2016 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     February 17, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 165



 

ANNEXATION 

APOPKA HOLDING, LLC 

1120 CLARCONA ROAD 

              1124 SOUTH PARK AVENUE 

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2488 

         Parcel ID: 09-21-28-0197-10-211 

  09-21-28-0197-10-213    

 Total Acres: 0.52 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Page 166



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2473 – First Reading – Corrective Ordinance      David Moon 
  

Page 167



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                           ________                                      

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 
  X   PUBLIC HEARING           FROM: Community Development 
       SPECIAL REPORTS          EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 2439 
  X   OTHER: Ordinance Amendment              Ordinance No. 2473 
                   Vicinity Map  
                                          ________                                     _ 
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 2439 
 
Request:    FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2473 TO AMEND ORDINANCE 

NO. 2439 TO CORRECT SCRIVENER ERRORS IN THE ORDINANCE 
HEADING AND LEGAL DECRIPTION AS STATED IN THE 
ORDINANCE; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & 
ADOPTION.                         

                                           ________                                     _ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY, LLC 
 
LOCATIONS:   2860 Clarcona Road - 27-21-28-6024-00-005 - (3.40 +/- Acres)  
    2870 Clarcona Road - 27-21-28-6024-00-006 - (2.37 +/- Acres) 
         476 Jellystone Avenue - 27-21-28-6024-00-007 - (3.61 +/- Acres) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.38 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Ordinance No. 2439 was originally adopted containing scrivener errors made 
while transcribing the owner’s name and parcel identification number. Ordinance No. 2473 corrects the stated 
errors within Ordinance No. 2439.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  Correcting a scrivener’s error is a legislative action and notice to the 
County is not required.  
 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 5, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

February 19, 2016 – Ordinance Heading Ad  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
 
February 17, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
March 2, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
                                           ________   ____                                   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2473 to amend Ordinance No. 2439 and hold over for Second Reading and 
Adoption on March 2, 2016. 
 
                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   

Page 168



ORDINANCE NO. 2473  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CORRECTING 

SCRIVENER’S ERRORS IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

OWNED BY TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY, LLC., IN ORDINANCE NO. 2439; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2439 was enacted using a legal description 

of the property in the ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the title and legal description of the property provided 

contained scrivener’s errors in the parcel identification number; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City wishes to correct the legal description 

contained in Ordinance No. 2439. 

 

NOTE: Underlined words constitute the additions to the 

existing text of the city of Apopka Code of Ordinances, 

strikethroughs constitute deletions to the existing text, 

and asterisks (***) indicate an omission from the existing 

text which is intended to remain unchanged. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  The “Whereas” clauses above are the findings of the 

City of Apopka. 

  

 SECTION II:  The title and legal description stated in Section 1 

of Ordinance No. 2439 shall be amended to read as follows:  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CORRECTING 

SCRIVENER’S ERRORS IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

OWNED BY TECHNOLOGY PROPERTIES PROPERTY, LLC., IN ORDINANCE 

NO. 2439; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 27-

21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 475.57 FT TO 

POB TH CONT S00-17-40W 25 FT TH S89-58-35W 25 FT TH RUN S00-17-

40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 105 FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY 

FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE SWLY RAD OF 95 FT DELTA 08-

17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 25 FT 

DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH S01-29-51W 215.22 FT TH N89-

58-35E 416.69 FT TH N69-01-28E 10 FT TH N20-58-32W 18.89 FT TH 

N69-01-28 E 135 FT TH N20-58-32W 252.08 FT TH S89-58-35W 434.24 

FT TO POB (LESS THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESC: COMM 

Page 169



ORDINANCE NO. 2473 

Page 2 

 
AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TO W 

LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP S/8 TH 

S00-17-40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF N120 FT OF 

S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 FT TO WLY R/W LINE 

OF SR 435 (CLARCONA RD) TH S20-58-33E 729.76 FT TO NE COR OF TR 

T-10 YOGI BEAR'S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-30-

09W 722.91 FT ALONG SAID TR T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH N88-

30-09W 3 FT TO NW COR OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-30-

09E 3 FT TH S01-29-51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459) PARCEL 

I.D.: 27-20-28-0000-00-005 27-21-28-6024-00-005  CONTAINING: 3.40 

+/- ACRES AND;  

 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 27-

21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 500.57 FT TH 

RUN S89-58-35W 25 FT TH S00-17-40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY 

RAD 105 FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE 

CONCAVE SWLY RAD 95 FT DELTA 08-17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE 

CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 25 FT DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH 

S01-29-51W 215.22 FT TO POB TH CONT S01-29-51W 167.76 FT TH N89-

58-35E 492.56 FT TH N30-44-24E 8.03 FT TH N69-01-28E 131.97 FT TH 

N20-58-32W 196.07 FT TH S69-01-28W 135 FT TH S20-58-32E 18.89 FT 

TH S69-01-28W 10 FT TH S89-58-35W 416.69 FT TO POB (LESS THE W 3 

FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESC: COMM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF 

NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TO W LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 

OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP S/8 TH S00-17-40W 475.58 FT 

ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF N120 FT OF S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS 

REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 FT TO WLY R/W LINE OF SR 435 (CLARCONA 

RD) TH S20-58-33E 729.76 FT TO NE COR OF TR T-10 YOGI BEAR'S 

JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-30-09W 722.91 FT ALONG 

SAID TR T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH N88-30-09W 3 FT TO NW 

COR OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-30-09E 3 FT TH S01-29-

51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459)PARCEL I.D.:27-20-28-0000-00-

006 27-21-28-6024-00-006 CONTAINING: 2.37 +/- ACRES AND; 

 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 27-

21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH S00-17-40W 500.57 FT TH S89-

58-35W 25 FT TH S00-17-40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 105 

FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE SWLY 

RAD 95FT DELTA 08-17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE 

NELY RAD 25 FT DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH S01-29-51W 

382.89 FT TO POB TH CONT S01-29-51W 189.70 FT TH RUN S88-30-09E 

318.32 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE SELY RAD 100 FT CHORD N81-23-00E NELY 

FOR 35.31 FT TH S01-29-51E 16.17 FT M/L TH S88-30-09E 373 FT TH  

N20-58-32W  281.60  FT  TH S69-01-28W  131.97 FT TH S30-44-24W 

8.03 FT TH S89-58-35W 492.56 FT TO POB & COMM AT SE CORNER OF OAK 

HGTS REP S/8 TH RUN N89-59-04E 129.21 FT TO W R/W OF APOPKA 

VINELAND ROAD TH N20-58-32W 107.53 FT TO POB SAID PT BEING SE 

CORNER OF TR T-10 OF YOGI BEARS JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT 

3347/2482; CONT N20-58-32W 115 FT TO POB TH S58-19-30W 50.88 FT 

TH S46-42-32W 45 FT TH N88-17-28W 120 FT TH N80-52-21W 115 FT TH 

N88-30-09W 64.49 FT TH N01-30-04E 43.83 FT TH S88-30-20E 373 FT 

TO POB PER 10831/5459 (LESS THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING 

Page 170



ORDINANCE NO. 2473 

Page 3 

 
DESC: COMM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 

FT TO W LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP 

S/8 TH S00-17-40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF N120 FT 

OF S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 FT TO WLY R/W 

LINE OF SR 435 (CLARCONA RD) TH S20-58-33E 729.76 FT TO NE COR OF 

TR T-10 YOGI BEAR'S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-

30-09W 722.91 FT ALONG SAID TR T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH 

N88-30-09W 3 FT TO NW COR OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-

30-09E 3 FT TH S01-29-51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459) 27-21-

28-6024-00-007 CONTAINING: 3.61 +/- ACRES  

 

TOTAL COMBINED ACRES: 9.38 ACRES +/-   

      

SECTION III:  This Ordinance is deemed to be severable.  If any 

section or portion of a section of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, 

unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or 

impair the validity, force, or effect of any other section or part of 

this Ordinance. 

  

 SECTION IV:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section 

or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION V:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VI: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  

 
 

        

ATTEST:  

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: February 5, 2016 & February 19, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME: January 20, 2016 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     February 3, 2016 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

Page 171



ORDINANCE NO. 2473 

Page 4 

 
ANNEXATION 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY, LLC 

CLARCONA ROAD   

             

                          

          

        Parcel IDs: 27-21-28-6024-00-005                   

          27-21-28-6024-00-006  

          27-21-28-6024-00-007  

Total Acres: 9.38 +/-      

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Resolution 2016-03 – Second Reading - Economic Enhancement District Designating Brownfield Districts David Moon 
  

Page 176



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Resolution No. 2016-03 

X OTHER: Resolution   Exhibit “A” 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2016-03 - CREATING AN ECONOMIC ENHANCEMENT DISTRICT FOR 
DESIGNATING BROWNFIELDS. 

 
Request: SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-03 – CREATING AN 

ECONOMIC ENHANCEMENT DISTRICT FOR DESIGNATING BROWNFIELDS. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
The purpose of the Economic Enhancement District is to promote the cleanup and redevelopment of sites with real or 
perceived contamination and promote growth and economic vitality within Apopka’s Community Redevelopment Area 
(CRA).  Horticulture nurseries, gas stations, and other businesses over the past decades may have used oils, metals, 
pesticides, and fertilizers that entered the soils at those sites, creating potential contamination of soils and groundwater. The 
Economic Enhancement District will also serve as a designated Brownfield area, a Federal designation that will allow for 
Federal and State programs to provide tax and other financial incentives to property owners or developer where 
contamination is known to occur or might occur.  
 
Attached Exhibit “A” is a map showing the limits of a proposal to designate the Apopka Community Redevelopment Area 
as a brownfield area as defined in 376.80 F.S., (hereafter referred to as the Economic Enhancement District).    Specifically, 
the Economic Enhancement District helps property owners and existing or prospective businesses within the Economic 
Enhancement District better position themselves to become selected for competitive state and federal grant funds to cover 
costs for Phase I and Phase II environmental assessments and, potentially, cleanup of site contaminants.  An Environment 
Phase I Study assesses whether the potential for contamination at a site based on the history of uses that occurred there.  If 
sufficient evidence is identified from the Phase I study, a Phase II study conducts scientific evaluation and soil monitoring 
to identify the type of contamination and a remedial solution to correct or alleviate that contamination. 
 
The proposed economic enhancement designation provides a catalyst for site-specific redevelopment, but does not alter the 
permitted uses, site development standards nor any site requirements for any properties within the Economic Enhancement 
District.  Any grant fund application must be applied for on a site-specific and project-by-project basis. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 3, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30pm) 
February 17, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (7:00pm) 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
January 15, 2016 – Resolution Heading Ad (1st Reading) 
February 5, 2015 – Resolution Heading Ad (Approval) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE:  N\A 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on February 3, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Resolution No. 2016-03 and held it 
over for Second Reading and Approval on February 17, 2016. 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2016-03. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer                                Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)                                      HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby                                IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director                            Police Chief    
 

Page 177



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, DESIGNATING 
THE APOPKA COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA AS AN 
ECONOMIC ENHANCEMENT DISTRICT (FOR BROWNFIELD 
DESIGNATION); ESTABLISHING THE PLANNING COMMISSION AS 
THE ECONOMIC ENHANCEMENT ADVISORY BOARD; 
AUTHORIZING THE PLANNING MANAGER TO NOTIFY THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OF 
SAID DESIGNATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, on June 28, 1993, the City Council of the City of Apopka approved 
Resolution 9316 which established the Community Redevelopment Area (CRA); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Brownfields Redevelopment Act, Sections 376.77-376.85, F.S., and as 
such maybe amended, the “Act” provides for local governments to designate areas as brownfields; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, said CRA qualifies for designation as a brownfield area under the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such brownfield designation will allow for accelerated environmental 
assessment and if necessary, remediation of the property, as well as access to job-related bonus 
monies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the intent of the Act is consistent with the CRA objectives; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the redevelopment of the CRA is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  
 
 The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein. 
 
 Section II.  
  
 The incorporated portions of the Apopka Community Redevelopment Area as identified in 
Exhibit ‘A’ are hereby designated as brownfield areas (aka “economic enhancement district”) 
pursuant to the Brownfields Redevelopment Act, Sections 376.77 – 367.85, F.S., and as such may 
be amended, and are hereby formally identified as the Apopka Economic Enhancement District. 
 
 Section III.  
 
 The Planning Commission is hereby appointed as the Apopka Economic Enhancement 
Advisory Committee as required by Section 376.80(3), F.S. 
 
 Section IV.   
 
 The Planning Manager is hereby authorized to notify the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection of the City of Apopka’s decision to designate a brownfields area for 
remediation, rehabilitation and economic development for the purposes set forth in Sections 
376.77 – 376.84, F.S., as may be amended. 

Page 178



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-03 

PAGE 2 

 
 
  

Section V. Effective Date. 
 
 This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
 17th  day of  February , 2016. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
February 3, 2016 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND APPROVED:     

 
 
February 17, 2016 

 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: January 15, 2016 

      February 5, 2016 

       

       

Page 179



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-03 

PAGE 3 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 
  

 ECONOMIC ENHANCEMENT DISTRICT  

 (FOR BROWNFIELD DESIGNATION) 

 

Page 180



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Resolution 2016-06 – The State Revolving Fund Loan Program for the water reclamation facility. Jay Davoll 
  

Page 181



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: February 17, 2016 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER: Resolution 2016-06 
 

(see attached) 

 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2016-06 – RELATING TO THE STATE REVOLVING FUND 

LOAN PROGRAM; MAKING FINDINGS; AUTHORIZING THE LOAN 

APPLICATION; AUTHORIZING THE LOAN AGREEMENT; ESTABLISHING 

PLEDGED REVENUES; DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES; 

PROVIDING ASSURANCES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, 

AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 
  

Request:     APPROVE RESOLUTION 2016-06 AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE 

STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN PROGRAM TO FUND THE EXPANSION 

AND IMPROVEMENTS OF THE WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY. 
 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

Staff has explored finance alternatives for the financing of the Water Reclamation Facility expansion and 

improvements and have determined that participation in the State Revolving Fund Loan Program through 

the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) will save the City approximately $20M in 

long-term debt service. 
 

It is necessary to obtain funding for this project in a timely manner in order to expedite the Water 

Reclamation Facility expansion and improvement project and comply with the City’s FDEP Consent 

Order No. SPCD-CAP-15-4150 compliance schedule. 
 

 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve Resolution 2016-06. 
 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 
Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 

Public Services Director  

Recreation Director 

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 

Page 182



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, RELATING 

TO THE STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN PROGRAM; 

MAKING FINDINGS; AUTHORIZING THE LOAN 

APPLICATION; AUTHORIZING THE LOAN AGREEMENT; 

ESTABLISHING PLEDGED REVENUES; DESIGNATING 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES; PROVIDING 

ASSURANCES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, 

SEVERABILITY, AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes provide for loans to local government agencies to finance 

the construction of wastewater treatment facilities; and 

WHEREAS, Florida Administrative Code rules require authorization to apply for loans, 

to establish pledged revenues, to designate an authorized representative; to provide assurances of 

compliance with loan program requirements; and to enter into a loan agreement; and 

WHEREAS, The City is authorized by provision of Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, and 

other applicable provisions of law to, among other things, acquire, construct, equip, own, sell, 

lease, operate and maintain various capital improvements and public facilities to promote the 

health, welfare and economic prosperity of the residents of the City and to borrow money to 

finance and refinance the acquisition, construction, equipping and maintenance of such capital 

improvements and public facilities. 

  

WHEREAS, the State Revolving Fund loan priority list designates Project No. 

WW48021 as eligible for available funding; and 

WHEREAS; the City of Apopka, Florida, intends to enter into a loan agreement with the 

Department of Environmental Protection under the State Revolving Fund for project financing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION I.   The foregoing findings are incorporated herein by reference and made a part 

hereof. 

SECTION II.  The City of Apopka, Florida, is authorized to apply for a loan to finance the Project. 

SECTION III.  The revenues pledged for the repayment of the loan are net water and sewer system 

revenues after payment of debt service on the City’s Series 2012 Water and Sewer System Revenue 

Bonds.  Additional revenues pledged to repay the loan are impact fees. 

SECTION IV.  The City Administrator is hereby designated as the authorized representative to 

provide the assurances and commitments required by the loan application. 

SECTION V.  The Mayor is hereby designated as the authorized representative to execute the 

Page 183



loan agreement which will become a binding obligation in accordance with its terms when signed 

by both parties.  The Mayor is authorized to represent the City in carrying out the City’s 

responsibilities under the loan agreement.  The Mayor is authorized to delegate responsibility to 

appropriate City staff to carry out technical, financial, and administrative activities associated with 

the loan agreement. 

SECTION VI.  All resolutions or part of Resolutions in conflict with any of the provisions of 

this Resolution are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION VII.  If any section or portion of a section of this Resolution proves to be invalid, 

unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or effect 

of any other section or part of this Resolution. 

SECTION VIII.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon approval and 

adoption. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 3rd day 

of February, 2015. 

 

 

        CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 

 

 

______________________________

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

Page 184



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Consultant Selection for Retail Development Strategy and Marketing Services     David 
Moon  

  

Page 185



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
       CONSENT AGENDA   MEETING OF:  February 17, 2016 
       PUBLIC HEARING   FROM:   Community Development 
       SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS:                RFP Scope 
  X  OTHER:  Business-Council         RFP Documents 

RFP Questions/Score Sheet 
 

SUBJECT: CONSULTANT SELECTION FOR RETAIL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND 
MARKETING SERVICES 

    

Request: AUTHORIZE NEGOTIATION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT AND 

SCOPE OF SERVICES WITH THE FIRM RANKED FIRST BY THE CITY STAFF AS 

THE RETAIL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND MARKETING SERVICES 

CONSULTANT 
 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

On March 25, 2015, the City received five (5) responses to a Request for Proposal (RFP) to assist the City with the 
preparation and implementation of a retail development strategy and market services effort.   A key goal of this 
project is to recruit sit-down, quality restaurants, casual dining restaurants, and retail stores to locate to the City of 
Apopka. Responses to the RFP were reviewed and ranked by the City Administrator and Planning Manager.  The 
primary intent of this project is not to perform a study that will provide recommendations for future City actions.  
The intent is to develop a tailored marketing package and conduct recruitment activities, directly leading to new 
quality, sit-down or casual dining restaurants and desired retail businesses coming to Apopka.  A two- to three-year 
contract will be signed with the selected firm. 
 

The type of consultants that provide this type of service to local governments comprise a small niche in the business 
consulting field. After review of five RFP responses submitted to the City, three firms were interviewed regarding 
their qualifications and proposal.  The three consulting firms interviewed by telephone conference were:  Retail 
Strategies, LLC (Birmingham, Alabama); Catalyst (Dallas, Texas); and Buxton (Fort Worth, Texas).  
 

Once authorized by City Council, the City Administrator will negotiate a scope of services and a contract with the 
selected firm. The consultant is expected to commence work by April 1, 2016. 
 

 Final ranking of the consulting firms are: 
 

RFP Respondent Ranking 
RFQ Proposal Over 

Three Year Contract Period* 
Catalyst 1st $112,242 
Buxton 2nd $150,000 
Retail Strategies 3rd $109,998 
 *Does not include travel costs to/from Apopka. 

 

FUNDING SOURCE:   
 

Reserves.  Not to exceed $125,000 over three contract years and not to exceed $70,000 in the first contract year.   

(Estimated FY 2015/16 cost estimated not to exceed $55,000)  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

Authorize the City Administrator to negotiate and execute a professional service agreement and scope of services 

with the firm Catalyst.  If the firm ranked first fails to sign an agreement with the City within thirty-five days, the 

City Administrator will move to negotiate with the second ranked firm. 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Services Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk  
City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief                  

Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Retail Strategies  

Apopka, FL 
Retail Development Strategy and Marketing Services 

Prepared: December 30, 2015 

 

 

PREPARED BY:  

MATTHEW PETRO 

RETAIL STRATEGIES, LLC 
 

Page 267



To: The City of Apopka, 

 

On behalf of Retail Strategies, LLC I am pleased to acknowledge our understanding of the statements and conditions 

within this document, and to present our Request for Qualifications response to the City of Apopka for Retail Development 

Strategy and Marketing Services. The scope of this proposal is right in line with the work Retail Strategies has provided 

to nearly 130 communities in 23 states.  With roots in commercial real estate, and leveraging a national network of retail 

contacts and relationships, Retail Strategies is uniquely qualified to fulfill this need for the City of Apopka.  

 

All of our engagements begin with an exhaustive discovery process that includes a quantitative assessment of the Apopka 

trade areas (using multiple geographic parameters) in order to understand the customer dynamics at the neighborhood, 

city and regional levels.  We leverage best in class data from a myriad of sources including demographic, psychographic, 

retail gap analysis, peer analysis, cell phone tracking software, and consumer expenditure data in order to identify suitable 

prospects for specific locations in Apopka.  In addition, we will deploy experienced retail real estate professionals to 

Apopka for the purpose of conducting an assessment of the real estate environment in the market. Even the best analysis 

and data provided to a retailer will be put on hold if there isn’t a site for them to consider in the market. If given the 

opportunity to implement on behalf of Apopka, our team of recruitment professionals, all of whom are licensed real estate 

professionals, will use this information to drive discussions with the retail prospects who belong in Apopka. 

 

The shelf life of a retail real estate plan, prospects, and marketing packages are short lived because retail real estate is a 

dynamic and connection based business. Retailers are constantly modifying their site criteria and changing their 

expansion plans. In addition, the real estate assets within Apopka will constantly change. This is why having a team of 

dedicated professionals to grow and adjust your strategy to the changing marketplace is paramount.  

 

In our conversations with retail real estate deal makers we often here of ‘marketing packages’ that Cities provide. These 

packages do little to influence a retailer, developer, or investor to make multi-million dollar transactions within a market. 

In addition, these packages typically list real estate available in the market versus identifying a specific site that will meet 

the retailer’s site criteria metrics. Our team currently employs a former VP of Real Estate for Costco and Real Estate 

Director from Hibbett Sports who will articulate that no marketing package provided by a City ever influenced their real 

estate decisions.  

 

Twenty-five of our Clients have previously hired a consultant to provide a plan, prospects, and marketing packages - 

these efforts yielded minimal results. These communities have turned their efforts over to our team to function as an 

extension of their staff to execute on specific retail real estate opportunities within their markets. Our team has over 150 

years of retail real estate experience, 18 licensed real estate professionals, and our client to staff ratio is 4:1. Our team 

has the manpower, experience, and connections to identify, evaluate, and execute against opportunities in Apopka.  

 

Retail real estate is a multi-year process and it is our commitment to be your long term partner to adjust our plan to the 

changing marketplace and grow with your community. If given the opportunity to perform the initial task of designing a 

Retail Development Strategy and Implementation Plan it would be our goal to become your implementation team to 

provide the manpower needed to attract the right retail and restaurant concepts to the City of Apopka. 

 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to participate in this process, 

Matthew Petro 

Retail Strategies  

Page 268



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.0 Organization History       

2.0 Personnel Qualifications       

3.0 Scope of Services         11 

4.0 Schedule 

5.0 References 

6.0 Examples of Our Recruitment 

7.0 Investment 

8.0 Contract 

        

  

     

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 269



Organizational History 

Retail recruitment and retention is a primary goal for most communities across the country. 

According to the National League of Cities, 75% of Mayors focus on Economic Development Issues 

to address cities.  In the past cities have spent valuable time on industrial recruitment as their 

sole effort in Economic Development.  Progressive municipalities have diversified their economic 

development efforts to include Retail Recruitment. Through these efforts, some have hired 

consultants for retail analysis, only to be left with research reports, a list of retailers, and limited 

guidance on the actual process of recruiting prospects to their community.  

To fill the void within the market, Retail Strategies was formed.  Retail Strategies originated from 

a Real Estate firm which enables communities the opportunity to have retail real estate 

professionals devise and execute a tailored retail real estate focused recruitment strategy. Since 

our inception we have targeted highly motivated and skilled retail real estate professionals. Today 

our team features 27 team members, 18 licensed Real Estate Professionals, and 150+ years of 

retail real estate experience. Retail Strategies has offices in Birmingham, AL, Fort Worth, TX, and 

Green Bay, WI.  

Several factors create challenges for communities when it comes to retail recruitment without a 

strategic partner.  Time, knowledge, resources and connections limit the effectiveness and 

efficiency of the communities’ efforts.  Our model overcomes these barriers by committing an 

experienced, focused, well connected team working on your behalf.  Using economies of scale, 

our approach is both strategic and comprehensive. By combining research, analysis, a Strategic 

Retail Recruitment Plan, marketing materials, conference representation, and pro-active retail 

recruitment, our firm has helped communities across the country define and execute against 

specific opportunities.  

Retail is perhaps the fastest changing of all the commercial real estate sectors.  Rather than 

providing a static study that is quickly outdated, the ongoing implementation creates a dynamic 

strategy that can pivot as the market demands.  

Within 90 days a Strategic Plan will be created.  Following the presentation of the Strategic Plan 

the Retail Strategies team goes to work on your behalf recruiting both the retailers, and 

developers, who will be interested, and more importantly, successful in your community, creating 

tangible results for your residents.  

 

 

 

Page 270



Key Staff & Professional Qualifications  

 

Robert Jolly, Principal 

Robert Jolly co-founded Retail Strategies in 2011 and since then has overseen development of 

numerous retail projects and has assisted some of the most well-known tenants in the United States 

with their expansion into new markets throughout the Southeast. 

 

Robert brings years of experience with previous sales and management positions at Eason, Graham, 

and Sandner, Inc. and Black and Decker Corporation.  He was the Birmingham Commercial Rookie of 

the Year in 1998, named one of the “Top 40 Under 40” in 2004, and “Who’s Who of Commercial Real 

Estate” in 2005 and 2010.  

 

Robert graduated from the University of Alabama majoring in marketing and english. He is a member 

of the International Council of Shopping Centers, a life member of the Birmingham Association of 

Realtors “Million Dollar Sales Club” and in 2008 earned the coveted Certified Commercial Investment 

Member (CCIM) designation from the Commercial Real Estate Investment Institute.  Robert holds a 

broker’s license in Alabama, Mississippi, Georgia, Florida, Tennessee, Louisiana, South Carolina and 

Oklahoma. 

 

Mead Silsbee, Principal 

Mead Silsbee co-founded Retail Strategies in 2011 and brings over a decade of real estate experience 

to the company. Most recently Mead worked on the retail team at Eason, Graham, and Sandner, Inc. in 

Birmingham, Alabama. He previously held positions at Hamlet Homes and Intermountain Mortgage 

Company in Park City, Utah. 

 

Mead graduated from the Randolph-Macon College in Ashland, Virginia where he earned a bachelor’s 

degree in history and economics. In 2008, he earned the coveted Certified Commercial Investment 

Member (CCIM) designation from the Commercial Real Estate Investment Institute and is a member of 

the International Council of Shopping Centers (ICSC). 

 

Wade Robinett, COO 

Wade will lead Retail Strategies execution of our clients’ strategic plan and recruitment strategy as he 

oversees the team of Client Managers and Retail Recruiters engaged in each client city. Prior to joining 

Retail Strategies, Wade spent twelve years at Colonial Properties Trust, a publicly traded REIT, where he 

specialized in new development project leasing. He was involved in all aspects related to new 

developments including site plan design, tenant strategy and leasing execution. Wade’s project leasing 

experience has resulted in developing working relationships with a network of national brokers, 

developers and retailers.  

 

His experience also included ground up development and mixed used projects that incorporated retail, 

office and residential. In addition, Wade managed the leasing team for 20 open air centers totaling 

over five million square feet in Texas, Tennessee, Florida, North Carolina, Alabama, and Georgia. He 

handled all communication with the asset managers and was responsible for overseeing all deal 

making. Wade’s first ten years in the commercial real estate industry began at Colliers Keenan in South 

Carolina where he leased distressed shopping centers throughout the Southeast. 

Page 271



 

Lacy Beasley, Vice President of Business Development 

Lacy serves as Vice President of Business Development. She has been involved in Retail Consulting 

across the Southeast for the past five years as the Municipality Consultant Director at The Shopping 

Center Group. Prior to her work with TSCG, Lacy was with the Dickson County Chamber of Commerce. 

 

A graduate of Lipscomb University, she earned her double major in Marketing and Management. Lacy 

Beasley has served on the ICSC TN/KY Idea Exchange Committee, CCIM Economic Outlook Committee, 

and Economic Development Association of Alabama [EDAA] Retail Committee. She has spoken on retail 

trends and best practices in retail recruitment to the Tennessee Valley Authority, Alabama Certified 

Municipal Officials, Tennessee Economic Development Council, Tennessee League of Municipalities 

and other organizations. 

 

 

Tiffany Kilpatrick, Client Management & Acquisitions 

Tiffany joined Retail Strategies in 2015 as Client Manager and Acquisitions Specialist. She will be the 

day to day point of contact for our client cities in Tennessee, North Carolina and Kentucky. As 

Acquisitions Specialist, Tiffany will seek value add properties for purchase. 

 

Prior to joining the Retail Strategies team, Tiffany was a Real Estate Manager for Hibbett Sports. Her 

primary role was site selection for new Hibbett Sports stores. Tiffany has overseen the site selection 

process and negotiated leases for over 130 locations in 10 states. 

 

Tiffany started her career with Hibbett in 2004 as the Assistant to the Real Estate Department and 

quickly moved into the role of Real Estate Manager. As Real Estate Manager, Tiffany initially worked 

with the states of AZ, CO, NC, MS and NM. Prior to leaving, Tiffany was working the states of AL, IL, KY 

and TN.  

 

Tiffany is a graduate of the University of Alabama, where she earned a Bachelor’s Degree in Public 

Relations. She served two terms as the ICSC AL/MS Retail Chair, as well as the Next Generation Chair 

for AL/MS. Tiffany resides in Birmingham with her husband, Matthew and son, Mason. 

 

 

 

 

Joe Kucharski, Development 

Joe has over 25 years of Retail Real Estate experience, helping retailers achieve their goals for 

expansion.  Joe has completed real estate projects for major grocery store chains (SUPERVALU, Food 

Lion, Weis Markets), specialty retailers (Office Depot), general merchandise retailers (Shopko, Shopko 

Hometown), and warehouse clubs (Costco Wholesale).  The variety of retailers for whom he has 

completed real estate projects has provided him the opportunity to work in communities ranging in 

size from large metropolitan areas to small rural towns.  In all, Joe has worked on Retail Real Estate 

projects in 42 different states and Puerto Rico. 

 

Joe has a Bachelors Degree from Purdue University in Landscape Architecture, with a background in 

Urban Economics and Urban Planning.  He was born in the upper Midwest and had also lived in the 

mid-Atlantic prior to moving back to the Midwest.  In his free time, Joe enjoys bicycle touring, tennis, 

skiing and kayaking. 

 

Page 272



 

Matthew Petro, Director of Business Development 

Matthew is the Director of Business Development for Retail Strategies focusing on the execution of the 

Strategic Retail Recruitment Plan for his Clients. Matthew has a passion to succeed and a relentless 

work ethic that he brings to each engagement. In addition to a degree from the University of Alabama 

in Marketing and Sales, Matthew is a licensed Real Estate Professional. Matthew combines his skill set 

with an innovative mentality to identify ways to improve the service our clients receive. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Ashton Arrington, Client Management 

Ashton joined Retail Strategies with extensive knowledge and experience in working with state and 

local elected officials, economic developers, chambers of commerce, political parties, and municipal 

and county governments. Previously, Ashton worked as Governmental Affairs Coordinator at Maynard 

Cooper and Gale P.C., one of the Southeast’s leading law firms. In this role, she interacted daily with 

business, community, and political leaders across Alabama on legislative and economic development 

projects. Ashton also worked as Deputy Finance Director for the successful re-election campaign of 

Alabama Governor Robert Bentley and in the same capacity on Bentley’s Inaugural Committee. 

 

Ashton completed her undergraduate work at The University of Alabama in 2008 with a Bachelor of 

Arts Degree in Public Relations. She also has a Juris Doctorate from the Birmingham School of Law. She 

serves as a junior board member for Glenwood Autism and Behavioral Health Center and is a member 

of the Alabama State Bar. 

 

Joe Strauss, Retail Development Director 

Joe joined Retail Strategies in 2014 with a background in real estate. He specializes in retail 

recruitment and focuses on the identification of companies to fill the product and service gaps within 

each city’s trade area. 

 

Prior to joining Retail Strategies, Joe has been doing real estate since 2007 in Tuscaloosa, AL. Joe 

graduated from the University of Alabama with a bachelor’s degree in Finance and a concentration in 

real estate. 

 

 

 

 

 

Clay Craft, Retail Development Director 

Clay specializes in retail recruitment and focuses on the identification of companies to fill the product 

and service gaps within each city’s trade area .Clay graduated from Auburn University in 2010 with a 

Masters of Landscape Architecture. 

Page 273



 

Jordan Williams, Retail Development Associate 

Jordan specializes in retail recruitment and focuses on the identification of companies to fill the 

product and service gaps within each city’s trade area. Jordan graduated from the University of 

Alabama at Birmingham with a bachelor’s degree in Economics and a concentration in analysis and 

policy. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Lana Nicholson, Controller 

Lana joined Retail Strategies in 2011 as Controller. She is responsible for the accounting and operation 

of the day-to-day business of Retail Strategies. Previously, she served as an Accountant with Culotta, 

Scroggins, Hendricks & Gillespie, P.C. and brings with her several years of experience in Public 

Accounting. Lana earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from University of Alabama at 

Birmingham in 2010 and is a Certified Public Accountant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Laura Marinos, Director of Marketing 

As the Director of Marketing for Retail Strategies, Laura speccializes in GIS mapping, market research, 

market development plans, site submittal marketing packages, project coordination, event 

management, and team operations. Laura also assists in database management, client communication, 

advanced research and the organization of all digital media.  Laura graduated from the University of 

Alabama at Birmingham in 2011 with a Bachelor of Science in Marketing. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 274



 

 

Ford Fitts, Senior Research Analyst 

Ford is a member of the Retail Strategies team assisting in the research and retail recruitment efforts 

for municipal clients. He works with business developers and client managers on creating trade areas 

and research reports for their clients. He brings research experience from working for a strategic 

advocacy firm in Washington D.C. that served political campaigns, non-profit organizations and 

corporate clients. Ford graduated from the University of Alabama with a bachelor’s degree in History. 

 

 

 

 

 

Madeline Branch, Marketing Assistant 

As Marketing Assistant, Madeline assists in creating market development plans, site submittal 

packages, GIS reports and aerial maps. She interacts directly with several retail clients and helps in 

coordinating the efforts of multiple Retail Specialists producers. She is also responsible for helping 

create marketing packages and other advertising materials for third party property listings. Madeline 

graduated from Auburn University in 2014 with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Public Relations and a 

business minor. 

 

For a Full List of Our Team Members Please Visit www.retailstrategies.com/about-us/our-team 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 275



Scope of Work 
 Review and report on the current status of Retail in the City of Apopka including, but not 

limited to, land use, space allocation, vacancies, lease/rental rates, current retail mix and 

planned development. Report will break down inventory according to the three distinct 

commercial nodes – Town Center, Kelly Park Road/Wekiva Parkway, and New Market (new 

Florida Hospital area) – as well as community-wide perspective.  

 Define primary, secondary, and tertiary trade areas. Trade area will be identified with 

consideration of population, proximity to other competing business districts, destination 

attractions, traffic patterns, drive-times, retail mix, store sizes, and average sales 

volumes. In addition, Retail Strategies will use Cell Phone Tracking software to uncover 

the true trade areas within the City of Apopka. With this software we can look at the past 

calendar year to see where people come from the shop within the City of Apopka. 

 Develop Customer Profiles. The customer profile information will include detailed 

demographics, lifestyle segmentation data, spending habits, and many other additional 

factors.  

 An analysis of the trade area to identify new potential customers and additional market 

sales potential derived from supply and demand within the market and its trade areas. 

  Identify at least three peer cities. Peer cities will be identified by population, daytime 

population, gross leasable area, market supply, and income levels. The peer communities 

will serve as potential models for a strategic retail development plan. Where appropriate, 

an analysis of incentives offered by the city and/or private property owners or business 

that contributed to the city’s retail success shall be provided.  

 Develop a retail development plan. The plan serves to realize the City’s adopted vision for 

retail development, meets the demand of the market, and considers the characteristics of 

the customers within the identified trade areas. The plan will identify retail categories, 

niches, and specific retail stores within those groupings to target for recruitment. The list 

of specific target retail stores will be extensive. The strategy will identify specific potential 

locations and spaces for targeted retail that considers all data gathered. 

 Marketing and Recruitment Strategy – this strategy can be immediately implemented to 

market and attract preferred targeted retail establishments, meet the goals of the retail 

development plan, and attract targeted retail and restaurant concepts to the City of 

Apopka. Marketing package will be tailored to the specific retailer and include information 

on the trade area, customer profiles, demographics, potential retail locations, city 

amenities, city history/culture/brand, tax information, leasing rates, relevant incentive 

programs, parking, infrastructure, supply and demand figures, and any other information 

that would be conducive to attracting those targeted retail and restaurant prospects to 

the City of Apopka. 

Page 276



 

 Report on all data sources used in the final deliverable. All information used can be 

obtained during the life of our agreement with the City of Apopka. For the City of Apopka 

to license all of the sources Retail Strategies uses would be a $100,000+ expense each 

year. 

 

Detailed Scope of Work  
• Identify Apopka market Retail Trade Areas using political boundaries, drive times 

and radii and custom boundary geographies 

• Identify Apopka Trade Area by Geocoding Cell Phone Users who Live, Work, or Shop 

within Apopka 

 Perform Market & Retail GAP Analysis for each trade area (Leakage and Surplus) 

 Provide Consumer Propensity Report  (Consumer Attitude and Behavior Analysis) 

 Conduct Retail Peer Market Analysis 

• Competition analysis between Apopka market trade area(s) and surrounding 

competitive communities  

• Cannibalization Analysis (Distance Tolerance) for all recommended retail prospects 

between nearest existing locations and Apopka 

• Psychographic Profile of Trade Area / Market Segmentation Analysis 

• Demographic data and market information report 

• Thematic Mapping and Aerial Imagery by trade area   

• Retail Competitor Mapping/Analysis 

• Market Maximization Summary and Strategic Leasing Plan  

• Market Viability 

• Analysis of future retail space requirements in relation to the retail market analysis, 

the market’s growth potential and trends in the retail industry 

• Identification of Retail Prospects to be targeted for recruitment 

• Retailer Recruitment and Execution of the Retail Strategic Plan  

• Updates on Retail Industry Trends 

• Custom On-Demand Demographic Research – Historical, Current, and Projected 

Demographics – to include market trade areas by radius/drive-time, and custom 

trade areas associated with Apopka 

• Daytime Population Identification 

• Work Place Establishment, Employment, and Salary 

• Market Outlook & Sales Potential 

• Customizable Reports 

 

Page 277



Real Estate Analysis 

 Identify/Evaluate/Catalog Priority Commercial Properties for Leasing, Development, 

Re-development and higher and best use opportunities 

• Identification of Priority Business Categories for Recruitment and/or Local Expansion 

 Perform Competitive Analysis of Existing Shopping Centers and retail corridors 

Deliverables 

 Apopka Retail Market Analysis 

 Apopka Retail Development Plan 

 Apopka Strategic Marketing and Recruitment Strategy 

 Hard Copies and Electronic Copies of the Analysis, the Development Plan, 

Recruitment Strategy, and Marketing Materials  

Implementation and Recruitment (optional) 

 Pro-Active Retail Recruitment 

 ICSC Representation 

 Development of Marketing Materials 

 Leverage a National Network of Retail and Development Contacts 

 Identify and Review Incentives 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 278



Schedule 

Apopka 

Item Timeline Completion Date 

1. Contract Signed/Service Start Date February 15, 2016 - 

2. BaseCamp Account Access 24 Hours February 16, 2016 

3. Portfolio Director contacts City of 

Apopka to welcome them to Retail 

Strategies, provides Getting Started 

Documents 

48 Hours February 17, 2016 

4. Initial Research Completed 10 Days February 25, 2016 

5. Aerials 15 Days March 1, 2016 

6. Getting Started Documents (especially 

photos) uploaded to BaseCamp by City 

of Apopka 

30 Days March 16, 2016 

7. Custom Research 45 Days April 4, 2016 

8. BOG Completion Date 45 Days April 4, 2016 

9. Retail & Restaurant Target List 

Completed 
60 Days April 19, 2016 

10. Recruitment Objectives, Real Estate 

Analysis Results, Real Estate Aerials & 

Focus Properties Submitted for Internal 

Approval 

60 Days April 19, 2016 

11. Marketing Guide 80 Days May 10, 2016 

12. Strategic Plan Due for Review 80 Days May 10, 2016 

13. Presentation of Strategic Plan 

Scheduled with City of Apopka 
90 Days May 18, 2016 

 

Page 279



References & Examples of Work Delivered 

Lake City, FL 

a. Lake City – Columbia County Chamber of Commerce Partnership 

b. Project Reference 

Dennille Decker 

Executive Director 

Lake City-Columbia County Chamber of Commerce 

386-752-3690 

dennille@lakecitychamber.com 

c. All deliverables were provided within budget 

d. Project Start Date: March 2014 

e. Project Completion Date: Ongoing 

f. Project Total Cost: Confidential 

g. Project Overview Summary: 

Our partnership with the City of Lake City, FL has yielded major public retail 

results in the first calendar year of our engagement. Harbor Freight Tools, Sear’s 

Hometown Store, Dairy Queen, Panda Express, and Mattress Firm, have either 

opened or will locate in Lake City in 2015. In addition to those successes, our 

team is working with multiple property owners, retailers, and developers to 

further bolster the retail sector by recruiting retailers and restaurants to fill 

product and service GAPs within Lake City. One of the opportunities we are 

assisting with is at the heart of Lake City’s Retail Corridor. This project will 

feature two new to market retailers and multiple other desired concepts. Since 

our engagement began with Lake City in March of 2014 our team has recruited 

10+ retailers that have either publicly announced or signed Letters of Intent for 

sites in Lake City.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 280



 

Tullahoma, TN 

a. Project Location: Tullahoma, TN 

b. Project Reference: 

Diane Bryant  

Executive Director, Chamber of Commerce 

dianebryant@tullahoma.org 

(931) 455-5497 

c. All deliverables were provided within budget 

d. Project Start Date: March 2014 

e. Project Completion Date: Ongoing 

f. Project Total Cost: Confidential 

g. Project Overview Summary: 

Tullahoma is a city in Tennessee with a population of nearly 19,000. Retail 

Strategies has had multiple success stories here, including Dollar Tree, Harbor 

Freight, Dunham’s, Aspen Dental, Petsense, Petsmart, and Jo-Ann Fabric. Lacy 

Beasley, with Retail Strategies, identified Jo-Ann Fabric as a prospective retailer 

for the Tullahoma market, and provided them with the appropriate analytics to 

help the deal close. Their tenant rep broker, Jake Ogle, provided the following 

quote: “The Jo-Ann deal was approved for Tullahoma! The information Retail 

Strategies provided was very helpful and very important in getting this deal 

done. It’s one of the biggest reason this deal was able to get pushed through.” 

Project Reference: 

Diane Bryant  

Executive Director, Chamber of Commerce 

dianebryant@tullahoma.org 

(931) 455-5497 

 

 

 

 

Page 281



 

Cookeville, TN 

a. Project Location: Cookeville, TN 

b. Project Reference: 

Melinda Keifer  

Economic & Community Develop Coordinator 

mkeifer@cookeville-tn.org 

(931) 520-5226 

c. All deliverables were provided within budget 

d. Project Start Date: March 2014 

e. Project Completion Date: Ongoing 

f. Project Total Cost: Confidential 

g. Project Overview Summary: 

Cookeville is a city in Tennessee with a population of over 31,000. Retail 

Strategies has played a vital role in a new development planned for Cookeville. 

The Retail Strategies team has worked first-hand with the developers, retailers 

and the city to provide an incentive for a power center that will add a big box 

sporting goods retailers, grocery concept, discount clothing retailer, cosmetic 

retailer and multiple other retailers (all new to market concepts).   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 282



Decatur Private Update
RETAIL STRATEGIES UPDATE

WE MAKE RETAIL HAPPEN.

LAURA HUDSON
Client Manager
205.306.6579

laura@retailstrategies.com

Summary of 2014

 Conducted “Boots on the Ground” tour of Decatur; created and presented strategic 
plan

 Represented Decatur at 4 different ICSC trade shows, including RECON
 Communicated with approximately 75 retailers, brokers, developers, and/or land 

owners regarding Decatur

Year 1 Recap
 Basecamp access provided
 BOG – “Boots on the Ground” real estate analysis completed 
 Research findings and Strategic Plan delivered
 Started retail recruitment process. Progress made:

First Quarter of Engagement: 

Created and provided all the market analysis including strategic plan, retail prospects, marketing 
flyer and inventory of sites.  

Provided information to Odell Companies out of Orange County, CA– Chris Spivey 999-123-4567  

The company will purchase, redevelop and re-tenant unanchored shopping centers 20,000 – 50,000 

SF. Idea is to relocate the mom and pop stores (perhaps to downtown) and lease the center to 

national credit tenants that will increase the value of the property. Also will take raw land and 

prepare it for a developers or take the land to “pad ready” status. Retail Strategies provided a list of 

existing shopping centers and land with contact information to Chris to analyses and review if the 

property is a good match for their area of expertise.

Follow Up: Would the city like Retail Strategies to provide the 23 acre site to Odell Company?  

Learned about Shops at Lemon Place.  Connected with Steve Brown who led us to Don Arthur.  Have 
since worked closely with Arthur on the project assisting him in ideas for leads and marketing 
materials.  

Page 283



Decatur Private Update
RETAIL STRATEGIES UPDATE

WE MAKE RETAIL HAPPEN.

LAURA HUDSON
Client Manager
205.306.6579

laura@retailstrategies.com

Second Quarter of Engagement: 

Discovered Factory Connection is interested in Decatur. Retail Strategies sent them sites.  

They are looking for:

 3,000 to 5,000 square feet of selling space (minimum 500 square feet of backroom space)

 Targeting strip centers, regional malls, downtown locations

Spoke with Sears and they are extremely interested in Decatur. They have two business models they 

feel would work here:

Sears Hometown Store

 Needs an operator

 Look for 8,000 - 10,000 sf

Sears Store within a Store

 They partner with an existing furniture, appliance, lumber, flooring, hardware, etc store to open 

up a 2,000 - 5,000 SF Sear's store within the current store location

 I am attaching their press release for this new concept

Confidential - We are making a push to Ross Dress for Less to locate in the new Hobby Lobby 

shopping center.

Rumor not confirmed. Burke's maybe relocating to the new Hobby Lobby center.

Presented Decatur to Nashville, TN based national developer, Whitewater Sources.  Suggested a 

grocery anchored shopping center at the southeast corner of S 3rd AVE & Hwy 73.

Third Quarter of Engagement: 

Met with Tom Potts of Eli Giant to discuss the future plans for Pear Tree Plaza and see how we can 

help them out.  He broke the news that they are about to sell the property so we will reach out to the 

new owners once the property has been sold to offer up our help with the center. We will still be 

marketing the center as they have spaces that need to be filled.

Page 284



Decatur Private Update
RETAIL STRATEGIES UPDATE

WE MAKE RETAIL HAPPEN.

LAURA HUDSON
Client Manager
205.306.6579

laura@retailstrategies.com

We met with the tenant rep for Ollie's Bargain Outlet and he said that he likes the former Country 

Outfitters box and wants to submit it to corporate for review. Will keep you updated on this lead.

Flyer created for City Owned Stanley Park property next to new shopping center. 

23 ACRES ON PRIME RETAIL SITE

485 FEET OF FRONTAGE ON HWY 72

NEXT TO NATIONAL RETAIL CENTERS

ZONED GENERAL HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT

4-LANE HIGHWAY - TRAFFIC COUNT - 24,000 AADT

ELECTRIC; WATER; SEWER; GAS – 1,400 FT. TO SITE (on same side of highway)

$1,450,000

CONTACT: MATT BEASLEY- 999-123-1234

Radioshack – Closing a number of stores. There is a possibility this could affect your location. I will 

keep in mind when prospecting that Sprint is backfilling their locations and are looking to acquire 

almost half of their stores. We will keep you posted.

Fourth Quarter of Engagement: 

Updates from Arthur of IP on the status of Shops at Lemon Place. 

The Shops at Lemon Place: Signed leases for Hobby Lobby, TJX, Rack Room Shoes, & Mattress Firm.

Shoppes at Lemon Place: Ross & Kay Jewelers looking at center, expecting to have them sign soon.

Spoke with Bill Coor at Publix and he said in the 3 + years of working he had never received any 

requests to enter the market. Based upon the information I provided he would like to take a look at 

the market within the next few months. He asked me to check back with him in next few months to 

see if he had visited. I sent him over the 23 acre city owned site next to national retail shopping 

center.

Page 285



Decatur Private Update
RETAIL STRATEGIES UPDATE

WE MAKE RETAIL HAPPEN.

LAURA HUDSON
Client Manager
205.306.6579

laura@retailstrategies.com

Bill emailed me today and said that he had visited the market and took a look at the site. He said, " I 
probably didn’t have enough time to see all of the market that I should have seen. I did see some 
nice housing in the north part of the city. Most of those people probably shop at Whole 
Foods. There is a lot of competition but the only ones I visited were Food Lion and Harris 
Teeter. There could be some interest in studying the market further if the right site were available but 
it is not high priority."
Moving forward, I would like to gather more sites and keep following up with him on the market. Any 
other site suggestions the City can offer would be appreciated.

Gabe’s is doing 15 new locations in the country right now. The Master Broker for the account 
recently changed to Clark Stevens with OCHO in Philadelphia, PA. He will be touring the markets this 
spring. Currently they are looking for second generation space with B real estate in A markets. Will 
fill in the major metropolitan areas before opening locations in secondary markets. Will continue to 
monitor and follow up in 6 months to see if the growth strategy has changed.

Had a very informative dinner with Arthur to discuss the Shops at Lemon Place and Pear Tree Plaza. 
Offered continued assistance in marketing, research and prospecting for the project. He is very 
pleased that the city offers the services of Retail Strategies to assist in his Decatur projects. 
Let him know that Hungry Howie’s and Chick fil A are looking for sites.  He asked me to tap into my 
contacts to learn more about Dunham’s Sports and Harbor Freight interest in the market. 
He did not confirm that Ollie’s would be going into the former Country Store so I followed up with 
the tenant rep broker, Chris Allen, this morning. Chris Allen will not be at the ICSC Idea Exchange this 
March, but is usually good about responding to emails in a timely manner.
Arthur will be at the ICSCIdea Exchange. Will plan to attend the Retail Strategies hosted reception on 
Tuesday evening.

Page 286



Decatur Private Update
RETAIL STRATEGIES UPDATE

WE MAKE RETAIL HAPPEN.

LAURA HUDSON
Client Manager
205.306.6579

laura@retailstrategies.com

Facilitated conference call between Arthur and John Champ. John Champ has done a dozen 
Dunham's Sports deals over the last 5 years. Dunham's is difficult and slow to get a deal done. John is 
a key point of contact for them. Arthur communicated with Retail Strategies that Dunham's originally 
had LOI on the former Country Store then went silent. Arthur has not been able to get back in touch 
since that time. We believe John will be able to bring Dunham's Sports back to Decatur. Dunham's has 
changed their model since original LOI. They now want at least 50,000 SF. Arthur mentioned Burks 
outlet is considering relocating to the new development which would allow Dunham's to take 
Country Store and former Burks outlet. John estimates it will take 3 weeks to get response from 
Dunham's.

Sent Kangaroo (The Pantry) city information with demographics. Not currently interested. Will revisit 
in 6 months as they are always updating their strategy for expansion.

Leasing agent on Decatur Marketplace has changed from Mike McDonald with Crecent Properties to 
Joe Vines of SVP. Lacy Beasley met with Chris Ivory of Variety Wholesale (Rose’s) at the ICSC Idea 
Exchange.  Chris likes the property and has submitted an LOI to the landlord.  

Summary of Interested Retailers : 

Rose’s 
Walmart Neighborhood Market
Publix
Galaxy Foods
Fred’s Pharmacy
Hungry Howie’s 
Ollie’s Bargain Brands
Harbor Freight
Dunham’s Sports 
Sear’s Hometown Store 

Page 287



RECON 2015
Retail Strategies Summary of RECon

Retail Strategies 40x40 RECon Booth

LAURA HUDSON

Client Manager
205-306-6579 Cell

Laura.hudson@retailstrategies.com

#RECon2015 
The Retail Strategies team had a very productive RECon 2015! Our retail recruiters and client
mangers have been setting meetings for more than a month with retailers, brokers and developers
to discuss opportunities in Decatur. ICSC RECon is the largest retail real estate conference of the
year and it’s one of our best opportunities to get in front of decision makers. RECon is about
relationships and with 26 members of our team attending, we had Decatur covered from every
angle! Our ability to network with attendees and leverage relationships across the country on
behalf of Decatur was fully realized at RECon.

This year Retail Strategies secured a 40x40 booth right next to the new Retail Central Networking
Lounge: Booth #C2220 in Central Hall 5 at the intersection of G Street and 21st Ave. Below is a
visual of what our space looked like.

The Retail Strategies team is working diligently to follow up with prospective retailers, brokers, and 
developers we met with on behalf of Decatur.

Page 288



RECON 2015
Retail Strategies Guide to RECon

• Nearly 35,000 Industry Professionals 
• Over 1,000 Leasing Mall Exhibitors
• Over 200 MarketPlace Mall Exhibitors
• Nearly 100 SPREE RECon Exhibitors 
• Over 50 Cities of the World Exhibitors 
• 21 Companies in the Finance Pavilion
• 100+ Retailers
• 200+ New Companies Participating in RECon 2015 

Retail Strategies had several productive meetings on behalf of Decatur, 
including but not limited to:

2nd and Charles Walmart Express
Capriotti’s Sandwich Shop McAlister’s
Chipotle Deep River Partners, LLC
Factory Connection Katz & Associates
Firehouse Subs Regency Properties
Jersey Mikes Hilton
Sears Hometown Store
Sport Clips
Starbucks

LAURA HUDSON

Client Manager
205-306-6579 Cell

Laura.hudson@retailstrategies.com

Page 289



RECON 2015
Retail Strategies Guide to RECon

• 2nd and Charles- Opening 10 new stores in 2015; considering doing 10k –
15k sf concepts in smaller markets

• Capriotti’s Sandwich Shop- Following up with sites
• Walmart Neighborhood Market/Express- Delivered marketing material; will 

follow up to gauge interest in Decatur

• Chipotle- Opening 180 new stores in 2015; will follow up with sites

• Factory Connection- Opening 18 new stores; seeks co-tenancy with dollar 
store, sporting goods, and grocery 

• Firehouse Subs- Delivered marketing material; following up to gauge 
interest in the market

• Jersey Mikes- Needs local franchisee

• Popeyes- Opening 100 new stores in 2015; seeking 2500 sf

• McAlister’s- Opening 60 new stores; desired co-tenants are big boxes such 
as Walmart, Target, Kohl’s, Bed Bath & Beyond

• Hilton- Following up on their interest in Decatur

LAURA HUDSON

Client Manager
205-306-6579 Cell

Laura.hudson@retailstrategies.com

Page 290



RECON 2015
Retail Strategies Guide to RECon

• Panda Express- Will follow up to gauge interest in the market

• Sears Hometown Store- Needs local franchisee

• Sport Clips- Needs local franchisee

• Starbucks- Opening 200 new stores nationwide

• Deep River Partners, LLC- Brian Price toured market; sent him 23+/- acre 
site; they are interested

• Katz & Associates- Met with Stephanie Violet; Bath and Bodyworks 
currently is not interested in the market due to the size

• Regency Properties- Interested in purchasing old malls and strip centers

• The Shopping Center Group- Met with Scott VonConnor, who said Ollies 
Bargain Brands will consider the market with the right site; Center Pointe is 
excluded by Big Lots; Decatur Marketplace is in receivership

LAURA HUDSON

Client Manager
205-306-6579 Cell

Laura.hudson@retailstrategies.com

Page 291



Decatur, NC
RETAIL STRATEGIES UPDATE

WE MAKE RETAIL HAPPEN.

LAURA HUDSON
Client Manager
205.306.6579

laura@retailstrategies.com

Walgreens – for a second location

Fred’s Pharmacy

Publix – follow up to previous interest

Sprouts 

Walmart Neighborhood Market – Follow up on previously 

expressed interest

Lowe’s Food – not interested at this time

Galaxy Food – sent them the former Save A Lot site 

Logan’s 

Chili’s – not at this time

IHOP

Johnny Rockets

Buffalo Wild Wings – not at this time

Huddle House

Cracker Barrel

Cheddars

Golden Corral 

Capriotti's Sandwich Shop
Caribou Coffee
Chipotle
East Coast Wings
Firehouse Subs
Five Guys
Genghis Grill
Hungry Howies
Jersey Mike's
Moe's Southwest Grill
Panda Express
PDQ
Popeyes

Retail Strategies connected with the following retailers on behalf 

of Decatur, NC:

Starbucks
Tijuana Flats
Whataburger
Chick-fil-A
K&G Fashion
Roses
Kohl's
Gabe's
Conn's
HH Gregg
Jared
Kay
Charming Charlies
Dunham’s 
Rural King
Ulta
Citi Trends
DressBarn
Francesca's Collections
Bassett Furniture
Home Goods
Farmers Home Furniture
Pier 1 Imports
Payless
Foot Locker
Shoe Carnival
Rack Room Shoes
Sheetz
2ND & Charles
Pet Supermarket
Sport Clips

Page 292



Decatur Public Update
RETAIL STRATEGIES UPDATE

WE MAKE RETAIL HAPPEN.

Summary of Activity 

 Represented Decatur at 4 different ICSC trade shows, including RECON
 Communicated with approximately 75 retailers, brokers, developers, and/or land 

owners regarding Decatur
 Basecamp access provided with monthly updates on research, detailed 

conversations and activity
 BOG – “Boots on the Ground” real estate analysis completed 
 Research findings and Strategic Plan delivered
 Created customized marketing flyer for Decatur Park - 23 acres 
 Confirmed despite national closures, Office Max and Radio Shack will not be closing 

their locations in Decatur
 Started retail recruitment process. Progress made:

• Grocery: Connected with 7 and 3 are interested 
• Restaurants: Connected with 28 and 2 are interested 
• Pharmacy: Connected with 3 and 1 is interested 
• Department: none are interested at this time.  It is not a category of retail 

that is actively expanding and most believe that Belk dominates that 
category within the marketplace.   

• Appliance & Electronics: This is not an expanding category due to e-
commerce.  However, if a franchisee will commit, Sears Hometown Store 
would consider opening a “store within a store”.  

• Hardware: 1 is interested 
• Sporting Goods:  1 is interested 
• Hobby: Hobby Lobby will be opening at Shops at Lemon Place 
• Apparel: Retail Strategies worked with tenant rep broker and developer and 

Ross Dress for Less executed a lease at Shops at Lemon Place
• Furniture: Mattress Firm executed lease at Shops at Lemon Place  
• Shoes: Rack Room Shoes executed lease at Shops at Lemon Place
• Discount: In confidential negotiations with two concepts 

Page 293



Retail Strategies | 120 18th Street South, Suite 201 | Birmingham, AL 35233 | 205.313.3676 | 205.313.3677 | www.retailstrategies.com

Strategic Recruitment Plan

Cypress, California

Page 294



our research
| Retail Strategies    

Page 295



DEMOGRAPHIC REPORTS
Detailed Demographics
Age by Gender
Age by Income
Household Wealth
Income and Disposable Income
Consumer Behaviors
Consumer Attitudes

TAPESTRY SEGMENTATION ANALYSIS

PEER ANALYSIS

RETAIL SPENDING REPORTS
Consumer Expenditures

Consumer Attitudes

RETAIL GAP ANALYSIS

RETAIL VOID ANALYSIS

our research
| Retail Strategies 

Page 296



market analysis 
| Retail Strategies 

Category
3 Mile 

Radius

5 Mile 

Radius

10 Mile 

Radius

Population

2015
230,243 594,330 2,398,083

Population

2020
233,599 603,511 2,445,808

Median

Household 

Income 

2015

$69,793 $67,962 $61,928

Median

Household

Income 

2020

$75,228 $73,520 $67,393

Total 

Employees
184,572 474,780 1,886,892

Page 297



market analysis 
| Retail Strategies 

Category

5

Minute 

Drive 

Time 

10

Minute

Drive 

Time

15

Minute

Drive 

Time

Population

2015
110,790 535,272 1,731,841

Population

2020
113,220 545,050 1,764,541

Median

Household 

Income 

2015

$71,591 $69,399 $63,814

Median

Household

Income 

2020

$76,706 $75,035 $69,272

Total 

Employees
89,427 426,494 1,367,351

Page 298



cell phone tracking
| Retail Strategies 

Page 299



cell phone tracking
| Retail Strategies 

| Home Location

Page 300



cell phone tracking
| Retail Strategies 

| Work Location

Page 301



tapestry segmentation
| Retail Strategies 

Page 302



tapestry segmentation
| Retail Strategies 

Page 303



tapestry segmentation
| Retail Strategies 

Page 304



tapestry segmentation
| Retail Strategies 

Page 305



tapestry segmentation
| Retail Strategies 

Page 306



tapestry segmentation
| Retail Strategies 

Page 307



| Retail Strategies    

peer&gap analysisPage 308



peer analysis
| Retail Strategies 

The Peer Analysis is drawn from a 5 minute drive time from every Target location in the country then narrowed to your region. The

demographic variables used are population, income and daytime population. The retail real estate variables are market supply and gross

leasable area. Using each of these, we can pull a true comparison. Looking at the peer retail mix and comparing it to Cypress, gives us

analysis beyond typical demographic reporting.

Page 309



peer analysis
| Retail Strategies 

Nine Peer locations were identified in California 

Page 310



peer analysis
| Retail Strategies 

0 
2 

8 

59 

6 6
2

10

3
0 

8

33

1 

9 10 

54 

9 

4 
6 7 

4 
1 

9 

52 

Cypress Peers
Page 311



peer analysis
| Retail Strategies 

110,790 

47,559 

$71,592 

109,275 

40,043 

$65,230 

Residential Pop Daytime Pop Median HH Income

Cypress Peer

$1,369,211,840 

$1,978,039,822 

Market Supply

Cypress Peer

Page 312



gap analysis - overall
| Retail Strategies 

G
R

E
E

N
 =

 O
P

P
O

R
T

U
N

IT
Y

 G
A

P
 | R

E
D

 =
 S

U
R

P
L

U
S

 

Page 313



gap – food & beverage
| Retail Strategies 

G
R

E
E

N
 =

 O
P

P
O

R
T

U
N

IT
Y

 G
A

P
 | R

E
D

 =
 S

U
R

P
L

U
S

 Page 314



| Retail Strategies    

retail landscapePage 315



current retail overview
| Retail Strategies 

Page 316



focus properties
| Retail Strategies 

Number Name Address Property Strategy

1 Campus View Center 9111 Valley View Street Improve tenant mix

2 Lincoln Ave Properties 6045  Lincoln Avenue Higher and Better Use Zone

3 Lakeshore Plaza 9187 Valley View Street Improve tenant mix

4 Cypress Village 9515 Valley View Street Redevelopment Opportunity

5 Stater Brothers Center 10031 Valley View Street Monitor 

6 Former Walgreens 6045  Lincoln Avenue Backfill

7 Cypress Point 5950 Corporate Avenue Fill Vacancy

8 Strip in front of Costco 5373 Katella Avenue Monitor 

9 City Owned Land – Proposed Development 5351 Katella Avenue New Development

10 Office Depot 4955 Katella Avenue Monitor for national closings 

11 Barton Place Development 4921 Katella Avenue New Development – local & regional restaurants

12 Meridian Plaza 6835 Katella Avenue Fill Vacancy 

13 The Boardwalk Development 5895 Katella Avenue Redevelopment – National Restaurant Concepts

Page 317



focus properties
| Retail Strategies 

Page 318



focus properties
| Retail Strategies 

Barton Place 

Development

The Boardwalk 

Development

Page 319



priority focus projects
| Retail Strategies 

Barton Place Development  
4921 Katella Avenue

• +/- 900 feet of direct frontage on Katella Avenue

• Pad sales, ground lease, or built-to-suite opportunities

• Adjacent to an approved 244-unit, pedestrian-oriented 

Barton Place luxury senior housing community

Page 320



priority focus projects
| Retail Strategies 

The Boardwalk Development  
5895 Katella Avenue

• Infill redevelopment project focused on attracting 

restaurant and food offerings.

• Busiest intersection in the City of Cypress

• 23,500 SQ FT free standing building 

• 5:1000 parking ratio

Page 321



long term development properties
| Retail Strategies 

Number Name Address Long Term Strategy

1 Radio Shack Strip Center 5490 Lincoln Avenue • Lincoln Avenue is 

populated with

several commercial 

strips centers that 

cater to value and 

convenience.  

Commercial land is 

limited and valuable 

in Cypress.  

Therefore the long 

term strategy for 

this corridor will be 

to redevelop 

several of these 

properties for an 

improved tenant 

mix. Improved 

tenant mix will 

increase sales tax, 

property value and 

quality of life. 

2 Icon Beverages Strip Center 5721 Lincoln Avenue

3 Dalton's Restaruant 5591 Lincoln Avenue

4 Downtown  Strip 8972 Walker Street

5 Farmers Insurance Strip Center 5367 Lincoln Avenue

6 Small Strip with Dentist 5305 Lincoln Avenue

7 Tower Business Center 5241 Lincoln Avenue

8 Cypress Square 4901 Lincoln Avenue

9 Lincoln Avenue Plaza 4300 Lincoln Avenue 

10 Mission Center 4470-80 Lincoln Avenue

11 7-Eleven Center 4504 Lincoln Avenue

12 Delmar Plaza 4552 Lincoln Avenue

13 Higher and Better Use Zone 4620 Lincoln Avenue 

14 Strip Center in front of Extra Space Storage 4670 Lincoln Avenue

15 Strip Center next to Extra Space Storage 4700 Lincoln Avenue

16 Howard's Coffee Shop Strip Center 4760 Lincoln Avenue

17 Higher and Better Use Zone 4872 Lincoln Avenue

18 Higher and Better Use Zone 5022 Lincoln Avenue

19 Available Corner Building 5242 Lincoln Avenue

20 Available Building 5262 Lincoln Ave

21 Higher and Better Use Zone 5302 Lincoln Ave

Page 322



long term development properties
| Retail Strategies 

Page 323



| Retail Strategies    

recruitmentPage 324



our recruitment process
| Retail Strategies 

Represent
• Cypress at ICSC 

conferences in Las 

Vegas, Chicago, New 

York, Dallas, Orlando, 

Nashville, & Atlanta

Overcome
• Objections by 

effectively and 
creatively showing 
expansion 
opportunities 

Connect
• Landowners with 

developers. Connect 
leasing/brokerage 
professionals with 
potential tenants based 
on location & real estate 
requirements.

Page 325



our recruitment process
| Retail Strategies 

Leverage
• Retail Strategies’ 

national network of 

retail, restaurant, 

developer & investor 

relationships on behalf 

of Cypress.

Communicate
• With local real estate 

professionals & support 

their efforts by providing 

research & industry 

information such as 

“new-to-market” 

retailers. 

Initiate
• Continue aggressive 

outreach/marketing 

campaign to targeted 

retailers & restaurant 

prospects through 

direct contact, tenant 

representatives, 

preferred developer 

relationships. Page 326



LAS VEGAS

NEW YORK CITY

DALLAS

ATLANTA

CHICAGO

ORLANDO

NEW ORLEANS

CHARLOTTE

TENNESSEE

SAN DIEGO

Retail Strategies | 120 18th Street South, Suite 201 | Birmingham, AL 35233 | 205.313.3676 | 205.303.3677 | www.retailstrategies.com l Confidential

ICSC DEAL MAKING

CONFERENCES

conference representation
| Retail Strategies 

Page 327



marketing guide
| Retail Strategies 

Page 328



Retail Strategies | 120 18th Street South, Suite 201 | Birmingham, AL 35233 | 205.313.3676 | 205.313.3677 | www.retailstrategies.com

Thank You! 

Page 329



 

A Few Examples of Our Recruitment 

Moline, IL: Dick’s Sporting Goods 

The Story 

Retail Strategies assisted in the recruitment of Dick’s Sporting Goods to the struggling SouthPark Mall in 

Moline, IL within the first year of our engagement. By working with Macerich, which is one of the largest 

REIT’s in the Country, Retail Strategies was able to assist in landing the major sporting goods retailer in 

the market. 

In the News 

"What closed the deal finally was when Retail Strategies came in and gave the company the 
demographic information they wanted and showed the company how Macerich was making the 
investment in SouthPark Mall."  

- Ray Forsythe: The City of Moline, IL 

"The real estate brokerage community is able to work with Retail Strategies and expose them to the 
sites we have listed or under development. The company (Retail Strategies) allows us to maximize and 
multiply our efforts, exposing our Moline locations to potential users across the country," 

- Jeff Miller: Commercial Broker, Grampp Realty 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          Site: QCOnline.com “Marketing Efforts for Moline Already Successful” by Dawn Neuses 

 

Page 330



Jasper, AL: TJ Maxx, Petco, Hobby Lobby, & Shoe Carnival 

The Story 

Retail Strategies created success in Jasper by executing Jasper’s Strategic Recruiting Plan by working 

with a developer, property owner, City officials, and the Chamber to put a deal together to redevelop 

the Jasper Square Shopping Center and bring T.J. Maxx, Petco, Hobby Lobby, & Shoe Carnival to the 

market. The redevelopment will create approximately 100 jobs and bring in more than $500,000 a year 

in sales tax for the city.  

Quote from Our Client 

“Our investment in Retail Strategies has been one of the best decisions passed by our Chamber’s 

leadership. I strongly recommend you consider using their services. You will definitely be pleased with 

their product.” 

- Linda Lewis: President of the Walker County, AL Chamber  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 331



Mountain Brook, AL: Lane Parke 

The Story 

Retail recruitment, market analysis and leasing services were provided to the owner of a 1950's-era 

shopping center and apartment complex, which is being redeveloped into a high-end, mixed-use 

development. Retail Strategies completed the research and made a presentation to the city to rezone 

the 27 acre site to PUD. Research uncovered an opportunity to recruit luxury retail tenants, most of 

which are locating in Alabama for the first time. Lane Parke will feature over 160,000 square feet of 

luxury retail, 25,000 square feet of office space, a 100 room boutique inn, and 320 luxury residential 

units.  

The Tenants (More to be Announced) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 332



Tuscaloosa, AL: Shoppes at Legacy Park 

The Story 

Retail Strategies played an integral part in negotiating a $16.57 million incentive policy for a $62 million 

250,000 square foot shopping center in Tuscaloosa, AL. The new retail shopping center will cover 16.2 

acres and bring new to market concepts Fresh Market, DSW, Chuy’s, World Market, Bed Bath and 

Beyond, Pet’s Smart, Dick’s Sporting Goods, and several other desired tenants. 

Economic Impact 

$30+ Million Annual Sales Tax Revenue Collections  

500+ Jobs Created 

Raise $430,000 Annually for City Schools 

The Tenants 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Statesboro, GA: Wal-Mart Neighborhood Market  

Page 333



The Story 

In 2013, the City of Statesboro engaged Retail Strategies to assist their efforts in pro-actively recruiting 

retail.  As part of the Retail Strategies process, we determined that the student population of Georgia 

Southern University had not been a focus of past research and recruitment initiatives.  By incorporating 

the 21,000 student’s spending potential with a regional trade area focus, we identified a substantial 

grocery GAP in the market and reached out to multiple grocery concepts at ICSC meetings and through 

follow-up phone calls.  In June of 2014, WMT announced and began construction of a new 

Neighborhood Market near the GSU campus that will also serve the greater Statesboro population.  At 

least one and possibly two additional national grocery chains we targeted are expected to announce 

expansion plans in Statesboro in the coming months. 

 

Washington, NC: Zaxby’s 

The Story 

Due to Retail Strategies’ research, a need for quick service restaurants was quickly identified in 

Washington, North Carolina. Retail Strategies contacted Zaxby’s and made introductions to the property 

owner. Zaxby’s has since opened a new location in Washington and is currently fully operational. Zaxby’s 

has committed to Washington and has been very involved in giving back to the community since its 

opening.  

 

Lake City, FL: Harbor Freight & Tool 

The Story 

In 2013, Retail Strategies was engaged by the Columbia County-Lake City Chamber of Commerce to 

provide retail market research and retail recruitment services.  Researched revealed an $11.3M gap in 

the trade area for building materials stores.  As part of the strategic planning process, the Retail 

Strategies team identified a number of retail prospects to fill the gap and immediately began calling on 

them to discuss the market opportunity.  One of the retail prospects, Harbor Freight Tools, expressed 

strong interest in the market in early 2014.  By June of that year, the retailer had contracted with a 

developer to open a new store in Lake City. 

 

 

 

 

Page 334



Augusta, GA: Dunkin Donuts & Which Wich 

The Story 

Retail Strategies made contact with representatives from Which Wich and Dunkin’ Donuts in 2014. The 

market was approved by the franchisee and corporate at both companies and Retail Strategies shared 

several sites to the real estate director(s) to identify where they may be best positioned. A final site was 

chosen and a local brokerage group is putting together the 3,400 SF multi-tenant development in 

downtown Augusta. The franchisee anticipates hiring at least 25 employees for Dunkin’ Donuts and 

another 20 employees to work at Which Wich. Both businesses are expected to be operational by late 

June or early July 2015.  

Laurens, SC: Chick-Fil-A 

The Story 

Chick-fil-A has owned land in Laurens, SC for three years but there had been no official timeframe to 

begin construction and open a location on their site in Laurens. After four months of leveraging contacts 

with Chick-fil-A, Chick-fil-A announced to open a location in Laurens, SC in 2015. The ground breaking 

took place on March 12th of 2015 and they expect to be fully operating by October 2015. 

 

Littleton, CO – Mixed Use Development 

The Story 

Early into our partnership we were introduced to a developer who was developing a 20 AC mixed use 

development. Through our efforts we introduced multiple national sit down full service restaurants to 

the site and drove enough interest for the development that all of the restaurant pad sites are 

completely leased or sold out. We are now in the process of driving retailer interest for their remaining 

small shop and Jr. Anchor spaces and construction will likely begin late 2016/early 2017. 

 

Clinton, OK – Multi-tenant Strip Center Development 

The Story 

We implemented our recruitment strategy in Clinton, OK and kept getting the feedback that either there 

were no viable and available sites in the market or that the markets to the east and west were covering 

the Clinton trade area for those same retailers. Through our analysis we defined the true retailer trade 

area for Clinton to be much farther North and South than most retailers were viewing. We also 

introduced a developer to a site in the market which is now under contract and we have nearly 20,000 

Sf of retailers interested in the site all of which had previously turned down the market for a variety of 

reasons. 

Page 335



Jacksonville Beach, FL – Full Service Sit Down Restaurant 

The Story 

In late 2014 we had a discussion with a wildly popular full service restaurant that had looked all over 

Jacksonville Beach, FL for sites but had tapped out their efforts and admittedly settled for an adjacent 

market. Through our market knowledge we shared some information about a shopping center that was 

being redeveloped in the near future in the market and presented that to them as a viable option. That 

restaurant now has a lease signed at the shopping center we introduced them to. 

 

Lake City, FL – Driving Retailer Interest for Multiple Developments 

The Story 

Since very on in our engagement with Lake City we have been working very closely with a developer on 

multiple projects in the market. We have exposed a vast array of retailers to all of their projects in the 

market and with our assistance several of these projects will bring exciting and new to market retailers 

and restaurants to Lake City. 

 

Ocala, FL – Specialty Grocer 

The Story 

At the Florida ICSC show we met with a nationally expanding specialty grocery concept that is looking to 

expand across the country and especially Florida. We discussed the opportunity of opening a location in 

Ocala and they really like the idea of it. We are currently working through the site selection process with 

them and hope to have a deal working soon. 

 

Charleston, IL – Grocery Store 

The Story 

Since our engagement in late 2014 we had been targeting getting a national grocery store to the 

market.  I had many discussions with the real estate director and then met with him at the Vegas 

ICSC.  He saw that the market needed another grocery store but his trade area numbers were not 

working out for him to send to committee.  We then ran him our research trade area numbers and 

showed him the best sites possible.  Months later they put the site I showed to them under contract and 

will be opening for business fall of 2016.   

 

 

Page 336



Lincoln, IL – QSR and Factory Connection 

The Story 

Since our engagement they had an 8K SF vacancy at their main Kroger Anchored center.  We noticed 

that they had a clothing gap and made a list of retailers in that category to recruit specifically for that 

space.  We then set up a meeting with Factory Connection’s corporate office in Guntersville, AL.  We 

showed them that site and followed back up with the broker representing the center.  Later on that year 

FC executed a lease and are currently open for business. 

 

Since our engagement we recruited QSR’s and showed sites to a national donut/coffee restaurant.  I met 

with them in Vegas and at the regional show in Chicago.  After showing them sites and connecting with 

the local property owners their franchisee has put one of the sites under contract and will be closing at 

the beginning of this year.  This all started at the Chicago ICSC in 2014 and will finally happen in 2016. 

 

Dubuque, IA – Full Service Restaurants and Fast Casual Restaurants 

The Story 

The city has been wanting new full service restaurants and fast casual restaurants.  I met with tons of 

property owners that had the best sites for national retailers and started marketing those sites early in 

our engagement.  A full service national steakhouse that I met at the Chicago ICSC in 2014 is now touring 

the market with their developer and looking at the sites I sent to them.  A fast casual sandwich shop and 

Mexican restaurant are now under contract to be part of a multi-tenant development, and a national 

furniture retailer will be locating there.  I had been communicating with each of these retailers since the 

start of the engagement and they are now coming to the market. 

 

Lynchburg, VA –  New Development 

The Story 

Since our engagement we have been recruiting and getting interest from grocery stores, big box retail, 

and fast casual restaurants.  There has been one group that has owned the land for the next planned 

development.  We are currently working with big box retailers, national grocer, and fast casual 

restaurants for the development.  The development group has leaned on us a lot to represent them at 

the shows and to continue recruiting for this project.  At the beginning of this year we hope to have 

them moving forward with it. 

 

 

 

Page 337



Investment 

Year 1: 

Retail Development Strategy & Marketing      $24,999 

 Research & Analytics (150+ Total Reports) 

 Basecamp Access 

 In Market Real Estate Analysis 

 Retail Void Analysis 

 Strategic Planning 

 On Demand Reporting – 1 Full Year of Ongoing Data Reporting 

Optional: Implementation, Recruitment, and Representation   $24,999 

 Retail Recruitment 

 Restaurant Recruitment 

 Developer Identification & Recruitment     

 Broker Outreach 

 Property Owner Outreach 

 ICSC Representation at Ten Conferences Nationwide 

 Constant Communication with Team 

 New Year Data Updates (Q1 of Each Year) 

Year 2 & Year 3             $30,000 (Per Year) 

The life cycle for a retail real estate transaction is a multi-year process and it is our 

commitment to be your long term partner to bring these deals out of the ground. Our Team 

understands the budgeting process of our Clients which is why we are providing pricing for an 

additional two years following our initial agreement. 

 Continued Retail Recruitment 

 Continued Restaurant Recruitment 

 Continued Developer Identification & Recruitment     

 Continued Broker Outreach 

 Continued Property Owner Outreach 

 Continued ICSC Representation at Ten Conferences Nationwide 

 Continued Communication with Team 

 New Year Data Updates (Q1 of Each Year) 

 Updated Retail Void Analysis, Research, and Analytics  

 

Page 338



 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE 

CONSULTING AND RELATED SERVICES 
 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Retail Strategies, LLC, an Alabama 

limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”) and Apopka, FL (hereinafter 

referred to as “Client”) on this the 15 day of February, 2016, as follows: 

 WHEREAS, the Client desires to have performed those consultation services identified on 

Exhibit A attached hereto by Consultant (the “Project”); and, 

 WHEREAS, Consultant has agreed to provide professional consulting services for the 

Project to Client as further set forth below. 

 

W-I-T-N-E-S-S-E-T-H: 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, this agreement is made and entered into on the date first above 

written by and between the Client and Consultant, by which Consultant will provide professional 

consulting and related services to the Client as hereinafter specified: 

 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 Consultant hereby agrees to provide professional services for Client in the form of 

consulting and related services for the Project as set out in Exhibit A.   These professional services 

are consulting services and not that of a contractor or other provider. 

 

2. TERM 

 The Term of this Agreement shall commence upon February 15, 2016. The City of Apopka 

has the option to continue this agreement following the presentation and delivering of the Retail 

Development Strategy. If the City of Apopka elects to continue the agreement will have a total 

life of three years. 

Page 339



3. COMPENSATION 

 As compensation for the consultation services provided herein by Consultant, Client 

agrees to pay Consultant the following for such services: 

Term Action Being Performed Fee  

February 15, 2016 
Retail Development Strategy & 

Marketing Services 
$24,999 

_________, 2016 – February 14, 2017 
Implementation of the Retail 

Development Strategy 
$24,999 

February 15 , 2017 to February 14, 2018 
Continued Implementation of the Retail 

Development Strategy 
$30,000 

February 14, 2018 to February 15, 2019 
Continued Implementation of the Retail 

Development Strategy 
$30,000 

 

Compensation for each term shall be paid in full when billed by Consultant. Payments rendered 

are considered-fully earned and non-refundable as Consultant has fees for services rendered at 

the outset of this agreement. The payment for Retail Development Strategy and Marketing 

Services is due within fifteen days of receipt of invoice. Agreement fees for the implementation 

of the Retail Development Strategy will be due when City elects to exercise their option to 

continue this agreement. The second and third installment are due within sixty days of receipt of 

invoice. Any objection to the payment and continuing services with Retail Strategies must be 

communicated by certified mail within fifteen days of receipt of invoice. An invoice from 

Consultant will be sent to Client for each amount due. 

 

  

4. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 

 In addition to paying Consultant for services according to the preceding paragraph, the 

Client shall also provide for Consultant:  access to its relevant personnel, facilities, and materials 

including, but not necessarily limited to, those items specified in Consultant’s proposal to Client, 

Page 340



and such records, reports, and information as reasonably requested by Consultant and in Client’s 

possession. 

 

5. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

 The Client and Consultant, jointly and separately, acknowledge and agree that the 

intellectual property of both parties shall remain owned by the respective party.  With the 

exception of Consultant’s periodic and final reports generated for performance of this agreement 

to or for the Client, reports, memorandums, electronic mail, facsimile transmissions and other 

written and prepared documents shall be owned by the party who authored, generated or who 

originally possessed the same and nothing in this agreement shall contravene said rights.  The 

Client acknowledges that all intellectual property developed during the course of this agreement 

by Consultant shall belong exclusively to Consultant.  However, the Client may utilize any of the 

foregoing for and on behalf of its internal operations, but will take steps reasonably necessary 

with its employees with respect to the use, copying, protection and security of the foregoing. 

6. APPLICABLE LAWS 

 Consultant, in its role as a professional service provider of consulting services, shall abide 

by all laws, rules and regulations applicable to such services.   

 

7. INSURANCE 

 Consultant shall carry all appropriate and necessary insurance to be in compliance with 

state and federal laws regarding the insurance coverage of its employees. 

 

8. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 

 (a)  In the event Consultant should violate any of the terms of this Agreement, Client shall 

provide Consultant with written notice of any such default.  Consultant shall have a period of 

thirty (30) days following such notice to cure any alleged deficiencies.  Should Consultant fail to 

cure such default in the time period provided, Client shall be permitted to terminate this 

Page 341



Agreement.  All fees paid for any term are fully earned when paid and are not subject to refund 

following any termination hereunder.   

(b)  This Agreement shall automatically expire upon the expiration of the three (3) year 

term.  Both parties may renew the consulting relationship by executing an amendment or new 

agreement setting forth the new terms between the Consultant and the Client.   

 

 

 

 

9. NOTICES/PARTIES REPRESENTATIVES 

 All notices, bills, invoices and reports required by this agreement shall be sufficient if sent 

by the parties hereto in the United Sates Mail, postage prepaid thereon to the addresses noted 

below: 

  Client:   ________________________________ 
________________________________ 
________________________________ 

Consultant:  Retail Strategies, LLC  
   120 18th Street South Suite 201    

    Birmingham, AL  35233      
    Attention:  Matthew Petro 

 

 

 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 While Consultant’s role will be that of consultant to the Client, Consultant shall be and 

remain an independent contractor and not act in the role of an agent or legal representative on 

behalf of the Client.  Consultant shall not have the authority to bind or obligate the Client, its 

officers, agents or employees.   

Page 342



 

11. MISCELLANEOUS 

Third Party Beneficiaries:  It is the intent of the parties hereto that there shall be no third 

party beneficiaries to this agreement. 

 

Final Integration:  This agreement, together with any exhibits or amendments hereto, 

constitutes the entire agreement of the parties, as a complete and final integration 

thereof with respect to its subject matter.  All written or oral understandings and 

agreements heretofore had between and among the parties are merged into this 

agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses their understandings.  No 

representation, warranty, or covenant made by any party which is not contained in this 

agreement or expressly referred to herein have been relied on by any party in entering 

into this agreement. 

 

Force Majeure:  Neither party to this agreement shall hold the other party responsible 

for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, lockouts or other 

circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the other or the other party’s employees, 

agents or contractors. 

 

Amendment in Writing:  This agreement may not be amended, modified, altered, 

changed, terminated, or waived in any respect whatsoever, except by a further 

agreement in writing, properly executed by all of the parties. 

 

Binding Effect:  This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective personal 

representatives, heirs, next of kin, legatee, distributees, successors, and assigns.  If any 

provision in this agreement shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality 

and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired 

thereby. 

 

Page 343



Captions:  The captions of this agreement are for convenience and reference only, are not 

a part of this agreement, and in no way define, describe, extend, or limit the scope or 

intent of this agreement. 

 

Construction:  This agreement shall be construed in its entirety according to its plain 

meaning and shall not be construed against the party who provided or drafted it. 

 

Governing Law:  Due to the type of services being performed hereunder, which shall 

occur in the State of Alabama, this Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the 

State of Alabama. 

 

Prohibition on Assignment and Delegation:  No party to this agreement may assign or 

delegate its interests or obligations hereunder without the written consent of all other 

parties hereto obtained in advance of any such assignment or delegation.  No such 

assignment or delegation shall in any manner whatsoever relieve any party from its 

obligations and duties hereunder and such assigning or delegating party shall in all 

respects remain liable hereunder irrespective of such assignment or delegation. 

 

Waiver:  Non-enforcement of any provision of this agreement by either party shall not 

constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision 

or of the remaining terms and conditions of the agreement. 

 

Agreement Date/Counterparts:  The date of this agreement is intended as and for a date 

for the convenient identification of this agreement and is not intended to indicate that 

this agreement was necessarily executed and delivered on said date.  This instrument may 

be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed 

an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same 

instrument. 

 

Page 344



Arbitration:  Should any dispute between Consultant and Client arise at any time out of 

any aspect of this Agreement or the relationship hereunder, or against any employee, 

officer, agent, director, member, affiliate, subsidiary or parent, the parties hereto agree 

to have any such dispute resolved by final and binding arbitration in accordance with the 

commercial rules of the American Arbitration Association.   

 

  

CLIENT: 

 

 

________________________________ 

     

By _________________________________ 

 

       Title _______________________________ 

    

       Date ______________________________ 

 

CONSULTANT: 

       RETAIL STRATEGIES, LLC 

 

       By _________________________________ 

 

       Title _______________________________ 

 

       Date _______________________________ 

 

Page 345



EXHIBIT A 

Detailed Scope of Work  
• Identify Apopka market Retail Trade Areas using political boundaries, drive times and radii and 

custom boundary geographies 

• Identify Apopka Trade Area by Geocoding Cell Phone Users who Live, Work, or Shop within Apopka 

 Perform Market & Retail GAP Analysis for each trade area (Leakage and Surplus) 

 Provide Consumer Propensity Report  (Consumer Attitude and Behavior Analysis) 

 Conduct Retail Peer Market Analysis 

• Competition analysis between Apopka market trade area(s) and surrounding competitive 

communities  

• Cannibalization Analysis (Distance Tolerance) for all recommended retail prospects between nearest 

existing locations and Apopka 

• Psychographic Profile of Trade Area / Market Segmentation Analysis 

• Demographic data and market information report 

• Thematic Mapping and Aerial Imagery by trade area   

• Retail Competitor Mapping/Analysis 

• Market Maximization Summary and Strategic Leasing Plan  

• Market Viability 

• Analysis of future retail space requirements in relation to the retail market analysis, the market’s 

growth potential and trends in the retail industry 

• Identification of Retail Prospects to be targeted for recruitment 

• Retailer Recruitment and Execution of the Retail Strategic Plan  

• Updates on Retail Industry Trends 

• Custom On-Demand Demographic Research – Historical, Current, and Projected Demographics – to 

include market trade areas by radius/drive-time, and custom trade areas associated with Apopka 

• Daytime Population Identification 

• Work Place Establishment, Employment, and Salary 

• Market Outlook & Sales Potential 

• Customizable Reports 

Real Estate Analysis 

 Identify/Evaluate/Catalog Priority Commercial Properties for Leasing, Development, Re-development 

and higher and best use opportunities 

• Identification of Priority Business Categories for Recruitment and/or Local Expansion 

 Perform Competitive Analysis of Existing Shopping Centers and retail corridors 

Deliverables 

 Apopka Retail Market Analysis 

 Apopka Retail Development Plan 

 Apopka Strategic Marketing and Recruitment Strategy 

 Hard Copies and Electronic Copies of the Analysis, the Development Plan, Recruitment Strategy, and 

Marketing Materials  

 

Page 346



Implementation and Recruitment (optional) 

 Pro-Active Retail Recruitment 

 ICSC Representation 

 Development of Marketing Materials 

 Leverage a National Network of Retail and Development Contacts 

 Identify and Review Incentives 

 

 

 

Page 347



1 
 

INTERVIEW QUESTIONS\SCORE SHEET 

RETAIL STRATEGY MARKETING PLAN 

 

Description of Initial Consulting Services Needed:    Prepare a Marketing Package (including brochures) 

and recruit quality retailers and sit-down quality or casual dining restaurants to Apopka (no drive-

through facilities).  

 

Marketing Package (10 pts) 

 

1.   Describe what is typically is included in your Marketing Package?  Based on the components of your 

Marketing Plan, what would be the most effective marketing tool for Apopka? 

 

2.   Graphics and Design.   Are all graphics and design prepared in-house by graphic artists and company 

professionals with your company, or is this service sub-contracted?  Describe your process for preparing 

unique graphics and design work for your client cities, or does your firm prefer to use boiler-plate 

material that is commonly used for all clients?  Describe how the Marketing Package will evolve from  

scratch to a finished product assuring coordination has occurred with the City of Apopka? 

 

3.  The Wekiva Parkway will open by 2021, bringing most of the Disney-bound highway traffic through 

Apopka.  How will you use this information in your marketing package? 

 

  

Logistics and Conflicts (10 pts) 

 

1.   Location and Distance.  Your firm is located in a distant City.  Explain how the project manager will 

coordinate with city staff and how service will occur from a distant location to minimize travel costs. 

 

2.  Conflicts.   Does your firm currently represent other Central Florida municipal or county 

governments?  If so, who?   How does your firm avoid conflicts of interest that may evolve amoug your 

Florida clients?  For example, if Cheddars restaurant is searching for a location within a metropolitan 

area, and your firm has two, three or more city clients in the market area sought by Cheddars, how do 

you market each city client fairly? 

 

Customer Service (10 pts) 

 

1.  How does your firm’s customer service differentiate you from your competition, and how does this 

lead to successful recruitment of quality retail and restaurants? 

 

2.  Explain how you identify the type of retail and restaurants that a client community desires?  Explain 

how your recruiting and marketing plan are tailored to your client and how you avoid drawing attention 

to the types of retail businesses and restaurants that your client city does not desire? 

 

Page 348



2 
 

3.  What staff with your firm will be assigned to serve Apopka?  Will the City have a recent college grad 

hired as our project manager or will we have an experienced team member leading the way for our 

efforts? 

 

 

Recruitment (10 pts) 

 

1.  Based on your current knowledge of Apopka, what types of restaurants and retail might be interested 

in locating here? 

 

2.  What reasonable expectations should Apopka have regarding your firm’s successful recruitment of 

quality restaurants and retail?  One store in two years, over three years? 

 

3.  Based on your firm’s experience, discuss the level and type of connections your firm has with actual 

retail and restaurant management and their site selection staff.   

 

4.  The Wekiva Parkway will open by 2021 and bring most of the Disney-bound highway traffic through 

Apopka.  How will you use this information to help in your recruitment efforts and what type of 

companies from your firm’s connections might be interested? 

 

Open Discussion (10 pts) 

 

1.  Explain why your firm is a good “fit” to assist Apopka to find and recruit retailers and restaurants to 

locate here. 

 

2.  Share any other information about your firm and its services that may be important or useful to 

Apopka. 

 

 

SCORE SHEET TOTAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Score  

Firm CA PM Total 

Buxton 41 45 86 

Catalyst 50 48 98 

Retail Strategies 34 40 74 

Page 349



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Thank you email to the City of Apopka Public Services Department from resident.  
  

Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354


	Top
	1. 02-17-16 APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	02-03-16.pdf

	 02-17-16 - CC - Proclamation - FFA 
	1. 02-17-16 - CC - Presentations - Farmworkers - House Bill 675
	Presentation - Farm Workers - House Bill 675.pdf
	Presentation - House Bill 675.pdf

	2. 02-17-16 - CC - Presentations - Canterwoods ALF
	1 Canterwoods ALF Presentation.pdf
	2 Canterwoods ALF Proposed_Approved Site Plans.pdf
	3 Canterwoods_Dixie Manor Project Comparisons.pdf
	4 Canterwoods ALF Bldg Elevations.pdf

	3. 02-17-16 - CC - Presentations - Suzanne Kidd
	1. 02-17-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Fuel Renew
	Fuel Renew 1.pdf

	2. 02-17-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Rec Vehicles
	REC Vehicles.pdf

	3. 02-17-16 - CC - Consent Agenda (Action) - Capital Facility Fees Payment Ageement - Marden Ridge
	1 Marden Ridge grnsht - CC - 02-17-16.pdf
	2 Marden Ridge Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement.pdf

	4. 02-17-16 - CC - Consent Agenda (Action) - Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement, Poe Reserve, Ph. 2
	1 Poe Reserve Phase 2 Sewer-Water Capacity Agr Council.pdf
	2 Poe Reserve Phase 2 - 42 Lots S-W Cap Agr.pdf

	5. 02-17-16 - CC - Consent Agenda (Action) - Sewere and Water Capacity Agreement- Poe Reserve, Ph. 3
	1 Poe Reserve Phase 3 Sewer-Water Capacity Agr Council.pdf
	2 Poe Reserve Phase 3 - 17 Lots S-W Cap Agr.pdf

	6. 02-17-16 - CC - Consent Agenda-Donation
	Kid&apos;s House Donation GS.pdf
	Kid&apos;s House Donation MEMO.docx

	7. 02-17-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - LEASE AGREEMENT RENEWAL
	CC- Lease Renewal.pdf
	Dorfman Lease Renewal 2016.pdf

	8. 02-17-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Coin Laundry Land Purchase
	Glenn - Park Ave Coin Laundry Property - Staff Report.pdf
	Glenn - Park Ave Coin Laundry 01.pdf
	Glenn - Park Ave Coin Laundry 02.pdf

	1. 02-17-16 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord. #2474 Capital Facility Fees
	Ordinance 2474 - Capital Facility Fees 2nd rd.pdf
	Ordinance 2474 - Capital Facility Fees.pdf

	2. 02-17-16 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord. #2475 Rates Fees
	PS - Ord. 2475 Utility Rate Fees Staff Report.pdf
	Ordinance 2475 - Rates and Fees.pdf

	3. 02-17-16 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord. #2488 - Annexation - Apopka Holding LLC
	1 Ord 2488 - Apopka Holding, LLC - 02-17-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord. 2488 - 2016 Annexation Cycle 1- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2488 - Apopka Holding, LLC.pdf

	4. 02-17-16 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord. #2473 - Corrective Ordinance - Technology Property, LLC
	1 Technology Prop - Corrective Ord 2473 - 1-20-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2473 - Technology Prop.pdf
	3 Ord. 2439 - Technology Prop - Original Ord.pdf

	5. 02-17-16 - CC - Resolution - 2nd Rd - Res. #2016-03 - Economic Enhancement District Designating Brownfield Districts
	1 Brownfield Designation Resolution - CC - 02-17-2016 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Apopka Economic Enhancement District Resolution.pdf

	6. 02-17-16 - CC - Resolution 2016-06
	Resolution 2016-06 - SRF Loan Authorization Staff Report.pdf
	SRF Loan Resolution - 2-17-16.pdf

	1. 02-17-16 - CC - Business Item/Council 
	David Moon - Retail Marketing Plan Selection - Staff Report.pdf
	David Moon - Retail Marketing Plan Selection - RFP Scope of Services.pdf
	Catalyst.pdf
	Buxton.pdf
	Retail Strategies.pdf
	David Moon - Retail Marketing Plan Selection - Interview Questions and Score Sheet.pdf

	1. 02-17-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - PS Thank you Email 
	Standing Ovation - Letter.pdf
	Items Not requiring Council Action - PS - SW Line Repair.pdf

	Bottom

